3.13 PUBLIC SERVICES AND RECREATION

This page left intentionally blank

3.13-20 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan
601



o
] .
8 Kanawha Fire
& Pprotection
~ District
@
Road 53

o 1,000 2,000
[ = ]
Feet

1 =
o
Road 45 &
Il Q
)
[¢])
4 =
- |
-l Road 46 <
0) o 4 )
3 “ ER
© Q
& 1 % 3 =
c @ 3
+ Nf &
+ qa
'bbb‘
1 L
Road 48
S
= 1) X
g & 1 3
= 3 &
First e T
. | ) Southern PacificRR ) . ) ) ) . . r
© Glennwood Ln | ReadRopZ
<
& Green St
s g o
< 1 n nwom o)
£ Qo @ French St ¥ 7_:5-522
I g ) TS ¥SosQa
i g @ Vine St ﬁ‘
T~ Wood St @==Fr=—mmnnnq +
= Willow St E I Bk s
m - 0 S e | _2g5 /
o { P1 & E
7 ~ i ®@ﬁ=ﬁ Sycamore St T £ % 8§ Ve
o . L B2 i 29
[ \ S e ‘2 12 g W
s LaurelSt § . /°
\ PR® ¢, a Willoys Firgo/p 451
\ <z (6)Depa tmet
) W s EE Birch St & L/
w - 52 4
S o 8 £ Cedar St I'
= \ Elm St T
2 3 P2 @® y,
N (el
. H
\, |
. + Road 53
w \\
he] .
] \ 1
& 3
\, (59)
\\
Q’Z? \\ \»
>
é \\ 1
S N =
< * T kel
\‘~
. 1
.
Road 57 o=
/ 4
H
1]
| 1
i

Sources: USGS National Map; USGS Protected Areas Database; CalAtlas. Map date: October 18, 2019. Revised: January 14, 2020.

LEGEND

___ 3 City of Willows

= Willows Sphere of Influence

Community Facilities

@ school
(@) Fire Station

i+ Willows Cemetery

i |
@

®

Willows Public Library
Willows Memorial Hall

City Park

Parks

P1 |Willows Memorial Park
P2 |Sycamore Park
P3  [Central Park
P4 [Jensen Park

Schools
S1  [Murdock Elementary School
S2  |Walden Academy
S3 | Willows High School
S4  |Willows Community High School
S5 [Willows Intermediate School

CITY OF WILLOWS

FIGURE 3.13-1. COMMUNITY
FACILITIES

602



3.13 PUBLIC SERVICES AND RECREATION

This page left intentionally blank

3.13-22 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan
603



TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION 3.14

This chapter describes the potential impacts to the roadway, transit, bicycle, and pedestrian
components of the City’s transportation system as well as roadway safety. To provide context for
the impact analysis, this chapter begins with a discussion of the environmental setting, which is a
description of the existing physical and operational conditions for the transportation system.
Following the setting is the regulatory framework influencing the transportation system and
providing the basis for impact significance thresholds used in the impact analysis. The chapter
concludes with the impact analysis findings and recommended mitigation measures.

In compliance with the CEQA Guidelines, the analysis of each modal component and safety is based
on applicable technical guidance and City of Willows decisions regarding methodology, impact
thresholds, and feasible mitigation. Vehicle related impacts are based on the plan’s changes to
vehicle miles of travel (VMT), a measure of the total distance traveled by vehicles that have a trip
starting or ending in Willows. Separate VMT impacts are evaluated for residential versus non-
residential land uses based on VMT generation rates, which are also called efficiency metrics
because they express VMT on per resident or per worker basis. Residential uses are evaluated with
home-based VMT per resident and non-residential uses are evaluated with home-based work VMT
per employee with the exception of retail land uses where total VMT is used. For transit, bicycle,
and pedestrian system components, impacts are based on whether the plan will disrupt existing, or
interfere with planned, facilities or services. Finally, for safety impacts, the plan’s proposed
transportation network changes are evaluated for consistency with applicable design standards.
These standards are created to provide users with common expectations when using the
transportation system to help minimize potential conflicts that could cause collisions.

No Transportation-related comments were received during the public review period for the Notice
of Preparation.

3.14.1 ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING

This section provides a contextual background to the City’s existing transportation system,
representing conditions prior to the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic. The pandemic caused
substantial disruption to travel patterns and behavior, some of which has dissipated with the lifting
of activity restrictions. However, some changes are expected to remain longer such as considering
health risk when using modes that involve sharing of seats (e.g., transit or carpooling). The General
Plan addresses the overall planning and development of the circulation system for moving people
and goods in a multi-modal framework. Transportation system components include the roadway
network, public transportation system, bicycle and pedestrian system, and goods movement.

The automobile is the most widely used mode of transportation in Willows. According to the U.S.
Census Bureau, 2019 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimate, about 95 percent of City of
Willows residents that work commute by car, truck, or van. Approximately 80 percent of City of
Willows residents that work drove alone while 15 percent carpooled. About two percent of workers
walk to work. Less than one percent take public transportation, bicycle, or use other means to get
to work, and approximately 2 percent work at home. These percentages changed during the
pandemic, with the biggest change occurring in people that work at home. According to data from

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.14-1

604



3.14 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

the Household Pulse Survey conducted by the U.S. Census Bureau, the percentage of adults in
households where at least one adult has substituted some or all of their typical in-person work for
telework because of the coronavirus pandemic was over 40% in California in 2021 thus far?, though
Willows likely has a different balance of jobs that allow for telework than average in California.

CHART 3.14-1: METHOD OF TRANSPORTATION TO WORK

80%

70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10% I

Drove alone Carpooled Public Walked Bicycle Other Worked from
transportation home

X

M California ®Glenn County ® Willows

Source: American Community Survey, Census Bureau, 2015-2019.

Data from the 2019 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimate also shows the amount of time
commuters take to get to work. Based on the data, about 57 percent of workers living in Willows

Thttps://www.census.gov/data-tools/demo/hhp/#/?periodSelector=26&measures=TELEWORK&
s state=00006

3.14-2 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan

605


https://www.census.gov/data-tools/demo/hhp/#/?periodSelector=26&measures=TELEWORK&%20s_state=00006
https://www.census.gov/data-tools/demo/hhp/#/?periodSelector=26&measures=TELEWORK&%20s_state=00006

TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION 3.14

traveled to work in under 15 minutes, 24 percent traveled to work in 15 to under 30 minutes, 13
percent traveled to work in 30 to under 45 minutes, and 5 percent traveled to work in 45 minutes
or more. Average travel time to work was estimated to be 16 minutes. Commute times for Willows
workers are shorter than for the state, where 56 percent travel to work in 29 minutes or less and
the average travel time to work is 30 minutes.

CHART 3.14-2: TRAVEL TIME TO WORK (IN MINUTES)

35%
30%
25%
20%

15%

10%
0

10to 14 15to 19 20to 24 25to 29 30to 34 35to 44 45t0 59 60 or more

X

H California ®Glenn County Willows

Source: American Community Survey, Census Bureau, 2015-2019.

ROADWAY SYSTEM

This section describes the physical characteristics of Willow’s existing roadway network. Figure 3.14-
1 shows the roadway classification system in Willows.

State Highways

Two highways operated and maintained by Caltrans pass through Willows, Interstate-5 (I-5) and
State Route (SR) 162.

I-5 extends 796 miles in California, from the International Border Crossing at San Ysidro to the
California/Oregon Border. 1-5 is a critical transportation facility for California’s economy and the
economy of the City of Willows. In Willows, I-5 is a four-lane north-south freeway that runs along
the western city limit. I-5 has grade-separated interchanges that provide access to the following
streets in Willows:

e Biggs-Willows Road/State Route 162
e County Road 57

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.14-3

606



3.14 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

SR 162 is an east-west highway running through the northern portion of the City. SR 162 connects
Willows to the City of Oroville, sharing right-of-way with SR 45 and SR 99 for short segments. In
Willows, SR 162 is four lanes between I-5 and 5% Street. SR 162 has a grade-separated interchange
with I-5.

Arterials

Arterial streets are designed to serve through traffic and major local traffic generators such as
residential, commercial, industrial, and institutional uses. Willows’ arterials are described below:

Tehama Street County Road 99W is a two-lane, north-south roadway that extends through
Glenn County and is known as Tehama Street in the City of Willows. It includes a center left-
turn lane between Biggs-Willows Road and Sycamore Street and from Eureka Street to
County Road 58, it is designated a Principal Arterial.

North Humboldt Avenue is a two-lane, north-south roadway that runs parallel to I-5 in
northwest Willows. It includes a center left-turn lane for part of the segment between Green
Street and Biggs-Willows Road (SR 162). Between Green Street and Sycamore Street it is
designated a Minor Arterial.

Villa Avenue is a two-lane, north-south roadway. It includes parking on both sides of the
street between Wood Street and Sycamore Street, where it is designated a Minor Arterial.

Lassen Street is a two-lane, north-south roadway. It includes parking on both sides of the
street between Wood Street and Elm Street, where it is designated a Minor Arterial.

Sycamore Street is a two-lane, east-west roadway. It includes parking on both sides of the
street between Villa Avenue and Tehama Street, where it is designated a Minor Arterial.

Laurel Street is a two-lane, east-west roadway. It includes parking on both sides of the street
between South Villa Avenue and South Tehama Avenue, where it is designated a Minor
Arterial.

Vehicle Miles Traveled

By definition, one vehicle mile traveled (VMT) occurs when one vehicle (regardless of number of
occupants) is driven on a roadway for one mile. For the purposes of this EIR, VMT is typically
estimated and projected for an average weekday. Many factors affect VMT, including the average
distance residents commute to work, school, and shopping, as well as the proportion of trips that
are made by non-automobile modes. Areas that have a diverse land use mix and ample facilities for
non-automobile modes, including transit, tend to generate lower VMT than auto-oriented rural
areas where residents travel long distances to/from work, school, and other amenities.

VMT is used to measure performance of the existing transportation network and to evaluate
potential transportation impacts. VMT can be reported and analyzed as an absolute amount using a
metric like total weekday VMT or an efficiency metric (also called a generation rate) such as VMT
per capita. Efficiency metrics allow the VMT performance of different-sized projects or plans to be

3.14-4 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan

607



TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION 3.14

compared. Such metrics provide a measure of travel efficiency and help depict whether different
planning scenarios require more or less vehicle travel.

The City of Willows does not maintain a travel demand model that is capable of estimating or
forecasting VMT so VMT efficiency metrics were estimated using the California Household Travel
Survey (CHTS, 2012). Table 3.14-1 shows total VMT generated per capita and a subdivision of the
total by trip purpose, for California, Glenn County, and the City of Willows. Home-based work trips
involve travel direction between work and home locations. Home-based Other trips have at least
one end of the trip at home while the other will typically involve a shopping, school, entertainment,
restaurant, or recreation location. Non-Home Based trips occur away from the home, such as a trip
from work to the grocery store.

TABLE 3.14-1: VMT PER CAPITA

GEOGRAPHY TOTAL Houe=BASED Home=BASED NON—-HOME BASED
OTHER WORK
California 15.1 5.8 5.1 4.2
Glenn County 17.8 6.5 6.1 53
City of Willows 13.4 1.6 7.7 4.5

Source: California Household Travel Survey (2010-2012).

Total VMT per capita in the City of Willows is 13.4, with over half of the total represented by home-
based work travel, reflecting the rural nature of the area where jobs are widely dispersed. For typical
local trips like shopping, the relatively compact nature of Willows produces shorter trips than the
average for Glenn County or California.

Using CHTS for VMT has its limitations. This data source only represents vehicle travel by residents.
It does not include all VMT generated visitors, workers, and commercial vehicles that start or end
trips in the City.. Finally, the data may not reflect travel behavior as it exists today, because a more
recent household travel survey is not yet available.

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM

The public transportation system in Willows includes bus transit, taxi, and ride sharing services.

Bus Transit Operations

The primary transit service in Willows is Glenn Ride, which provides seven round trips every weekday
and three round trips on Saturday from Willows to Chico with service to Artois, Orland, and Hamilton
City. Glenn Ride begins operation at the Glenn County Public Works Park & Ride, travels southward
on Colusa Street and Sacramento Street, westward on Laurel Street and Sycamore Street, and north
on Villa Avenue past Glenn Medical Center, and crosses t I-5/Biggs-Willows Road interchange to stop
at Walmart and the Willows-Glenn County Airport before heading north on I-5 to Orland and then
east on RS 32 to Chico.

Glenn Ride buses are equipped with accessible lifts and bicycle racks. While Glenn Ride is a fixed
route transit service, users may also request deviations up to % of a mile to drop them closer to their
final destination.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.14-5

608




3.14 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

Additional transportation assistance is provided to eligible residents through Dial-A-Ride and
Volunteer Medical Transport. Seniors 60 years of age or older and those on Permanent Disability, or
low income are eligible for Transit Service Cards to use these services.

Taxi and Ride Sharing Services

Taxi service in Willows is provided sporadically by private operators that serve the greater Glenn
County area. Taxi service may be available seven days a week by calling in a service request to
operators in Orland, Chico, and other larger cities.

Lyft and Uber provide connections to local and regional destinations. Availability varies depending
on driver availability, and service may always not be available. Service is requested by smartphone
apps for each provider.

BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN SYSTEM

This section describes the bicycle and pedestrian network in Willows.

Bicycle Facilities

Bicycle facilities are categorized into four types as described below.

e (Class | Bikeway (Bike Path): Also known as a shared-use path or multi-use path, bike paths
provide a completely separated right-of-way for the exclusive use of bicycles, pedestrians,
and other non-motorized modes.

e Class Il Bikeway (Bike Lane): Dedicated on-street, striped lane for one-way bicycle travel.
Some may have painted buffers on one or both sides to provide space between bicyclists
and moving traffic or parking cars.

e Class Il Bikeway (Bike Route): Routes where the travel lane is shared by drivers and
bicyclists. They are most suited for roadways with low traffic speeds and volumes, such as
quiet residential streets. Some routes, called bicycle boulevards, may be enhanced with curb
extensions or other traffic calming treatments to improve comfort for bicycling.

e Class IV Bikeway (Separated Bikeway or Cycle Track): On-street bicycle facilities that
include physical protection from vehicle traffic. This separation might include a curb, on-
street parking, flexible bollards, or concrete planters. Class IV bikeways may provide for one-
way or two-way travel on each side of the roadway.

There are no Class | paths, Class Ill routes, or Class IV bikeways in Willows. There is currently one
short segment of Class Il bicycle lanes in Willows on SR 162, west of I-5, as shown in Figure 3.14-2.

The Glenn County Active Transportation Plan, adopted in June 2019, proposes bicycle facility
improvements on segments of Laurel Street, Shasta Street, and Villa Ave.

Pedestrian Facilities

Pedestrian facilities include multi-use off-street paths, sidewalks, crosswalks, curb ramps, and
streetscape amenities. Many streets in Willows lack several basic pedestrian amenities.

3.14-6 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan

609



TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION 3.14

Sidewalks are provided in much of downtown Willows, though many sidewalk gaps exist at the
periphery of the city. Marked crosswalks are present at few intersections in Willows. Some
intersections have only one marked crosswalk, while others are marked on all legs.

Accessible curb ramps are provided at some intersections in Willows, largely in areas with more
recently constructed sidewalks. Most locations lack curb ramps, including many marked crosswalks.

The Glenn County ATP, developed through a series of community workshops, proposes sidewalk gap
closures and curb ramps, curb extensions, high visibility crosswalks, and other pedestrian
infrastructure improvements throughout Willows.

GOoODS MOVEMENT

Trucking is a major means of transportation for goods produced in Glenn County. Truck traffic
accounts for a considerable portion of traffic on highways in Glenn County. On Interstate-5 truck
traffic may account for as much as 28 percent of Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT). For SR 32, SR
45, and SR 162, truck traffic accounts for approximately 5 to 20 percent of total AADT in some
segments2. Maintaining safe and efficient roadways for the movement of goods is an important
issue in Glenn County where agriculture and industrial services make up a large portion of the local
economy.

The Surface Transportation Assistance Act (STAA) of 1982 defines a network of state facilities as
truck routes which accommodate large trucks. STAA routes have specific signage and are designed
with street widths, curb return radii, and other features to accommodate STAA trucks, which have
longer wheelbases than other trucks. Besides I-5, there are no STAA routes in Willows.

California Northern Pacific Railroad Company (CFNR) provides freight service through Glenn County.
The CFNR Mainline tracks traverse the County parallel to I-5 and just east of Old Highway 99, running
through the Cities of Willows and Orland. A small east-west branch line in Willows runs north of SR
162 connecting to the Johns Manville manufacturing facility on County Road 48. According to
Federal Railroad Administration records, there are 23 locations where the CFNR lines cross public
and private roads at-grade in Willows. About half of these crossings are unmarked, while the other
half have railroad crossing advance warning signs. Only the crossing of the John Manville branch line
and I-5 is grade-separated.

2 https://dot.ca.gov/programs/traffic-operations/census

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.14-7

610


https://dot.ca.gov/programs/traffic-operations/census

3.14 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

3.14.2 REGULATORY SETTING

The General Plan, along with a variety of City, regional, State, and Federal plans, legislation, and
policy directives provide guidelines for the safe operation of streets and transportation facilities in
Willows. While the City has primary responsibility for the maintenance and operation of local
transportation facilities in its jurisdiction, Willows staff works on a continual basis with responsible
regional, State, and Federal agencies including County of Glenn, the California Department of
Transportation (Caltrans), the Federal Highway Administration, and others to maintain, improve,
and balance the competing transportation needs of the community and the region. Federal, state,
regional, and local laws or regulations applicable to analyzing transportation impacts of the general
plan are described below.

FEDERAL

Americans With Disabilities Act

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 provides comprehensive rights and protections to
individuals with disabilities. The goal of the ADA is to assure equality of opportunity, full
participation, independent living, and economic self-sufficiency. To implement this goal, the United
States Access Board has created accessibility guidelines for public rights-of-way. The guidelines
address various issues, including roadway design practices, slope and terrain issues, pedestrian
access to streets, sidewalks, curb ramps, street furnishings, pedestrian signals, parking, and other
components of public rights-of-way.

STATE

Senate Bill 743

SB 743, passed in 2013, resulted in several statewide CEQA changes. It required the California
Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) to establish new metrics for determining the
significance of transportation impacts of projects within transit priority areas (TPAs) and allows OPR
to extend use of the metrics beyond TPAs. OPR selected VMT as the preferred transportation impact
metric and applied their discretion to require its use statewide. This legislation also established that
aesthetic and parking effects of a residential, mixed-use residential, or employment center projects
on an infill site within a TPA are not significant impacts on the environment. The revised CEQA
Guidelines that implement this legislation became effective on December 28, 2018, and state that
vehicle LOS and similar measures related to delay shall not be used as the sole basis for determining
the significance of transportation impacts for land use projects and have applied statewide since
July 1, 2020.

The OPR “Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation Impacts in CEQA” (December 2018)
includes specifications for VMT methodology and recommendations for significance thresholds,
screening of project that may be presumed to have less than significant impacts, and mitigation.

3.14-8 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan

611



TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION 3.14

Screening criteria include:

e Small projects: The Technical Advisory concludes that, absent any information to the
contrary, projects that generate 110 trips per day or less may be assumed to cause a less-
than-significant transportation impact.

e Projects near transit stations: Projects located within % mile of an “existing major transit
stop” or an “existing stop along a high-quality transit corridor” would have a less-than-
significant impact on VMT.

e Affordable residential development: Projects consisting of a high percentage of affordable
housing may be assumed to cause a less-than-significant transportation impact on VMT
because they may improve jobs-housing balance and/or otherwise generate less VMT than
market-based units.

o Redevelopment projects: If a proposed redevelopment project leads to a net overall
decrease in VMT (when compared against the VMT of the existing land uses), the project
would lead to a less-than-significant transportation impact.

e Local-serving retail: Trip lengths may be shortened and VMT reduced by adding “local-
serving” retail opportunities that improve retail destination proximity. Page 17 of the
Technical Advisory generally describes retail development including stores less than 50,000
square feet as local-serving. In May 2020, OPR staff indicated during online webinars that
any retail building that is 50,000 square feet or less may be considered local-serving.

Other key guidance includes:

e VMT is the most appropriate metric to evaluate a project’s transportation impact.

e OPRrecommends tour- and trip-based travel models to estimate VMT, but ultimately defers
to local agencies to determine the appropriate tools.

e Lead agencies ultimately have the discretion to set or apply their own significance
thresholds, provided they are based on significant evidence.

e Cities and counties can still use measures of delay such as LOS for other plans, studies, or
network monitoring. However, according to CEQA section 15064.3, Determining the
Significance of Transportation Impacts, “effect on automobile delay shall not constitute a
significant environmental impact.”

California Air Resources Board Plans and Progress Reports

SCOPING PLAN-IDENTIFIED VMT REDUCTIONS AND RELATIONSHIP TO STATE CLIMATE GOALS

The California Air Resources Board (ARB) provides specific guidance for VMT thresholds in “Scoping
Plan-ldentified VMT Reductions and Relationship to State Climate Goals” (January 2019). This
document provides recommendations for VMT reduction thresholds that would be necessary to
achieve the state’s GHG reduction goals and acknowledges that the SCS targets alone are not
sufficient to meet climate goals. ARB concluded that a 14.3-percent reduction in total VMT per capita
and a 16.8 percent reduction in light-duty VMT per capita (over current conditions; 2015-2018) was
needed to meet these goals. Additionally, the OPR “Technical Advisory” cites this document as
support for the 15-percent reduction threshold.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.14-9

612



3.14 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

California Department of Transportation Guides

VEHICLE MILES TRAVELED-FOCUSED TRANSPORTATION IMPACT STUDY GUIDE

The Caltrans “Vehicle Miles Traveled-Focused Transportation Impact Study Guide” (TISG), dated
May 20, 2020, was prepared to provide guidance to Caltrans districts, lead agencies, tribal
governments, developers, and consultants regarding Caltrans’ review of VMT impact analysis for
land use projects and land use plans. Caltrans seeks to reduce single occupancy vehicle trips, provide
a safe transportation system, reduce per capita VMT, increase accessibility to destinations via
cycling, walking, carpooling, and transit, and reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. The TISG
notes that, for land use projects and plans, automobile delay is no longer considered a significant
impact on the environment under CEQA. Caltrans’ primary review focus for a land use project’s
transportation impacts is now VMT. The TISG generally endorses the OPR “Technical Advisory,”
including the thresholds in that document. Caltrans may review VMT thresholds, methodology, and
mitigations.

INTERIM LAND DEVELOPMENT AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVIEW (LDIGR) SAFETY REVIEW
PRACTITIONERS GUIDANCE

The Interim LDIGR Safety Review Practitioners Guidance (July 2020) was developed to provide
immediate direction about the safety review of the state highway system while final guidance is
being developed. This interim guidance does not establish thresholds of significance for determining
safety impacts under CEQA. The guidance notes that the significance of impacts should be
determined with careful judgment on the part of a public agency and based, to the greatest extent
possible, on scientific and factual data consistent with Caltrans’ CEQA guidance contained in
Caltrans’ Standard Environmental Reference. The guidance notes that District traffic safety staff will
use available data to determine if the proposed project may influence or contribute to locations
identified by traffic safety Investigations generated by network screening or initiated by the district.

REGIONAL

Glenn County Regional Transportation Plan

The current Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) produced by the Glenn County Local Transportation
Commission was adopted in 2020. The RTP serves as the backbone of transportation fiscal planning
by providing capital program planning for all regional, state, and federally funded projects in the
County. The RTP states that its focus is “developing a coordinated and balanced multi-modal
regional transportation system... The balance is achieved by considering investment and
improvements for moving people and goods across all modes including roads, transit, bicycle,
pedestrian, trucking, railroad, and aviation.” The RTP also demonstrates compliance with air quality
conformity requirements under the federal Clean Air Act.

Glenn County Active Transportation Plan

The 2019 Glenn County Active Transportation Plan (ATP) establishes goals and strategies for Glenn
County as it moves forward with improving walking and bicycling. The envisioned system builds
significantly upon a small system of existing on-street and off-street facilities throughout the County
with enhancements to connectivity, safety, and education programs. The Plan establishes goals,
identifies future infrastructure projects, and promotes support and educational programs.

3.14-10 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan

613



TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION 3.14

The plan includes the following goals:

e Connectivity: Improve bicycle and pedestrian access to community destinations within
Orland, Willows, and Hamilton City.

e Safety: Design and maintain bicycle and pedestrian facilities that are safe and accessible for
people of all ages and abilities.

e  Programs: Increase walking and bicycling through encouragement, education,
enforcement, and evaluation programs.

e Health: Improve health and enhance quality of life through improved access to and
increased use of bicycle and pedestrian facilities.

The Glenn County ATP includes important bicycle facility improvements in Willows such as Class Il
bike lanes on Villa Avenue, Laurel Street, and Tehama Street, as well as the closure of several
sidewalk gaps. The plan also includes plans to add crossing improvements such as new high-visibility
crosswalks and rectangular rapid flashing beacons.

LocAL

The City of Willows General Plan

The Willows General Plan is a long-range comprehensive planning document required by state law
to set policy and guide future growth, development, and conservation of resources. The last General
Plan Circulation Element adopted by the City in 1981 and simply includes a map of roadway
functional classifications. There were no stated goals or policies in the 1981 General Plan Circulation
Element.

Willows Design and Construction Standards

The Willows Design and Construction Standards (September 2017) provide minimum specifications
for improvements and private development projects to be accepted by the City for maintenance or
operation. Section 1 includes street design standards, including geometrics, structural
components, striping, and marking, and signing and barricades.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.14-11
614



3.14 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

3.14.3 IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES
METHODS OF ANALYSIS

The transportation impact analysis assesses how implementation of the proposed General Plan
would change the baseline conditions for the transportation system and whether those changes
would constitute a significant impact under CEQA. The transportation impact analysis methodology
includes a combination of quantitative and qualitative evaluations of the roadway, bicycle,
pedestrian, and transit components of the transportation system. All analysis presumes that future
background travel options and behaviors remain similar to current conditions and do not explicitly
account for potential changes associated with disruptive trends, emerging technologies, and
changes in travel choices.

THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE

For the purposes of this EIR, adoption and/or implementation of the proposed General Plan would
result in significant impacts under CEQA, if any of the following would occur:

e Conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines § 15064.3, subdivision (b)

e Conflict with a program, plan, ordinance, or policy addressing the circulation system,
including transit, roadway, bicycle, and pedestrian facilities

e Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or
dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)

e Result in inadequate emergency access

Vehicle Miles Traveled

Based on Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, the General Plan would result in a significant
transportation impact if it would conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines § 15064.3,
subdivision (b), relevant portions of which are copied below.

(b) Criteria for Analyzing Transportation Impacts.

(1) Land Use Projects.
Vehicle miles traveled exceeding an applicable threshold of significance may indicate a
significant impact. Projects that decrease vehicle miles traveled in the project area
compared to existing conditions should be presumed to have a less than significant
transportation impact.

(2) Transportation Projects.

Transportation projects that reduce, or have no impact on, vehicle miles traveled should be
presumed to cause a less than significant transportation impact. To the extent that such
impacts have already been adequately addressed at a programmatic level, such as in a
regional transportation plan EIR, a lead agency may tier from that analysis as provided in
Section 15152.

(3) Qualitative Analysis.
If existing models or methods are not available to estimate the vehicle miles traveled for the
particular project being considered, a lead agency may analyze the project's vehicle miles

3.14-12 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan

615



TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION 3.14

traveled qualitatively. Such a qualitative analysis would evaluate factors such as the
availability of transit, proximity to other destinations, etc.

(4) Methodology.

A lead agency has discretion to choose the most appropriate methodology to evaluate a
project's vehicle miles traveled, including whether to express the change in absolute terms,
per capita, per household or in any other measure.

The City of Willows has not adopted a quantitative VMT threshold, in part, because the city does not
have a method or model to estimate and forecast VMT. For purposes of this impact analysis, the city
has opted to rely on a qualitative evaluation method and threshold as allowed in CEQA Guidelines &
15064.3, subdivision (b)(3). In addition to the specific factors listed above, assessing potential VMT
impact significance considered the following guidance.

e Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation Impacts in CEQA (Technical Advisory),
California Governor's Office of Planning and Research (OPR) (December 2018).

e Scoping Plan Identified VMT Reductions and Relationship to State Climate Goals, California
Air Resources Board (2017)

This guidance sets a general expectation that land use projects should generate automobile VMT
per capita at a rate less than existing development. How much less ranges from 15-16.8 percent
below existing or baseline levels. The OPR guidance does recognize that thresholds may vary based
on land use context especially in rural counties. The specific recommendation for rural areas of non-
MPO counites is to determine thresholds on a case-by-case basis and to recognize that the small
towns in these counties tend to have lower VMT generation rates that isolate rural development.

Transit, Bicycles, and Pedestrians

Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines indicates that impacts may be significant if a project conflicts
with a program, plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit,
roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities. The proposed general plan would have a significant
impact on transit, bicycles, or pedestrians if it disrupts an existing transit, bicycle, or pedestrian
facility/service or would interfere with planned improvements to these transportation system
components contained in adopted policies, plans, or programs regarding these systems.

Hazards

Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines indicates that impacts may be significant if a project would
substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous
intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment). The proposed general plan would have
a significant impact on hazards if it would cause any inconsistencies with applicable transportation
design standards.

Emergency Access

Impacts may also be significant if a project results in inadequate emergency access. The proposed
general plan would have a significant impact on emergency access if it would cause any
inconsistencies with applicable transportation design standards or emergency response plans.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.14-13
616



3.14 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES

Impact 3.14-1: General Plan implementation may conflict or be
inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b)
(Significant and Unavoidable).

The City (and sphere of influence) is planned to grow to approximately 331 acres from 2020 to
buildout. Growth projections during this period comprise of 689 dwelling units, 207,829 square feet
of commercial (general and highway) development, 90,957 square feet of industrial (general and
light) development, 395,966 square feet of commercial/industrial combined use, and 23,083 square
feet of office development, as described in Chapter 2.0, Project Description. Planned growth in the
City is mostly on the periphery, specifically along state routes and interstate highways.

Based on the Proposed Land Use Map (Figure 2.0-2), the Proposed General Plan would result in a
similar or increased VMT per capita when compared to the existing (baseline) condition. This can be
concluded based on the general plan land use designations for new job centers, such as industrial
facilities and highway commercial being built on the periphery of town to the west, north, and south.
The newly designated growth areas for multi-family residential are similarly far from the central city,
though close to several job centers. As growth occurs on the periphery of the city, total VMT will
increase and vehicle trip lengths may lengthen causing higher VMT per capita levels than that of
existing development.

Furthermore, while the planned bike facilities and potential future transit improvements could
improve safety and mobility, they are unlikely to decrease VMT given the general layout of Willows.
Residents of Willows in the future will likely engage in similar travel patterns to existing residents
based on planned land use, roadways, and alternative modes of transportation in the City, resulting
in the absolute VMT of the City and increasing and the VMT per capita in Willows remaining similar
to baseline in the planning horizon.

While the proposed general plan land use pattern is likely to produce similar VMT per capita levels
as under existing conditions, the proposed general plan includes the following policies designed to
reduce vehicle travel and VMT.

GENERAL PLAN POLICIES AND ACTIONS THAT MINIMIZE POTENTIAL IMPACTS

LAND USE ELEMENT POLICIES

LU-1.1 Provide for a full range of land uses within the City that are conveniently located in proximity,
and provide for commercial, public, and quasi-public uses that support and enhance the livability of
neighborhoods.

LU-1.4 Encourage infill development and logical development patterns. The City should discourage
leap-frog development and undue conversion of open space and agricultural lands, while also
recognizing the Willows Urban limit line (established by Glenn County) to direct future development.

LU-2.7 Promote logical City boundaries and work with Glenn County to ensure and develop
complementary and compatible uses adjacent to Willows.

3.14-14 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan

617



TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION 3.14

LU-3.2 Encourage residential development to occur in a balanced and efficient pattern that reduces
sprawl, preserves open space, and creates convenient connections to other land uses.

CIRCULATION ELEMENT POLICIES

CIRC-1.3 Consider all modes of travel in planning, design, and construction of all transportation
projects to create safe, livable, and inviting environments for pedestrians, bicyclists, motorists, and
public transit users of all ages and capabilities.

CIRC-1.6 Consider all transportation improvements as opportunities to improve safety, access, and
mobility for all roadway users.

CIRC-2.1 Implement best practices to improve the pedestrian and bicycle environment.

CIRC-2.2 Consider walking and bicycling school access as a priority over vehicular movements when
any such conflicts occur.

CIRC-2.3 Coordinate pedestrian and bicycle facility improvements and pavement improvement
projects (e.g. repaving and restriping), to the greatest extent feasible and while taking into
consideration potential secondary effects.

CIRC-2.4 Ensure that residents have convenient transit service to employment centers, County and
City service centers, other government centers, and regional destinations (i.e., Sacramento
International Airport), as funding allows.

CIRC-2.5 To support bicycle, pedestrian, and transit usage, provide amenities including pedestrian-
scale lighting, bicycle parking, shade trees and landscaping, and bus shelters and benches.

CIRC-4.1 Support land use with increased densities and mixed uses, consistent with the Land Use
Element, to reduce vehicle miles traveled and promote the use of walking, biking, and transit.

CIRC-4.2 Encourage employers to provide programs for carpooling/transit/biking/walking subsidies,
bicycle facilities, ridesharing, telecommuting, and working at home.

CIRC-4.3 Monitor the deployment of new transportation technologies and services and develop
policies that implement best practices to ensure these technologies and services benefit the public
and the multimodal transportation system.

CIRCULATION ELEMENT ACTIONS

CIRC-1b Review and revise roadway standards for community and rural areas to ensure that the
standards are adequate to accommodate complete streets, addressing the following factors as
applicable: number of travel lanes, lane width, medians, drainage control, shoulder width, pavement
striping and markings, parking lanes, bike lanes, fire and emergency response standards, curb and
gutter design, landscaped strip, and sidewalk width.

CIRC-1c Where feasible, coordinate pedestrian and bicycle facility improvements with roadway
maintenance activities so that they can be implemented in a cost-effective manner.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.14-15
618



3.14 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

CIRC-2a Implement and build on recommendations for pedestrian and bicycle improvements
included in the Glenn County Active Transportation Plan (2019).

CIRC-2b Work with appropriate agencies to implement a regional bikeway system that connects the
City to other communities, recreation destinations, and scenic areas in Glenn County.

CIRC-2c Pursue funding for construction and maintenance of bikeways and sidewalks, including off-
road bikeways, where feasible.

CIRC-2d Add planned bicycle and pedestrian facilities in conjunction with road rehabilitation,
reconstruction, or re-striping projects whenever feasible.

CIRC-2e Partner with Glenn Ride and other regional transit providers to conduct regular service
reviews to advance convenient transit service to employment centers, County and City service
centers, other government centers, and regional destinations (i.e., Sacramento International
Airport), as funding allows.

CIRC-2qg Consider alternatives to conventional bus systems, such as smaller shuttle buses (micro-
transit), on-demand transit services, or transportation networking company services that connect
residential communities to regional activity centers with greater cost efficiency.

CIRC-4a Adopt VMT thresholds and screening criteria for environmental impact analysis. Review and
update those guidelines on a regular basis using updated data.

CIRC-4b Explore the feasibility of a VMT impact fee program to fund transportation demand
management strategies that are proven to reduce VMT.

CIRC-4c Require proposed development projects that could have a potentially significant VMT impact
to consider reasonable and feasible project modifications and other measures during the project
design and environmental review stage of project development that would reduce VMT effects in a
manner consistent with state guidance on VMT reduction.

While the policies are supportive of actions that could dampen VMT growth, they do not contain
sufficient changes to the built environment, the cost of using vehicles, or the convenience of using
vehicles such that VMT per capita rates would be reduced below existing levels.

When making a final VMT impact determination, other available evidence related to VMT trends
should be also be considered. This impact analysis identified the following two relevant studies.

e 2018 Progress Report, California’s Sustainable Communities and Climate Protection Act,
California Air Resources Board, November 2018 (referred to as the Progress Report in the
remainder of this document).

e California Air Resources Board Improved Program Measurement Would Help California Work
More Strategically to Meet Its Climate Change Goals, Auditor of the State of California,
February 2021 (referred to as the Audit Report in the remainder of this document).

The Progress Report measures the effect of SB 375 revealing that VMT and GHG per capita increased
in California between 2010 and 2016 and are trending upward (see Chart 3.14-3 below).

3.14-16 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan

619



TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION 3.14

CHART 3.14-3: VMT/CAPITA TRENDS

Statewide CO:z and Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) Per Capita Trend with
Respect to Anticipated Performance of Current SB 375 SCSs?

10%

& 5
S o%
g 2000 2005 2010 2014 2020 2025 2030 2035
g > _ CO, per capita
£ -10% ]
-y
2 -15% Anticipated SCS
= CO; Performance ®
= -20%
a
!:
& -25%
-30%

Source: CDTFA, U.S.EIA, U.5.EPA, CARBE

* CO:and VMT calculated based on California Department of Tax and Fee Administration (CDTFA) gasoline fuel
sales data.

The Audit Report is a more recent assessment of ARB’s GHG reduction programs, which also found
that VMT and its associated GHG emissions were trending upward through 2018. Per the audit, the
state is not on track to achieve 2030 GHG reduction goals, and emissions from transportation have
not been declining.

The evidence from these two reports suggests greater action on the part of the state may be needed
to achieve the state’s GHG (and VMT) reduction goals. Without further action by the state to
discourage vehicle travel (i.e., increasing the cost of driving) while reducing the barriers or
constraints that prevent more efficient use of vehicles and greater use of transit, walking, and
bicycling, VMT trends are unlikely to reverse.

Therefore, this impact is significant.

MITIGATION

Potential VMT reduction strategies contained in the Handbook for Analyzing Greenhouse Gas
Emission Reductions, Assessing Climate Vulnerabilities, and Advancing Health and Equity (California
Air Pollution Control Officers Association, 2021) were reviewed for potential application to the
updated general plan. While 28 specific strategies were identified, their use in a rural/suburban
setting would diminish their potential effectiveness because of the long trip distances between land
uses. Further, the land use element is reflective of the city’s desired land use pattern to accomplish
other objectives of the general plan and to reflect the market realities of land use development
demand in the city. Nevertheless, 16 of the strategies are applicable at the project site scale, under

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.14-17
620



3.14 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

the general categories of land use changes, trip reduction programs, parking or road
pricing/management, and clean vehicles/fuels improvements. Policy CIRC-4c above would require
the city to potentially condition projects to implement feasible strategies from the list of 16 on a
project-by-project basis. This would help lessen VMT growth but not to a level sufficient to reduce
this impact to less than significant.

CONCLUSION

The implementation of the proposed General Plan would likely contribute to land use development
that generates VMT per capita in excess of the levels necessary to meet State GHG reduction goals.
Consistent with Policy CIRC-4c, the city will require new land use development projects to reduce
VMT through feasible CAPCOA on-site VMT reduction strategies. Although larger changes in the
proposed General Plan land use element could potentially reduce VMT further, those changes would
also affect the achievement of other goals the City seeks to achieve with the General Plan. VMT
reduction also depends on factors such as demographic change, household preferences for housing
types and locations, the cost of fuel, and the competitiveness of regional transit relative to driving,
which relates to congestion along vehicular commute routes that are not under the City's
jurisdiction. Therefore, this impact is considered significant and unavoidable.

This impact finding will generally govern future development projects consistent with the general
plan. As such, the city plans to rely on CEQA Section 15183 to relieve subsequent land use projects
of having to perform new VMT analysis. Instead, the city will require project developers to identify
feasible CAPCOA on-site VMT reduction strategies to incorporate into the project design to lessen
VMT growth.

Impact 3.14-2: General Plan implementation may conflict with a program,
plan, policy or ordinance addressing the circulation system, including
transit, bicycle, and pedestrian facilities (Less than Significant).

Implementation of the proposed general plan will not result in modifications to the transit, bicycle,
or pedestrian network that would disrupt existing facilities/services or interfere with the
implementation of planned facilities/services contained in adopted programs, plans, policies, or
ordinances.

Several policies, including CIR-2.1 “Implement best practices to improve the pedestrian and bicycle
environment” and CIR-2.5 “To support bicycle, pedestrian, and transit usage, provide amenities
including pedestrian-scale lighting, bicycle parking, shade trees and landscaping, and bus shelters
and benches” will help facilitate the development of improved facilities for walking, bicycling, and
transit use.

Likewise, implementation of the proposed general plan would enable the City to improve bicycle
and pedestrian programs and infrastructure consistent with the Glenn County Active Transportation
Plan. The proposed general plan also contains additional policies and implementing actions that
support accessibility and the provision of amenities to bicyclists and pedestrians (applicable policies
and implementing actions are listed below).

3.14-18 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan

621



TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION 3.14

GENERAL PLAN POLICIES AND ACTIONS THAT MINIMIZE POTENTIAL IMPACTS

LAND USE ELEMENT POLICIES
LU-5.1 Coordinate with regional agencies on planning, transportation, economic development and
sustainability issues.

LU-5.2 Collaborate with Glenn County and other area jurisdictions on issues of mutual interest.

LAND USE ELEMENT ACTIONS

LU-5a Review public and private development proposals and land use changes within the City’s
Sphere of Influence (SOI) and Planning Area for consistency within the General Plan.

LU-5b Pursue a cooperative collaborative relationship during development of long range plans and
review of development proposals that may impact the City. Coordinate with in order to ensure that
planning and development decisions in adjacent Glenn County lands do not result in adverse impacts
to Willows.

CIRCULATION ELEMENT POLICIES

CIRC-1.1 Provide a roadway network that is consistent with the planned improvements shown in
Circulation Element Map (Figure CIRC-1).

CIRC-1.2 Roadway classifications shall be built to the standards defined by the Federal Highway
Administration (FHWA) and Caltrans.

CIRC-2.1 Implement best practices to improve the pedestrian and bicycle environment.

CIRC-2.2 Consider walking and bicycling school access as a priority over vehicular movements when
any such conflicts occur.

CIRC-2.3 Coordinate pedestrian and bicycle facility improvements and pavement improvement
projects (e.g. repaving and restriping), to the greatest extent feasible and while taking into
consideration potential secondary effects.

CIRC-2.4 Ensure that residents have convenient transit service to employment centers, County and
City service centers, other government centers, and regional destinations (i.e., Sacramento
International Airport), as funding allows.

CIRC-2.5 To support bicycle, pedestrian, and transit usage, provide amenities including pedestrian-
scale lighting, bicycle parking, shade trees and landscaping, and bus shelters and benches.

CIRCULATION ELEMENT ACTIONS

CIRC-1b Review and revise roadway standards for community and rural areas to ensure that the
standards are adequate to accommodate complete streets, addressing the following factors as
applicable: number of travel lanes, lane width, medians, drainage control, shoulder width, pavement
striping and markings, parking lanes, bike lanes, fire and emergency response standards, curb and
gutter design, landscaped strip, and sidewalk width.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.14-19
622



3.14 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

CIRC-2a Implement and build on recommendations for pedestrian and bicycle improvements
included in the Glenn County Active Transportation Plan (2019).

CIRC-2b Work with appropriate agencies to implement a regional bikeway system that connects the
City to other communities, recreation destinations, and scenic areas in Glenn County.

CIRC-3a Adopt, maintain, and enforce a truck route map that identifies key goods movement
corridors and ensures goods movement needs are adequately served while reducing impacts to other
uses.

CIRC-3b Prominently sign all truck routes in accordance with the California Manual on Uniform
Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD).

CIRC-3c Farticipate in intergovernmental activities related to regional and sub-regional
transportation planning to advance travel efficiency of goods entering the region.

CIRC-3d Railroad crossings of State and county roads shall be marked, signalized, and gated where
warranted by traffic volumes and required by the California Public Utility Commission (PUC).

CONCLUSION

Implementation of the proposed general plan will not disrupt existing transit, bicycle, or pedestrian
facilities/services and its policies and actions listed above will help facilitate planned improvements
such as those in the Glenn County ATP). Therefore, this impact is less than significant.

Impact 3.14-3: General Plan implementation may increase hazards due to
a design feature or incompatible uses (Less than Significant).

The proposed general plan would require any modifications to the existing transportation system to
comply with applicable design standards. These design standards are created to provide users
common expectations when using the network and to minimize the potential for collisions. Further,
the proposed land use map and policies below emphasize land use compatibility and prioritizing
road safety, which would serve to reduce potential conflicts between users of the transportation
system. Therefore, the proposed general plan would not substantially increase hazards due to a
design feature or incompatible uses.

GENERAL PLAN POLICIES AND ACTIONS THAT MINIMIZE POTENTIAL IMPACTS

LAND USE ELEMENT POLICIES
LU-2.1 Promote high quality design and site planning that is compatible with surrounding
development, public spaces, and natural resources.

LU-2.2 Prohibit the establishment or encroachment of incompatible uses. Where new residential
development is proposed near incompatible uses, such as industrial or intensive agricultural lands,
ensure proper setback and buffer requirements are provided to reduce operational restrictions on
industrial and agricultural users. Setback and buffer requirements shall be placed on the residential
developments when proposed near existing industrial and agriculture uses.

3.14-20 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan

623



TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION 3.14

LU-2.3 Require new development that is located within or immediately adjacent to existing
residential neighborhoods to be compatible and/or well integrated with the existing residential
neighborhoods.

LU-2.4 Incorporate opens spaces and or transitional land uses as buffers between land uses which
are potentially incompatible. For example, this could include commercial uses as a buffer between
industrial and residential areas and transportation and rail corridors.

LU-2.5 Encourage non-conforming uses to redevelop as conforming uses.

LU-2.6 In considering land use change requests, consider factors such as compatibility with the
surrounding uses, privacy, noise, and changes in traffic levels on residential streets.

LU-2.8 Ensure that development within the Willows Airport Influence Area is consistent with the
compatible uses identified in the Project Review Guidelines for the Airport Land Use Commission.

LU-2.11 Encourage new development projects to incorporate public safety measures into project
designs. Such measures may include, but are not limited to: crosswalks, exterior lighting, windows
oriented towards the street, and other measures to prevent crime and promote safety through
Environmental Design approaches.

LU-3.2 Encourage residential development to occur in a balanced and efficient pattern that reduces
sprawl, preserves open space, and creates convenient connections to other land uses.

LU-6.3 Require all development projects to mitigate their infrastructure service impacts or
demonstrate that the City’s infrastructure, public services, and utilities can accommodate the
increased demand for services, and that service levels for existing users will not be degraded or
impaired.

LU-6.5 Design services and infrastructure to serve existing and planned land uses. Actions that will
induce growth beyond planned levels are prohibited.

LAND USE ELEMENT ACTIONS
LU-2a Through the development review and permit process, screen development proposals for land
use compatibility, including conformance with existing and planned development.

LU-2b Update the Willows Municipal Code to include development standards for setback and buffer
requirements for new residential development adjacent to industrial and agricultural land uses.

LU-2f Review development projects, consistent with the requirements of the California
Environmental Quality Act and other applicable laws, to identify potential impacts associated with
aesthetics, agriculture, air quality, circulation, community character, natural and cultural resources,
greenhouse gases, public health and safety, water quality and supply, public services and facilities,
and utilities and to mitigate of adverse impacts to the maximum extent that is feasible and practical.

LU-3b Seek funding for neighborhood improvement programs designed to stabilize and enhance the
quality of existing neighborhoods. Such improvements may include, but are not limited to sidewalk

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.14-21
624



3.14 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

upgrade and repair, street tree programs, street lighting, signage, trash collectors, bus stop shelters
and benches and similar improvements to the public areas.

LU-3c Continue to upgrade and provide infrastructure improvements that supports residential
neighborhoods and development opportunities as funding is available.

LU-4b Develop streetscape design and improvement plans for the Wood Street and Tehama Street
corridors. These plans should include standards and criteria for branding, monument signage,
lighting, landscaping, etc. Recognizing that Wood Street is owned and maintained by Caltrans, the
City shall coordinate with Caltrans to craft and implement design improvements along Wood Street.

LU-4c Update the City’s Design Guidelines applicable to the General Commercial land use
designation. The updated guidelines should be streamlined, modernized, and provide concise and
clear guidance to property owners. The guidelines should include specific standards for the Wood
Street and Tehama Street corridors in order to promote these key corridors as gateway entries into
the City.

LU-6a As part of the development review process, determine the potential impacts of development
and infrastructure projects on public infrastructure, and ensure that new development contributes
its fair share toward necessary on and off-site infrastructure.

LU-6b Ensure that infrastructure is adequately sized to accommodate the proposed development
and, if applicable, allow for extensions to future developments.

CIRCULATION ELEMENT POLICIES

CIRC-1.2 Roadway classifications shall be built to the standards defined by the Federal Highway
Administration (FHWA) and Caltrans.

CIRC-1.3 Consider all modes of travel in planning, design, and construction of all transportation
projects to create safe, livable, and inviting environments for pedestrians, bicyclists, motorists, and
public transit users of all ages and capabilities.

CIRC-1.4 Implement a Safe Systems approach to designing roadways for all users. A Safe Systems
approach recognizes that humans make mistakes on the road and focuses on vehicle or roadway
design and operational changes rather than behavioral changes to create safe streets. The Safe
Systems approach integrates the needs of all roadway users into a transportation system.

CIRC-1.5 Ensure all City roads are maintained and repaired in a timely fashion.

CIRC-1.6 Consider all transportation improvements as opportunities to improve safety, access, and
mobility for all roadway users.

CIRC-2.1 Implement best practices to improve the pedestrian and bicycle environment.

CIRC-2.2 Consider walking and bicycling school access as a priority over vehicular movements when
any such conflicts occur.

3.14-22 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan

625



TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION 3.14

CIRC-3.3 Require new industrial development to pay a fair share toward improvements required to
accommodate heavy vehicles, including increased pavement wear.

CIRC-3.4 Minimize potential conflicts between trucks and pedestrian, bicycle, transit, and vehicle
access and circulation on streets with truck travel.

CIRC-3.6 Support safety improvements at current at-grade rail crossings.

CIRCULATION ELEMENT ACTIONS

CIRC-1a Pursue all available sources of funding and protect existing sources for the development,
improvement, and maintenance of the existing roadway system.

CIRC-1b Review and revise roadway standards for community and rural areas to ensure that the
standards are adequate to accommodate complete streets, addressing the following factors as
applicable: number of travel lanes, lane width, medians, drainage control, shoulder width, pavement
striping and markings, parking lanes, bike lanes, fire and emergency response standards, curb and
gutter design, landscaped strip, and sidewalk width.

CIRC-1d Conduct a Local Roadway Safety Plan with the goal of reducing traffic fatalities and serious
injuries on public roads and to support funding for safety improvements. The plan may consider
collision history; vehicle, bicycle, and pedestrian volumes; vehicle speeds; and other improvements.

CIRC-1e Design roadway infrastructure that protects human life when collisions happen on City
roads.

CIRC-1f Develop a Pavement Management System that documents all roads needing pavement and
prioritizes roads for renovation based on a pavement condition index.

CIRC-1g Continually seek opportunities to fund maintenance of the circulation network, including the
active pursuit by the Parks and Public Works Division of a wide range of grant sources administered
by Caltrans and other agencies.

CIRC-2a Implement and build on recommendations for pedestrian and bicycle improvements
included in the Glenn County Active Transportation Plan (2019).

CIRC-2c Pursue funding for construction and maintenance of bikeways and sidewalks, including off-
road bikeways, where feasible.

CIRC-2d Add planned bicycle and pedestrian facilities in conjunction with road rehabilitation,
reconstruction, or re-striping projects whenever feasible.

CIRC-3b Prominently sign all truck routes in accordance with the California Manual on Uniform Traffic
Control Devices (MUTCD).

CIRC-3d Railroad crossings of State and county roads shall be marked, signalized, and gated where
warranted by traffic volumes and required by the California Public Utility Commission (PUC). CIRC-3e
Pursue funding for improved gates at current at-grade rail crossings.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.14-23
626



3.14 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

SAFETY ELEMENT POLICIES

SA-3.4 Support local and regional disaster planning and emergency response planning efforts, and
look for opportunities to collaborate and share resources with other municipalities in the region.

SA-4.2 Emphasize the use of physical site planning as an effective means of enhancing safety and
preventing crime. Open spaces, landscaping, parking lots, parks, play areas and other public spaces
should be designed with maximum feasible visual exposure to community residents.

SAFETY ELEMENT ACTIONS

SA-3e Develop and annually update an emergency contact list and emergency response information
on the City’s website. The information should include emergency access routes, available emergency
resources, and contact information for emergency responders.

SA-3f As part of the development review process, consult with the fire department in order to ensure
that the project provides adequate emergency access.

SA-4a As part of the development review process, consult with the Sheriff’s Department in order to
ensure that the project does not impair the provision of law enforcement services through
inappropriate site design. The use of physical site planning as an effective means of preventing crime,
including lighting, visibility, and video surveillance requirements shall be determined by the
Department, where applicable.

SA-4e Seek funding from State, Federal, and other sources to assist in emergency management
planning, including community education and outreach describing public procedures and evacuation
routes in the event of an emergency or natural disaster

SA-4q Review and require all projects to adhere to Municipal Code requirements to ensure adequate
safety services. These include but are not limited to Chapter 19.05 (Impact Fee Ordinance), which
requires development impact fees to be charged to fund improvements to the City’s infrastructure.
Chapter 2.25 (Fire Department) describes the duties of the municipal fire department and the
responsibilities of the fire chief in determining imminent health and safety hazards, and the powers
associated with such a determination. Chapter 17.25 (Improvements) describes the requirements of
a subdivider to provide and connect water mains and fire hydrants to Cal Water’s water system.

CONCLUSION

Any transportation network modifications associated with the general plan will comply with
applicable design standards and the proposed general plan’s policies and actions related to land use,
circulation, and safety. The combination of these standards, policies, and actions is to reduce the
potential for future collisions and to decrease the potential harm to people when traveling.
Therefore, this impact is considered less than significant.

Impact 3.14-4: General Plan implementation may cause inadequate
emergency access (Less than Significant).

Emergency access to individual land use parcels is typically assessed at the project level and the
proposed general plan contains policies and actions (listed below) to address the needs of

3.14-24 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan

627



TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION 3.14

emergency responders and requires consultation with the fire and sheriff departments during
development review. For larger area responses, the proposed general plan relies on close
coordination and support with local and regional agencies. Glenn County maintains an Operational
Area Emergency Operations Plan (OA EOP)3 and it provides the overall emergency response
framework for an integrated response within the County and the incorporated cities of Orland and
Willows. The proposed general plan would not interfere or create inconsistencies with this plan, but
the plan’s population and employment growth could require updates or modifications to this plan
over time.

GENERAL PLAN POLICIES AND ACTIONS THAT MINIMIZE POTENTIAL IMPACTS

SAFETY ELEMENT POLICIES

SA-3.4 Support local and regional disaster planning and emergency response planning efforts, and
look for opportunities to collaborate and share resources with other municipalities in the region.

SA-4.2 Emphasize the use of physical site planning as an effective means of enhancing safety and
preventing crime. Open spaces, landscaping, parking lots, parks, play areas and other public spaces
should be designed with maximum feasible visual exposure to community residents.

SAFETY ELEMENT ACTIONS

SA-3e Develop and annually update an emergency contact list and emergency response information
on the City’s website. The information should include emergency access routes, available emergency
resources, and contact information for emergency responders.

SA-3f As part of the development review process, consult with the fire department in order to ensure
that the project provides adequate emergency access.

SA-4a As part of the development review process, consult with the Sheriff’s Department in order to
ensure that the project does not impair the provision of law enforcement services through
inappropriate site design. The use of physical site planning as an effective means of preventing crime,
including lighting, visibility, and video surveillance requirements shall be determined by the
Department, where applicable.

SA-4e Seek funding from State, Federal, and other sources to assist in emergency management
planning, including community education and outreach describing public procedures and evacuation
routes in the event of an emergency or natural disaster

SA-4q Review and require all projects to adhere to Municipal Code requirements to ensure adequate
safety services. These include but are not limited to Chapter 19.05 (Impact Fee Ordinance), which
requires development impact fees to be charged to fund improvements to the City’s infrastructure.
Chapter 2.25 (Fire Department) describes the duties of the municipal fire department and the
responsibilities of the fire chief in determining imminent health and safety hazards, and the powers

3 https://www.countyofglenn.net/dept/sheriff/office-emergency-services/response-plans

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.14-25
628


https://www.countyofglenn.net/dept/sheriff/office-emergency-services/response-plans

3.14 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

associated with such a determination. Chapter 17.25 (Improvements) describes the requirements of
a subdivider to provide and connect water mains and fire hydrants to Cal Water’s water system.

Neither the city or the county has a travel demand model capable of forecasting travel time changes
associated with new growth, which presents some uncertainty about how the effect that new
growth will have on emergency access, response times, and evacuation times. While it is possible
that increased development under the general plan would increase traffic and delays that could
affect emergency response and evacuation times, following the plan policies and actions listed
above should provide for adequate service. Therefore, this impact is less than significant.

CONCLUSION

The proposed general plan policies and actions should not result in a change or deterioration of
emergency access and response times given the population and employment growth projected in
Willows. Therefore, this impact is considered less than significant.

3.14-26 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan

629



=
r | =
| GreenS ! 3
I reen St { S
| — -
|
) French St ':
| !
| 1
.'_ W Wood St i
@ < !
NS < I
! £ EWalnutst !
S /
A W Sycamore St T //
A L k= /s
gl2) 2 z
W Laurel St EH E ’/
=) s
sL)
= o
= £ slalal= /
= = glElsle /
2 5] SLELSLS /
R i = S1Zz|l512
WILLOWS hweedarst |5 21z121% /
GLENN COUNTY — ]
AIRPORT Eim St % //
+
2 Rd53
T
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
\
\ |
\ |
\ = |
\ Y |
\ g |
\ = 1
\ =
\ :
\\
CountyRd 57 > o :
—— ]
Functional Classification == Qther Principal Arterial Minor Collector
e |nterstate == Minor Arterial Local

=== QOther Freeway or Expressway Major Collector

Figure 3.14-1
Willows Roadway System and Functional Classification

630




3.14 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

This page left intentionally blank.

3.14-28 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan

631



Park

and
Ride
=
————————————— -3 E
! =
! E
. . Green St A
\
5 . /*
French St |
|
1
W Wood St l ile
— S —— l
--! \\ 2 b b | \
! oo £ EWaliutSt 1
| air § /
N 3 I‘ WSycamoreSt. o h o //
\ o . . Al 2 7
\ 252 7,
\ W Laurel St 22 & L/
\ N
\ 2 o oy
WILLOWS - \ = = S ISTETH //
= = S| =2 &
GLENN COUNTY -2, E PIR-IRIS- /
AIRPORT WedarSt |« SNS|A | //
:—
A N HmSt 3/
\ A /
\ g/
\ rsr
\ =
\ . 2 Rd53
b Willows — — == |
\ |
\ |
\ I
\\ i
\ |
\ |
\ |
\ 1
\\ |
\ |
\ |
\ |
\ = 1
\ 8i |
\ g I
\ =) |
\\ = |
So |
CountyRd 57 ~_ !
e —m——————— |
7 —
f |
!
| |
|
l— -]
®  Bus Stop Bike Facilities Airport Boundary
GlennRide eeeee (lass Il Bike Lane

=== Bus Route

=== Express Route

Figure 3.14-2
Bikeways, Transit Service, and Airports

632




3.14 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

This page left intentionally blank.

3.14-30 Draft Environmental Impact Report — Willows General Plan

633



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS  3.15

Utilities are critical to providing safe drinking water, disposal and treatment of wastewater (sewage),
stormwater drainage, and solid waste disposal. This section provides a background discussion of the
utility systems in Willows including water supplies, wastewater, storm drainage, and solid waste.
This section is organized with an existing setting, regulatory setting, and impact analysis.

No Notice of Preparation (NOP) comments were received regarding this environmental topic.

3.15.1 WATER SUPPLIES
KEY TERMS

Acre feet: The volume of one acre of water to a depth of one foot. Each acre-foot of water is equal
to approximately 325,851.4 gallons.

BGS: Below ground surface.
GPD: Gallons per day.
GPM: Gallons per minute.

Groundwater: Water that is underground and below the water table, as opposed to surface water,
which flows across the ground surface. Water beneath the earth’s surface fills the spaces in soil,
gravel, or rock formations. Pockets of groundwater are often called “aquifers” and are the source of
drinking water for a large percentage of the population in the United States. Groundwater is often
extracted using wells which pump the water out of the ground and up to the surface. Groundwater
is naturally replenished by surface water from precipitation, streams, and rivers when this recharge
reaches the water table.

MG: Million gallons
MGD: Million gallons per day

Surface water: Water collected on the ground or from a stream, river, lake, wetland, or ocean.
Surface water is replenished naturally through precipitation, but is lost naturally through
evaporation and seepage into soil.

WATER DEMANDS

Actual water uses in 2020 by customer category is shown in Table 3.15-1. Total system demand in
2020 was 1,316 AF. District water use in 2020 was strongly affected by the Drought Emergency
Regulation adopted by the State Water Resources Control Board in May of 2015 (SWRCB Resolution
No. 2015-0032). Among other things, the Drought Emergency Regulation mandated urban retail
water suppliers reduce potable water use between June of 2015 and February of 2016 by percentage
amounts specified by the State Water Resources Control Board. The Willows District was ordered
to reduce potable water use by 28 percent over this period relative to use over the same period in
2013. Between June and December 2015, water use in Willows was 31.2 percent less than water
use over the same period in 2013.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-1

634



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

TABLE 3.15-1: DEMANDS FOR POTABLE AND RAW WATER - ACTUAL

Use Type 2020 ACTUAL LEVEL OF WATER DELIVERED
VoLUME (AF)
Single Family 786
Multi-Family 98
Commercial 225
Institutional/Governmental 63
Other 5
Losses 139
Total 1,316
NOTES:

(A) VOLUMES ARE IN UNITS OF AF.
(B) REAL AND APPARENT LOSSES.
SOURCE: CALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE 2020 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN - WILLOWS DISTRICT

Residential customers account for approximately 67 percent of total water deliveries in the Willows
District, most of which (786 AF) is associated with single-family water use. Commercial uses in 2020
totaled 225 AF, and Institutional/Governmental uses accounted for approximately 63 AF.
Additionally, 139 AF was attributed to system losses in 2020.

WATER SUPPLIES

WATER SUPPLIERS

California Water Service Company (Cal Water) - Willows

Cal Water is an investor-owned public utility supplying water service to 1.7 million Californians
through 435,000 connections. Its 24 separate water systems serve 63 communities from Chico in
the North to the Palos Verdes Peninsula in Southern California. California Water Service Group, Cal
Water’s parent company, is also serving communities in Washington, New Mexico and Hawaii.

Cal Water incorporated in 1926 and has provided water service to the Willows community
since 1927. As described in the Districts 2015 Urban Water Management Plan the number
of municipal connections in 2015 for the City of Willows was 2,371 service connections.

The City of Willows Water Department owns and operates a very small water system south
of the District Cal Water boundary in the southernmost portion of the city of Willows.
Additionally, some of the parks within the City are currently served by City owned irrigation
wells.

The Cal Water Willows District currently provides groundwater to the Willows service area. The
District does not currently have surface water rights to support a conjunctive use. Water delivered
by the District comes from local groundwater. The District operates seven groundwater wells, two
storage tanks, and 36 miles of pipeline.

3.15-2 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

635



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 3.15

WATER SUPPLIES

Groundwater

Groundwater is the sole source of water supply for the Willows District. The groundwater used by
the Willows District is extracted from the Colusa Subbasin which underlies the District. The District
has a total of seven wells (four active, three standby) located within the District service area.

There are two surface storage structures, enabling the groundwater wells to pump to storage during
non-peak demand periods and provide peak day demand. The District has sufficient production
capacity to supply all of the District’s current annual average day and maximum day demand.

As noted above, groundwater is the only source of supply for the Willows District. Table 3.15-2 lists
the amount of groundwater pumped by Cal Water over the past five years. The available
groundwater supply has been sufficient to meet all of the District’s demands in the past five years
and all prior years.

TABLE 3.15-2: GROUNDWATER VOLUME PUMPED

LOCATION OR BASIN GROUNDWATER VVOLUME PUMPED (AF)

NAME 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Colusa Subbasin 1,037 1,154 1,152 1,147 1,316
NOTES:

(A) VOLUMES ARE IN UNITS OF AF.

(B) THE CoLUSA SUBBASIN IS NOT ADJUDICATED, AND THE PROJECTED GROUNDWATER SUPPLY VOLUMES ARE NOT INTENDED TO AND DO NOT
DETERMINE, LIMIT OR REPRESENT CAL WATER’S WATER RIGHTS OR MAXIMUM PUMPING VOLUMES. ANY DETERMINATION OF CAL WATER’S
WATER RIGHTS, AS AN OVERLYING OWNER, APPROPRIATOR, MUNICIPAL WATER PURVEYOR OR OTHERWISE, IS BEYOND THE SCOPE OF THIS REPORT
AND THE UWMP STATUTES AND REGULATIONS.

SOURCE: CALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE 2020 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN - WILLOWS DISTRICT

Surface Water

Cal Water does not impound or divert surface water as a means to meet demands in the Willows
District.

Stormwater

There are no plans to divert stormwater for beneficial uses in the Willows District.

Wastewater and Recycled Water

The recycling of wastewater potentially offers several potential benefits to Cal Water and its
customers. Perhaps the greatest of these benefits is to help maintain a sustainable groundwater
supply either through direct recharge, or by reducing potable supply needs by utilizing recycled
water for appropriate uses (e.g., landscape irrigation) now being served by potable water. Currently,
however, no wastewater is recycled for direct reuse within the Willows District.

The Willows Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) is operated by the City of Willows (City) and
provides wastewater treatment service for the Willows District service area.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-3

636



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

PROJECTED POTABLE WATER DEMANDS AND SUPPLY

Projected water demands in the CalWater-Willows service area by customer category through 2045
are shown in Table 3.15-3. Future demands are estimated as the product of future services and
expected water use per service. Future services are based on historical growth rates in the District
and planned development. Single- and multi-family residential services were projected in the UWMP
in the near-term using existing development plans. For the longer-term, the historical growth rate
for the last 10 and 5 years, respectively, were used. The projected average annual growth rate in
commercial service is approximately 3 percent. No growth in industrial services was assumed in the
forecast. Institutional services are assumed to decline. The projected average annual growth rate in
services across all customer categories is approximately 1 percent. Projected water uses in Table
3.15-3 are predicated on unrestricted demands under normal weather conditions.

TABLE 3.15-3 DEMANDS FOR POTABLE AND RAW WATER - PROJECTED

- PROJECTED WATER USE (AF)

2025 2030 2035 2040 2045
Single Family 849 922 924 926 933
Multi-Family 103 101 99 99 99
Commercial 384 425 422 624 622
Institutional/Governmental 62 61 60 59 59
Other 4 4 4 4 4
Landscape 0 0 0 49 49
Losses 125 105 106 115 116
Total 1,527 1,617 1,615 1,876 1,881

NOTES:

(A) VOLUMES ARE IN UNITS OF AF.
(B) REAL AND APPARENT LOSSES.

SOURCE: CALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE 2020 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN - WILLOWS DISTRICT

Projected water supplies in the CalWater-Willows service area through 2045 are shown in Table
3.15-4. The City’s 2020 UWMP presents an analysis of the availability of groundwater supply for the
District based on historical groundwater use and review of relevant assessments conducted by the
CGA and GGA GSAs as part of GSP development to date. Based on the available information, the
available groundwater supply is expected to be sufficient to meet the projected future demands of
the District in normal and multiple dry year periods through 2045.

TABLE 3.15-4 SUPPLIES FOR POTABLE AND RAW WATER — PROJECTED

PROJECTED WATER SUPPLY (AF)
WATER SuPPLY
2025 2030 2035 2040 2045
Groundwater 1,527 1,617 1,615 1,876 1,881
NOTES:

(A) VOLUMES ARE IN UNITS OF AF.
(B) THE COLUSA SUBBASIN IS NOT ADJUDICATED, AND THE PROJECTED GROUNDWATER SUPPLY VOLUMES ARE NOT INTENDED TO AND DO NOT
DETERMINE, LIMIT OR REPRESENT CAL WATER’S WATER RIGHTS OR MAXIMUM PUMPING VOLUMES. ANY DETERMINATION OF CAL WATER’S

3.15-4 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

637



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 3.15

WATER RIGHTS, AS AN OVERLYING OWNER, APPROPRIATOR, MUNICIPAL WATER PURVEYOR OR OTHERWISE, IS BEYOND THE SCOPE OF THIS REPORT
AND THE UWMP STATUTES AND REGULATIONS.
SOURCE: CALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE 2020 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN - WILLOWS DISTRICT

As described in the District’'s UWMP, the projected supply and demand totals match. As discussed
above, groundwater will be used to serve all demand through 2045, and the reasonably available
volume of groundwater supply is anticipated to match demands through 2045 in each water year.
Water supply and demand patterns change during normal, single dry, and multi dry years. Cal Water
has relied on the demand modeling described to forecast demands for normal, single dry and
multiple dry years. As described in the District’'s UWMP, it is assumed that Cal Water’s groundwater
supply for the Willows District will be able to serve those demands.

WATER DISTRIBUTION

The City of Willows domestic water is supplied by the California Water Service Company except for
a small area on the south side of Willows where water is supplied by the City. The City’s small water
system serves the property south of Road 53.

The District is owned and operated by California Water Service Company (Cal Water), an investor-
owned water utility regulated by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC).

The District currently operates seven wells, two storage tanks, and 36 miles of pipeline to pump and
delivers approximately one million gallons of local groundwater per day. The District delivers water
to residential, commercial, industrial, and governmental customers. Residential customers account
for most of the District’s service connections and nearly three-quarters of its water demands.

REGULATORY SETTING-WATER SUPPLIES

STATE

California Department of Health Services

The Department of Health Services, Division of Drinking Water and Environmental Management,
oversees the Drinking Water Program. The Drinking Water Program regulates public water systems
and certifies drinking water treatment and distribution operators. It provides support for small
water systems and for improving their technical, managerial, and financial capacity. It provides
subsidized funding for water system improvements under the State Revolving Fund (“SRF”) and
Proposition 50 programs. The Drinking Water Program also oversees water recycling projects,
permits water treatment devices, supports and promotes water system security, and oversees the
Drinking Water Treatment and Research Fund for MTBE and other oxygenates.

Consumer Confidence Report Requirements

California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 22, Chapter 15, Article 20 requires all public water systems
to prepare a Consumer Confidence Report for distribution to its customers and to the Department
of Health Services. The Consumer Confidence Report provides information regarding the quality of
potable water provided by the water system. It includes information on the sources of the water,
any detected contaminants in the water, the maximum contaminant levels set by regulation,

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-5

638



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

violations and actions taken to correct them, and opportunities for public participation in decisions
that may affect the quality of the water provided.

Urban Water Management Planning Act

The Urban Water Management Planning Act has as its objectives the management of urban water
demands and the efficient use of urban water. Under its provisions, every urban water supplier is
required to prepare and adopt an urban water management plan. An “urban water supplier” is a
public or private water supplier that provides water for municipal purposes either directly or
indirectly to more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually.
The plan must identify and quantify the existing and planned sources of water available to the
supplier, quantify the projected water use for a period of 20 years, and describe the supplier’s water
demand management measures. The urban water supplier should make every effort to ensure the
appropriate level of reliability in its water service sufficient to meet the needs of its various
categories of customers during normal, dry, and multiple dry years. The Department of Water
Resources must receive a copy of an adopted urban water management plan.

Senate Bill (SB) 610 and Assembly Bill (AB) 901

The State Legislature passed SB 610 and AB 901 in 2001. Both measures modified the Urban Water
Management Planning Act.

SB 610 requires additional information in an urban water management plan if groundwater is
identified as a source of water available to an urban water supplier. It also requires that the plan
include a description of all water supply projects and programs that may be undertaken to meet
total projected water use. SB 610 requires a city or county that determines a project is subject to
CEQA to identify any public water system that may supply water to the project and to request
identified public water systems to prepare a specified water supply assessment. The assessment
must include, among other information, an identification of existing water supply entitlements,
water rights, or water service contracts relevant to the identified water supply for the proposed
project, and water received in prior years pursuant to these entitlements, rights, and contracts.

AB 901 requires an urban water management plan to include information, to the extent practicable,
relating to the quality of existing sources of water available to an urban water supplier over given
time periods. AB 901 also requires information on the manner in which water quality affects water
management strategies and supply reliability. The bill requires a plan to describe plans to
supplement a water source that may not be available at a consistent level of use, to the extent
practicable. Additional findings and declarations relating to water quality are required.

Senate Bill (SB) 221

SB 221 adds Government Code Section 66455.3, requiring that the local water agency be sent a copy
of any proposed residential subdivision of more than 500 dwelling units within five days of the
subdivision application being accepted as complete for processing by the city or county. It also adds
Government Code Section 66473.7, establishing detailed requirements for establishing whether a
“sufficient water supply” exists to support any proposed residential subdivisions of more than 500

3.15-6 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

639



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 3.15

dwellings, including any such subdivision involving a development agreement. When approving a
qualifying subdivision tentative map, the city or county must include a condition requiring
availability of a sufficient water supply. The applicable public water system must provide proof of
availability. If there is no public water system, the city or county must undertake the analysis
described in Government Code Section 66473.7. The analysis must include consideration of effects
on other users of water and groundwater.

LocAL

Glenn Groundwater Authority
The Glenn Groundwater Authority (GGA) is a nine-member, multi-agency Joint Powers Authority

(JPA) that was formed on June 20, 2017. The GGA is the Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA)
responsible for implementation of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) in the
Glenn County portion of the Colusa Subbasin (5-21.52). The Board of the GGA is composed of
representatives of the following:

County of Glenn, City of Orland, City of Willows, Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District, Glide Water
District, Princeton-Codora-Glenn/Provident Irrigation District (1 seat), Orland-Artois Water
District, and Kanawha Water District formed with the primary purpose to comply with and
implement SGM

The Glenn Groundwater Authority was created by forming a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement,
signed by nine local agencies, with the purposes of being a Groundwater Sustainability Agency for
the Glenn County portion of the Colusa Subbasin.

California Water Service Company 2020 UWMP - Willows
Per CWC §10617, only urban water suppliers with 3,000 or more customers or supplying 3,000 or

more acre-feet of water annually are required to complete an UWMP. Willows District is presently
below both thresholds. However, Cal Water has elected to prepare plans for all the districts it
operates regardless of their size because these plans are integral to Cal Water planning initiatives at
both the enterprise-level and district-level, as well as important sources of information for broader
regional planning efforts.

THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Consistent with Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, the project will have a significant impact on the
environment associated with Utilities if it will:

e Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater
treatment or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas or telecommunication
facilities, the construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental
effects; and/or

e Have insufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable
future development during normal, dry and multiple dry years.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-7

640



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES

Impact 3.15-1: General Plan implementation would result in sufficient
water supplies available to serve the City and reasonably foreseeable
future development during normal, dry and multiple dry years (Less than
Significant)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in increased population and employment growth
within the Planning Area, and a corresponding increase in the demand for additional water supplies.
As described in Chapter 2.0, buildout of the General Plan could yield a total of up to 3,421 housing
units, a population of 8,689 people, and 3,501 jobs within the Planning Area. As shown in Table 2.0-
2 of Chapter 2.0, this represents development growth over existing conditions of up to 963 new
housing units, 2,446 people, and 1,310 jobs.

As discussed above, the Calwater 2020 UWMP documented the demands for potable water in 2020
and projected future water demands and supplies through 2045. The City is expected to have
adequate water supply available to serve the buildout GPU land uses. Calwater anticipates that the
water demand in 2045 would be 1,881 AFY and that the District has the capacity to serve. It is
estimated that the District’s 2045 Buildout assumption population is 9,117 which is within the
growth identified in Chapter 2.0 (Project Description). As development projects are proposed within
the city each project will be reviewed for a variety of service requirements, conformance with local
and State requirements and water availability. SB 610 and SB 221, require review of supplies and
verify their availability before approving developments. Additionally, General Plan Policy LU 6-3
requires all development projects to mitigate their infrastructure service impacts or demonstrate
that the City’s infrastructure, public services, and utilities can accommodate the increased demand
for services, and that service levels for existing users will not be degraded or impaired.

The City has ample water supply to account for the proposed General Plan, and the City will require
all development projects to demonstrate that the City’s infrastructure, public services, and utilities
can accommodate the increased demand for services, and that service levels for existing users will
not be degraded or impaired. The proposed General Plan includes a range of policies designed to
ensure an adequate water supply for development and to minimize the potential adverse effects of
increased water use. The policies listed below would further assist in ensuring that adequate water
supplies are available to serve new growth projected under the proposed General Plan and would
ensure impacts associated with water supplies are less than significant.

GENERAL PLAN POLICIES AND ACTIONS THAT MINIMIZE POTENTIAL IMPACTS
LAND USE ELEMENT POLICIES

LU 6-2: Require development, infrastructure, and long-term planning projects to be consistent with
all applicable infrastructure plans, including the California Water Service District’s Urban Water
Management Plan, and the City’s Capital Improvement Program.

3.15-8 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

641



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 3.15

LU 6-3: Require all development projects to mitigate their infrastructure service impacts or
demonstrate that the City’s infrastructure, public services, and utilities can accommodate the
increased demand for services, and that service levels for existing users will not be degraded or
impaired.

CONSERVATION AND OPEN SPACE ELEMENT POLICIES
COS 10.1: Protect floodways and other areas with high groundwater water recharge capability.

COS 10.2: Require discretionary projects, as well as new flood control and stormwater conveyance
projects, to integrate best management practices (BMPs) and natural features to the greatest extent
feasible, while ensuring that these features adequately convey and control stormwater to protect
human health, safety, and welfare.

COS 10.3: Protect surface water quality and prioritize the use of natural features such as bioswales,
vegetation, retention ponds, and other measures to remove surface water pollutants prior to
discharge into surface waters.

COS 10.4: Promote water conservation among water users.

COS 10.5: Support and promote the use of drought-tolerant and regionally native plants in
landscaping.

COS 10.6: Where feasible, encourage and support multipurpose detention basins that provide water
quality protection, storm water detention, open space amenities, and recreational amenities.

COS 10.7: Monitor groundwater extraction activities and ensure the health of the groundwater basin.
CONSERVATION AND OPEN SPACE ELEMENT ACTIONS

COS-10a: Continue to identify stormwater and drainage facilities in need of repair and address these
needs through the CIP process. As feasible seek to incorporate BMPs and LID techniques into repairs
and upgrades that promote water quality objectives.

COS-10b: Collaborate with water suppliers and wastewater treatment plant operators to increase
the availability of treated or recycled water for agricultural purposes.

COS-10c: Participate in and collaborate with Glenn County, and other regional groundwater
management agencies to support and promote Groundwater Sustainability Plans and
implementation strategies for the groundwater basin.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-9

642



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

Impact 3.15-2: General Plan implementation may require or result in the
construction of new water treatment facilities or expansion of existing
facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental
effects (Less than Significant)

Development and growth in the City under the proposed General Plan would result in increased
demand for water supplies, including water conveyance and treatment infrastructure. The proposed
General Plan includes policies and actions to ensure that water supplies are provided at acceptable
levels and to ensure that development and growth does not outpace the provision of available water
supplies.

As described under Impact 3.15-1, the projected water supplies are expected to be adequate to
meet demand that would be generated by buildout of the General Plan. As such, implementation
and buildout of the General Plan would not result in the need to construct or expand water supply
and treatment facilities that have not already been described and accounted for in the Districts’
relevant water master plans, which include the 2020 UWMP.

As future development and infrastructure projects are considered by the City, each project will be
evaluated for conformance with the General Plan, Municipal Code, and other applicable regulations.
Subsequent development and infrastructure projects would also be analyzed for potential
environmental impacts, consistent with the requirements of CEQA.

The proposed General Plan includes a range of policies (listed above) to ensure that water providers
serving the city are consulted with during future land use changes in order to ensure that future
supply levels meet demands. Specifically, General Plan Policy LU 6-3 requires all development
projects to mitigate their infrastructure service impacts or demonstrate that the City’s
infrastructure, public services, and utilities can accommodate the increased demand for services,
and that service levels for existing users will not be degraded or impaired.

Future development in the Planning Area would be required to connect to existing water distribution
infrastructure in the vicinity of each site, pay the applicable water system connection fees, and pay
the applicable water usage rates. Future projects may be required to implement site specific and
limited off-site improvements to the water distribution system in order to connect new project sites
to the existing water infrastructure network. The specific impacts of providing new and expanded
waster distribution infrastructure cannot be determined at this time, as the General Plan does not
propose or authorize any specific development projects or include details on any future
development projects. However, any future improvements to the existing water distribution
infrastructure would be primarily provided on sites with land use designations that allow for
urbanized land uses, and the environmental impacts of constructing and operating the new water
distribution infrastructure would likely be similar to those associated with new development,
redevelopment, and infrastructure projects under the proposed General Plan. Therefore, this impact
is considered less than significant.

3.15-10 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

643



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 3.15

3.15.2 WASTEWATER
KEY TERMS

Effluent: Effluent is an outflowing of water from a natural body of water, or from a man-made
structure. Effluent in the man-made sense is generally considered to be water pollution, such as the
outflow from a sewage treatment facility or the wastewater discharge from industrial facilities. In
the context of waste water treatment plants, effluent that has been treated is sometimes called
secondary effluent, or treated effluent.

NPDES: Water pollution degrades surface waters making them unsafe for drinking, fishing,
swimming, and other activities. As authorized by the Clean Water Act, the National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit program controls water pollution by regulating point
sources that discharge pollutants into waters of the United States. Point sources are discrete
conveyances such as pipes or man-made ditches. Individual homes that are connected to a municipal
system, use a septic system, or do not have a surface discharge do not need an NPDES permit;
however, industrial, municipal, and other facilities must obtain permits if their discharges go directly
to surface waters.

WWTP: Wastewater treatment plant. Treatment of wastewater may include the following
processes: screening to remove large waste items; grit removal to allow sand, gravel, and sediment
to settle out; primary sedimentation where sludge can settle out of the wastewater; secondary
treatment to substantially degrade the biological content of the sewage; tertiary treatment to raise
the quality of the effluent before it is discharged; and, discharge.

WASTEWATER TREATMENT

City of Willows Wastewater Collection, Treatment, and Disposal

The City of Willows operates and maintains the sewer system consisting of gravity sewers and
pumping stations to collect wastewater from residential and commercial customers. The collected
wastewater is discharged to trunk sewers and interceptors owned and operated by the City of
Willows and conveyed to the Willows Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) for treatment.

The WWTP is owned and operated by the City and serves the population of Willows and the
Northeast Willows Community Services District. The WWTP produces disinfected tertiary recycled
water through extended aerated ponds, clarifiers, filtration, chlorine disinfection and
dechlorination. There are 2,255 residential connections and 222 commercial/industrial connections.

The City entered into an agreement with Solar Power Partner, LP (SPP) in 2013 to provide solar
power at the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant. Under the agreement SPP provided solar array
equipment and the City provided the underlying real property for the solar array. The City will
purchase the power generated by the array for a period of 20 years from SPP, with an option to take
ownership of the array at the end of the 20-year period.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-11
644



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

According to the Sewer Master Plan of 2008, the wastewater collection system consists of 29 miles
of Vitrified Clay Pipe (VCP) and some Polyvinyl Chloride Pipe (PVC) and Asbestos Cement sewer
mains ranging in size from four inches to eighteen inches in diameter with five small-capacity pump
stations.

Water entering the collection system through defective cleanouts, joints and pipes, and manhole
walls can be attributed to groundwater, commercial/industrial uses and storm runoff. Limited
efforts have been completed to upgrade the system. Thus, infiltration and inflow (1&I) is becoming
a problem to the system. Infiltration and inflow are significant in the piping tributaries to the
Sycamore Lift Station according to the Sewer Master Plan

The original Wastewater Treatment Plant was constructed in 1948 and later upgraded in 1992. In
2007, the City of Willows completed a major upgrade to the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP)
by increasing the treatment capability from secondary to tertiary quality effluent with a rated
capacity of 1.2 mgd (million gallons per day). The treatment system includes influent screening,
extended aeration (biolac system), activated sludge with two secondary clarifiers, nine continuous
backwash sand filters, disinfection with sodium hypochlorite, dechlorination using sodium bisulfite
injection, equalization and emergency storage ponds, and sludge storage lagoons. The WWTP
currently has a daily dry weather average flow of approximately 0.650 million gallons per day
(650,000 gallons per day) from all customers in Willows WWTP service area.

Other Community Systems

Northeast Willows CSD. The community of Northeast Willows within the unincorporated county
adjacent to the City of Willows, is served by community systems for wastewater disposal and
treatment. The Northeast Willows Community Services District was formed in 1965 and provides
for the collection, treatment or disposal of sewage from the district and its inhabitants. However,
the District only provides directly for the collection of wastewater, and wastewater treatment is
provided by the City of Willows under a Joint Powers Agreement. The City of Willows owns the
wastewater collection system within the City and the treatment and disposal system that provides
sewerage service to the Northeast Willows CSD. The City provides or can contract for all
maintenance, including routine inspection, rodding, balling, flushing, plugging, and the making of
minor repairs, excluding replacement and installation of lines and pipes, to the entire sewage
collection system, main trunk sewers and facilities. In practice, the City of Willows contract staff
provides collection and treatment, maintain and clean the system, and inspect any new connections
or upgrades. The CSD includes 300 residential sewer service connections within its service area.

The Northeast CSD wastewater treatment facilities are located at 1600 S. Tehama Street, Willows.
The wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) is governed by Waste Discharge Requirement Order No.
R5-2006-0009 adopted by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Central Valley
Region. The WDR Order regulates the discharge of wastewater from the Willows WWTP to
Agricultural Drain C and Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District Lateral 26-2, both are tributaries to the
Colusa Basin Drain.

3.15-12 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

645



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 3.15

There are no waste discharge specifications specifically for the Northeast Willows CSD because the
wastewater collected is treated by the City of Willows. The CSD has an agreement with Willows for
wastewater treatment at the WWTP for up to 96,000 gallons per day, and the CSD currently sends
approximately 48,000 gallons per day to the WWTP.

WASTEWATER FLOWS

Wastewater flows are typically evaluated for several conditions, including the following:

e Average Dry Weather Flow (ADWF) is the highest five-weekday period from June through
October.

e Average Dry Weather Influent Flow (ADWIF) is the highest five-weekday period from June
through October.

e Average Dry Weather Effluent Flow (ADWEF) is the lowest average Effluent flow for any
three consecutive months between the months of May and October.

WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM

City of Willows Wastewater Collection, Treatment, and Disposal

The City of Willows operates and maintains the sewer system consisting of gravity sewers and
pumping stations to collect wastewater from residential and commercial customers. The collected
wastewater is discharged to trunk sewers and interceptors owned and operated by the City of
Willows and conveyed to the Willows Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) for treatment.

The WWTP is owned and operated by the City and serves the population of Willows and the
Northeast Willows Community Services District. The WWTP produces disinfected tertiary recycled
water through extended aerated ponds, clarifiers, filtration, chlorine disinfection and
dechlorination. There are 2,255 residential connections and 222 commercial/industrial connections.

The City entered into an agreement with Solar Power Partner, LP (SPP) in 2013 to provide solar
power at the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant. Under the agreement SPP provided solar array
equipment and the City provided the underlying real property for the solar array. The City will
purchase the power generated by the array for a period of 20 years from SPP, with an option to take
ownership of the array at the end of the 20-year period.

According to the Sewer Master Plan of 2008, the wastewater collection system consists of 29 miles
of Vitrified Clay Pipe (VCP) and some Polyvinyl Chloride Pipe (PVC) and Asbestos Cement sewer
mains ranging in size from four inches to eighteen inches in diameter with five small-capacity pump
stations.

Water entering the collection system through defective cleanouts, joints and pipes, and manhole
walls can be attributed to groundwater, commercial/industrial uses and storm runoff. Limited
efforts have been completed to upgrade the system. Thus, infiltration and inflow (1&I) is becoming

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-13
646



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

a problem to the system. Infiltration and inflow are significant in the piping tributaries to the
Sycamore Lift Station according to the Sewer Master Plan

The original Wastewater Treatment Plant was constructed in 1948 and later upgraded in 1992. In
2007, the City of Willows completed a major upgrade to the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP)
by increasing the treatment capability from secondary to tertiary quality effluent with a rated
capacity of 1.2 mgd (million gallons per day). The treatment system includes influent screening,
extended aeration (biolac system), activated sludge with two secondary clarifiers, nine continuous
backwash sand filters, disinfection with sodium hypochlorite, dechlorination using sodium bisulfite
injection, equalization and emergency storage ponds, and sludge storage lagoons. The WWTP
currently has a daily dry weather average flow of approximately 0.650 million gallons per day
(650,000 gallons per day) from all customers in Willows WWTP service area.

Other Community Systems

Northeast Willows CSD. The community of Northeast Willows within the unincorporated county
adjacent to the City of Willows, is served by community systems for wastewater disposal and
treatment. The Northeast Willows Community Services District was formed in 1965 and provides
for the collection, treatment or disposal of sewage from the district and its inhabitants. However,
the District only provides directly for the collection of wastewater, and wastewater treatment is
provided by the City of Willows under a Joint Powers Agreement. The City of Willows owns the
wastewater collection system within the City and the treatment and disposal system that provides
sewerage service to the Northeast Willows CSD. The City provides or can contract for all
maintenance, including routine inspection, rodding, balling, flushing, plugging, and the making of
minor repairs, excluding replacement and installation of lines and pipes, to the entire sewage
collection system, main trunk sewers and facilities. In practice, the City of Willows contract staff
provides collection and treatment, maintain and clean the system, and inspect any new connections
or upgrades. The CSD includes 300 residential sewer service connections within its service area.

The Northeast CSD wastewater treatment facilities are located at 1600 S. Tehama Street, Willows.
The wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) is governed by Waste Discharge Requirement Order No.
R5-2006-0009 adopted by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Central Valley
Region. The WDR Order regulates the discharge of wastewater from the Willows WWTP to
Agricultural Drain C and Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District Lateral 26-2, both are tributaries to the
Colusa Basin Drain.

There are no waste discharge specifications specifically for the Northeast Willows CSD because the
wastewater collected is treated by the City of Willows. The CSD has an agreement with Willows for
wastewater treatment at the WWTP for up to 96,000 gallons per day, and the CSD currently sends
approximately 48,000 gallons per day to the WWTP.

3.15-14 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

647



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 3.15

REGULATORY SETTING - WASTEWATER

STATE

State Water Resources Control Board/Regional Water Quality Control
Board

In California, all wastewater treatment and disposal systems fall under the overall regulatory
authority of the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) and the nine California Regional
Water Quality Control Boards (RWQCBs), who are charged with the responsibility of protecting
beneficial uses of State waters (ground and surface) from a variety of waste discharges, including
wastewater from individual and municipal systems. The City of Willows falls within the jurisdiction
of the San Francisco Bay RWQCB.

The RWQCB'’s regulatory role often involves the formation and implementation of basic water
protection policies. These are reflected in the individual RWQCB’s Basin Plan, generally in the form
of guidelines, criteria and/or prohibitions related to the siting, design, construction, and
maintenance of on-site sewage disposal systems. The SWRCB’s role has historically been one of
providing overall policy direction, organizational and technical assistance, and a communications
link to the State legislature.

The RWQCBs may waive or delegate regulatory authority for on-site sewage disposal systems to
counties, cities or special districts. Although not mandatory, it is commonly done and has proven to
be administratively efficient. In some cases, this is accomplished through a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU), whereby the local agency commits to enforcing the Basin Plan requirements
or other specified standards that may be more restrictive. The RWQCBs generally elect to retain
permitting authority over large and/or commercial or industrial on-site sewage disposal systems,
depending on the volume and character of the wastewater.

LocAL

City of Willows Sewer Master Plan Update (2008)

The City’s 2008 Sewer Master Plan includes a description and maps of the City’s wastewater
collection system, system-wide flow projections, hydraulic models of system flows, an analysis of
the system’s capacity, a summary of system capacity improvements that are needed, and a summary
of the current related CIP schedule and costs for wastewater system improvements.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-15
648



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Consistent with Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, the proposed project will have a significant
impact on the environment associated with Utilities if it would:

e Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded wastewater facilities,
the construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental effects;
and/or

e Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve
the Project that it has adequate capacity to serve the projects projected demand in addition
to the providers existing commitments.

IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES

Impact 3.15-3: General Plan implementation has the potential to resultina
determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may
serve the Project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s
projected demand in addition to the provider’s existing commitments (Less
than Significant)

Currently, all wastewater collected from the City is treated at the WWTP. There are approximately
2,255 residential connections and 222 commercial/industrial connections. The City of Willows
completed a major upgrade to the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) by increasing the treatment
capability from secondary to tertiary quality effluent with a rated capacity of 1.2 mgd (million gallons
per day). The treatment system includes influent screening, extended aeration (biolac system),
activated sludge with two secondary clarifiers, nine continuous backwash sand filters, disinfection
with sodium hypochlorite, dechlorination using sodium bisulfite injection, equalization and
emergency storage ponds, and sludge storage lagoons. The WWTP currently has a daily dry weather
average flow of approximately 0.650 million gallons per day (650,000 gallons per day) from all
customers in Willows WWTP service area.

As Willows continues to develop in the future, there will be an increased need for water and
wastewater services, including a reliable source of recycled water. These needs have been
addressed in the three utility districts’ master plans and will require that the districts, in coordination
with the City, continue to implement phased improvements to some pump stations, sewer mains,
and the various wastewater treatment plants when triggered by growth.

While full buildout of the development contemplated in the proposed General Plan would increase
the existing treatment demand at the districts’ treatment plants, the proposed General Plan includes
arange of policies designed to ensure an adequate wastewater treatment capacity for development.
Specifically, General Plan Policy LU 6-3 requires all development projects to mitigate their
infrastructure service impacts or demonstrate that the City’s infrastructure, public services, and
utilities can accommodate the increased demand for services, and that service levels for existing
users will not be degraded or impaired.

3.15-16 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

649



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 3.15

Periodic review and update of the Sewer Master Plans will be required and as growth continues to
occur within the Planning Area. It may be necessary to identify future necessary system upgrades
and capacity enhancements to meet infrastructure needs, prior to the approval of new
development. Additions and expansions to the WWT would be accommodated on site. Future
capacity improvements to infrastructure may be required over time, However, given that projected
wastewater generation volumes associated with General Plan buildout are not expected to exceed
the projected wastewater treatment volumes, this impact would be less than significant.

The policies and actions listed below would further assist in ensuring that adequate wastewater
treatment and conveyance infrastructure is available to serve new growth projected under the
proposed General Plan.

GENERAL PLAN POLICIES AND ACTIONS THAT MINIMIZE POTENTIAL IMPACTS
LAND USE POLICIES

LU 6-1: Provide adequate infrastructure (i.e., streets, sewer, and storm drain) to meet the needs of
existing and future development.

LU 6-2: Require development, infrastructure, and long-term planning projects to be consistent with
all applicable infrastructure plans, including the California Water Service District’s Urban Water
Management Plan, and the City’s Capital Improvement Program.

LU 6-3: Require all development projects to mitigate their infrastructure service impacts or
demonstrate that the City’s infrastructure, public services, and utilities can accommodate the
increased demand for services, and that service levels for existing users will not be degraded or
impaired.

LU 6-4: Require the payment of impact fees for all new development.

LU 6-5: Design services and infrastructure to serve existing and planned land uses. Actions that will
induce growth beyond planned levels are prohibited.

LAND USE ACTIONS

LU 6a: As part of the development review process, determine the potential impacts of development
and infrastructure projects on public infrastructure, and ensure that new development contributes
its fair share toward necessary on and off-site infrastructure.

LU 6b: Ensure that infrastructure is adequately sized to accommodate the proposed development
and, if applicable, allow for extensions to future developments.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-17
650



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

Impact 3.15-4: General Plan implementation may require or result in the
relocation or construction of new or expanded wastewater facilities, the
construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental
effects (Less than Significant)

Development allowed under the proposed General Plan would result in increased demand for water
supplies, including water conveyance and treatment infrastructure. The proposed General Plan
includes policies to ensure that water supplies and treatment are provided at acceptable levels and
to ensure that development and growth does not outpace the provision of available infrastructure.

As future development and infrastructure projects are considered by the City, each project will be
evaluated for conformance with the General Plan, Municipal Code, and other applicable regulations.
Subsequent development and infrastructure projects would also be analyzed for potential
environmental impacts, consistent with the requirements of CEQA. As such, this impact would be
less than significant, and no additional mitigation is required.

The proposed General Plan includes policies designed to ensure adequate wastewater treatment
capacity is available to serve development and to minimize the potential adverse effects of
wastewater treatment. These policies are listed in Impact 3.15-3.

3.15-18 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

651



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 3.15

3.15.3 STORMWATER DRAINAGE

The information in this section focuses on the potential for the General Plan to result in the demand
for new or expanded stormwater drainage facilities. Section 3.10 (Hydrology) includes an expanded
analysis of water quality, flooding, and other stormwater related issues.

STORMWATER AND FLOOD CONTROL FACILITIES

The City of Willows Public Works Division is responsible for operating, maintaining, and improving
the City’s drainage and stormwater infrastructure, and facilities. Key areas of responsibility include
the maintaining and improvements to streets, sewer, and storm drains. The City currently does not
have an adopted storm drain master plan.

Regional Flood Control

North Willows County Service Area (formerly Storm Drain Maintenance District #2) Storm Drain
Maintenance Districts. North Willows County Service Area provides service to an area northeast of
Willows. This CSA, which is administered by the County Public Works Department, maintains natural
drains and a pipeline system with a pump. The CSA has three long-range plans under consideration:

¢ Diversion of some drainage west of I-5.
¢ Development of standby power for the pumps.

Central Valley Flood Protection Plan (2012/2017 Update). The Central Valley Flood Protection Plan
(CVFPP) was adopted by the Central Valley Flood Protection Board in 2012 and updated in 2017. The
CVFPP is a guide to managing flood risk in the Central Valley and it will be updated every five years.
The goal of the CVFPP is to improve flood risk management with the following supporting goals:

e Improve operations and maintenance
e Promote ecosystem functions

e Improve institutional support

e Promote multi-benefit projects

Flood infrastructure is to be planned and managed centrally, but O&M, flood response, and
infrastructure implementation can be implemented either regionally or locally. The CVFPP promotes
regional governance via local consolidation and collaboration among partnering agencies.

Reclamation Districts. Reclamation districts are governed by a board of trustees that are appointed
by the County Board of Supervisors or are elected directly from the populations they serve (§50650).
The board of trustees can consist of three, five or seven members and have the power to do all
things necessary or convenient for accomplishing the purposes for which the reclamation district
was formed (50900). The owners of the majority of acreage in the district may vote to adopt
governing bylaws (§50370). A district may, by resolution of the board, provide a procedure for the

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-19
652



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

collection charges and fees, by way of the tax bills of the county or counties in which such district is
located (§50904).

There four reclamation districts in Glenn County, which are:
e Reclamation District No. 2047
e Reclamation District No. 2106
e Reclamation District No. 2140
e Reclamation District No. 1004

Reclamation District No. 2106 is a multicounty district, extending into Butte County. The District is
approximately 49,549 acres in size, with approximately 35,507 acres located in Glenn County and
approximately 14,402 acres located in Butte County. The District consists of approximately 439
parcels, 408 of which are found in Glenn County and 31 of which are located in Butte County. The
Glenn Local Agency Formation Commission is the principal county LAFCO for Reclamation District
No. 2106 as the majority of the parcels, along with the majority of the land value, lies within Glenn
County.

Reclamation Districts 1004 and 2047 are also multicounty districts. Only a small portion of
Reclamation District No. 1004, consisting of six parcels, totaling approximately 468 acres in area, is
located within Glenn County. The remaining portion of Reclamation District No. 1004 is within
Colusa County. As the majority of the assessed land value of Reclamation District No. 1004 is within
Colusa County, the Colusa Local Agency Formation Commission is the principal county LAFCO for this
District. As the principal county LAFCO, Colusa LAFCO is the agency that would act on annexations,
detachments, SOI modifications and SOI Plans, and municipal services reviews for Reclamation
District No. 1004. Likewise, a large portion of Reclamation District No. 2047, consisting of
approximately 1,569 parcels totaling approximately 95,605 acres in size, is located within Glenn
County. Even though a large portion of Reclamation District No. 2047 is within Glenn County, Colusa
LAFCO is the principal county LAFCO for this district.

Levee Districts. Levee districts are governed by a three-member board of directors that are
appointed by the County Board of Supervisors or are elected directly from the populations they
serve. Levee districts may acquire by purchase, condemnation, gift or other action, drains, canals,
sluices, bulkheads, watergates, levees, embankments, pumping plants and pipelines and to
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire, maintain and keep in repair all things reasonable or
convenient for the protection of the lands of the district from overflow and for the purpose of
conserving or adding water to the sloughs and drains in the district. The district may co-operate and
contract with the United States, the State of California, or any department or agency of either, in
order to accomplish any of the purposes of the district.

There are three levee districts in Glenn County, which are:

e Levee District No. 1

3.15-20 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

653



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 3.15

e Levee District No. 2
e Levee District No. 3

Levee District No. 1 is located north and south of the unincorporated community of Glenn along
the west side of the Sacramento River. The District consists of approximately 207 parcels and
totals approximately 9,630 acres in size. The predominant land use within the District
boundaries is agricultural, along with some agricultural processing facilities and scattered
residential uses. The majority of the district is zoned for agricultural uses. The District has an
estimated population of 300. The District is responsible for maintenance of the levee located
on the west side of the Sacramento River, from the north border of Levee District No. 2
northwards for approximately 12 miles.

Levee District No. 2 is located in the Four Corners area of southeast Glenn County, along the
west side of the Sacramento River. The District consists of approximately 130 parcels and totals
approximately 5,620 acres in size. The predominant land use within the District boundaries is
agricultural, along with some agricultural processing facilities and scattered residential uses. The
majority of the district is zoned for agricultural uses. The District has an estimated population of
115. The District is responsible for maintenance of the levee located on the west side of the
Sacramento River, from the Colusa County border northwards for approximately 4.9 miles.

Levee District No. 3 is located in the southeast Glenn County area, east of the Sacramento River,
and includes the unincorporated community of Butte City. The District consists of approximately
247 parcels and totals approximately 12,820 acres in size. The predominant land use within the
District boundaries is agricultural, along with some agricultural processing facilities. The
unincorporated community of Butte City, which is developed with approximately 40 dwellings,
is located within the District. The majority of the district is zoned for agricultural uses, although
the Butte City area is zoned for single-family residential uses. The District has an estimated
population of 115. The District is responsible for maintenance of the levee located on the east
side of the Sacramento River, from the Colusa County border northwards for a distance of
approximately 12 miles.

REGULATORY SETTING - STORMWATER DRAINAGE

FEDERAL

Clean Water Act (CWA)

The CWA, initially passed in 1972, regulates the discharge of pollutants into watersheds throughout
the nation. Section 402(p) of the act establishes a framework for regulating municipal and industrial
stormwater discharges under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)
Program. Section 402(p) requires that stormwater associated with industrial activity that discharges
either directly to surface waters or indirectly through municipal separate storm sewers must be
regulated by an NPDES permit.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-21
654



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

The State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) is responsible for implementing the Clean Water
Act and does so through issuing NPDES permits to cities and counties through regional water quality
control boards. Federal regulations allow two permitting options for storm water discharges
(individual permits and general permits). The SWRCB elected to adopt a statewide general permit
(Water Quality Order No. 2003-0005-DWQ) for small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems
(MS4s) covered under the CWA to efficiently regulate numerous storm water discharges under a
single permit.

Pursuant to the CWA, Willows participates in the Santa Clara Valley Urban Runoff Pollution
Prevention Program (SCVURPPP) as a co-permitee under the California Regional Water Quality
Control Board’s San Francisco Bay Region Municipal Regional Stormwater NPDES Permit (Order R2-
2015-0049), also referred to as the “MS4 Permit.” Permit number CAS612008 became effective in
November of 2015. The City has typical urban runoff water quality issues and is working on
implementing a 70 percent reduction in trash load by July 1, 2017, focused around trash capture on
100 acres of high or very high trash generating land uses.

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permits are required for discharges to
navigable waters of the United States, which includes any discharge to surface waters, including
lakes, rivers, streams, bays, oceans, dry stream beds, wetlands, and storm sewers that are tributary
to any surface water body. NPDES permits are issued under the Federal Clean Water Act, Title 1V,
Permits and Licenses, Section 402 (33 USC 466 et seq.)

The RWQCB issues these permits in lieu of direct issuance by the Environmental Protection Agency,
subject to review and approval by the EPA Regional Administrator (EPA Region 9). The terms of these
NPDES permits implement pertinent provisions of the Federal Clean Water Act and the Act’s
implementing regulations, including pre-treatment, sludge management, effluent limitations for
specific industries, and anti-degradation. In general, the discharge of pollutants is to be eliminated
or reduced as much as practicable so as to achieve the Clean Water Act’s goal of “fishable and
swimmable” navigable (surface) waters. Technically, all NPDES permits issued by the RWQCB are
also Waste Discharge Requirements issued under the authority of the CWA.

These NPDES permits regulate discharges from publicly owned treatment works, industrial
discharges, stormwater runoff, dewatering operations, and groundwater cleanup discharges. NPDES
permits are issued for five years or less, and therefore must be updated regularly. The rapid and
dramatic population and urban growth in the Central Valley Region has caused a significant increase
in NPDES permit applications for new waste discharges. To expedite the permit issuance process,
the RWQCB has adopted several general NPDES permits, each of which regulates numerous
discharges of similar types of wastes. The SWRCB has issued general permits for stormwater runoff
from construction sites statewide. Stormwater discharges from industrial and construction activities
in the San Francisco Bay Region can be covered under these general permits, which are administered
jointly by the SWRCB and RWQCB.

3.15-22 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

655



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 3.15

STATE

Department of Water Resources

The Department of Water Resources’ (DWR) major responsibilities include preparing and updating
the California Water Plan to guide development and management of the State's water resources,
planning, designing, constructing, operating, and maintaining the State Water Resources
Development System, protecting and restoring the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta, regulating dams,
providing flood protection, assisting in emergency management to safeguard life and property,
educating the public, and serving local water needs by providing technical assistance. In addition,
the DWR cooperates with local agencies on water resources investigations; supports watershed and
river restoration programs; encourages water conservation; explores conjunctive use of ground and
surface water; facilitates voluntary water transfers; and, when needed, operates a State drought
water bank.

California Water Code

California’s primary statute governing water quality and water pollution issues with respect to both
surface waters and groundwater is the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act of 1970 (Division
7 of the California Water Code) (Porter-Cologne Act). The Porter-Cologne Act grants the SWRCB and
each of the RWQCBs power to protect water quality, and is the primary vehicle for implementation
of California’s responsibilities under the Federal Clean Water Act. The Porter-Cologne Act grants the
SWRCB and the RWQCBs authority and responsibility to adopt plans and policies, to regulate
discharges to surface and groundwater, to regulate waste disposal sites, and to require cleanup of
discharges of hazardous materials and other pollutants. The Porter-Cologne Act also establishes
reporting requirements for unintended discharges of any hazardous substance, sewage, or oil or
petroleum product.

Each RWQCB must formulate and adopt a Water Quality Control Plan (Basin Plan) for its region. The
regional plans are to conform to the policies set forth in the Porter-Cologne Act and established by
the SWRCB in its State water policy. The Porter-Cologne Act also provides that a RWQCB may include
within its regional plan water discharge prohibitions applicable to particular conditions, areas, or
types of waste.

Water Quality Control Plan (Basin Plan) for the Central Valley Region

The Water Quality Control Plan for the Central Valley Region (Basin Plan) includes a summary of
beneficial water uses, water quality objectives needed to protect the identified beneficial uses, and
implementation measures. The Basin Plan establishes water quality standards for all the ground and
surface waters of the region. The term “water quality standards,” as used in the Federal Clean Water
Act, includes both the beneficial uses of specific water bodies and the levels of quality that must be
met and maintained to protect those uses. The Basin Plan includes an implementation plan
describing the actions by the RWQCB and others that are necessary to achieve and maintain the
water quality standards.

The RWQCB regulates waste discharges to minimize and control their effects on the quality of the
region’s ground and surface water. Permits are issued under a number of programs and authorities.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-23
656



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

The terms and conditions of these discharge permits are enforced through a variety of technical,
administrative, and legal means. Water quality problems in the region are listed in the Basin Plan,
along with the causes, where they are known. For water bodies with quality below the levels
necessary to allow all the beneficial uses of the water to be met, plans for improving water quality
are included. The Basin Plan reflects, incorporates, and implements applicable portions of a number
of national and statewide water quality plans and policies, including the California Water Code and
the Clean Water Act.

State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) Storm Water Strategy

The Storm Water Strategy is founded on the results of the Storm Water Strategic Initiative, which
served to direct the State Water Board’s role in storm water resources management and evolve the
Storm Water Program by a) developing guiding principles to serve as the foundation of the storm
water program, b) identifying issues that support or inhibit the program from aligning with the
guiding principles, and c) proposing and prioritizing projects that the Water Boards could implement
to address those issues. The State Water Board staff created a strategy-based document called the
Strategy to Optimize Management of Storm Water (STORMS). STORMS includes a program vision,
missions, goals, objectives, projects, timelines, and consideration of the most effective integration
of project outcomes into the Water Board’s Storm Water Program.

3.15-24 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

657



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 3.15

THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Consistent with Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, the proposed project will have a significant
impact on the environment associated with Utilities if it would:

e Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded storm water drainage
facilities, the construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental
effects.

IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES

Impact 3.15-5: General Plan implementation may require or result in the
relocation or construction of new or expanded storm water drainage
facilities, the construction or relocation of which could cause significant
environmental effects (Less than Significant)

Development under the proposed General Plan may result in increased areas of impervious surfaces
throughout the Planning Area, resulting in the need for additional or expanded stormwater
drainage, conveyance, and retention infrastructure. The infrastructure and facilities necessary to
serve new growth would involve development of some facilities on-site within new development
projects, some facilities off-site on appropriately designated land, and may also involve
improvements to existing facilities and disturbance of existing rights-of-way. The specific impacts of
providing new and expanded drainage facilities cannot be determined at this time, as the General
Plan does not propose or approve any specific development project nor does it designate specific
sites for new or expanded public facilities.

Stormwater drainage and conveyance facilities would be evaluated at the project-level in association
with subsequent development projects. However, the facilities would be primarily provided on sites
with land use designations that allow such uses and the environmental impacts of constructing and
operating the facilities would likely be similar to those associated with new development,
redevelopment, and infrastructure projects under the General Plan.

The proposed General Plan includes policies and actions designed to ensure adequate drainage
infrastructure is available to serve development, to minimize the potential adverse effects of
stormwater conveyance, and to ensure that development does not move forward until adequate
drainage capacity exists. Specifically, the proposed General Plan requires all development projects
to demonstrate how storm water runoff will be detained or retained on-site and/or conveyed to the
nearest drainage facility as part of the development review process and as required by the City’s
NPDES Municipal Regional Permit. Project applicants are required to mitigate any drainage impacts
as necessary and the General Plan requires the City to maintain drainage channels in a naturalized
condition to the greatest extent feasible, and as feasible to include pervious surfaces.

As future development and infrastructure projects are considered by the City, each project will be
evaluated for conformance with the General Plan, Municipal Code, and other applicable regulations.
Subsequent development and infrastructure projects would also be analyzed for potential

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-25
658



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

environmental impacts, consistent with the requirements of CEQA. As such, this is a less than
significant impact and no additional mitigation is required.

The policies and actions listed below would further ensure that there is adequate stormwater
drainage and flood control infrastructure to serve future development under the General Plan, and
would ensure that future drainage and flood control infrastructure projects do not result in adverse
environmental impacts.

GENERAL PLAN POLICIES AND ACTIONS THAT MINIMIZE POTENTIAL IMPACTS

SAFETY SERVICES POLICIES

SA 2.1: Support and participate in planning efforts 3.14 at the local, regional, State, and Federal
levels to improve flood management facilities and dam safety.

SA 2.2: Require all new development projects to demonstrate how storm water runoff will be
detained or retained on-site, treated, and/or conveyed to the nearest drainage facility as part of the
development review process. Project applicants shall demonstrate that project implementation
would not result in increases in the peak flow runoff to adjacent lands or drainage facilities that
would exceed the design capacity of the drainage facility or result in an increased potential for off-
site flooding.

SA 2.3: Ensure that construction activities and new development projects will not result in adverse
impacts to existing properties and flood control and drainage structures.

SA 2.7: Encourage flood control measures that respect natural drainage features, vegetation, and
natural waterways, while still providing for adequate flood control and protection.

SA 2.8: Ensure that any development activity that requires a grading permit does not impact adjacent
properties, local creeks and storm drainage systems by designing and building the site to drain
properly to minimize drainage issues and erosion.

SAFETY SERVICES ACTIONS

SA-2a: As part of the development review process require new development projects to prepare
hydraulic and storm drainage studies as necessary to define the net increase in storm water run-off
resulting from construction and require mitigation to reduce impacts. Drainage and grading plans
shall identify BMP protections and include standards established and recommended by the City
that shall be incorporated into development.

3.15-26 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

659



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 3.15

3.15.4 SoLID WASTE

Waste Management, a private garbage collection company, provides residential (single family and
multi-family) and commercial garbage, recycling, and green waste collection services within the city
limits.

KEY TERMS

Class | landfill: A landfill that accepts for disposal 20 tons or more of municipal solid waste daily
(based on an annual average); or one that does not qualify as a Class Il or Class Ill municipal solid
waste landfill.

Class Il landfill: A landfill that (1) accepts less than 20 tons daily of municipal solid waste (based on
an annual average); (2) is located on a site where there is no evidence of groundwater pollution
caused or contributed by the landfill; (3) is not connected by road to a Class | municipal solid waste
landfill, or, if connected by road, is located more than 50 miles from a Class | municipal solid waste
landfill; and (4) serves a community that experiences (for at least three months each year) an
interruption in access to surface transportation, preventing access to a Class | landfill, or a
community with no practicable waste management alternative.

Class Il landfill: A landfill that is not connected by road to a Class | landfill or a landfill that is located
at least 50 miles from a Class | landfill. Class Il landfills can accept no more than an average of one
ton daily of ash from incinerated municipal solid waste or less than five tons daily of municipal solid
waste.

Transfer station: A facility for the temporary deposition of some wastes. Transfer stations are often
used as places where local waste collection vehicles will deposit their waste cargo prior to loading
into larger vehicles. These larger vehicles will transport the waste to the end point of disposal or
treatment.

WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES

The City of Willows has a contract with Waste Management to collect solid waste, recycling, and
green waste from the residential and commercial sector. Waste Management is a private garbage
collection company, provides residential (single family and multi-family) and commercial garbage,
recycling, and green waste collection services within the city limits. The company's network includes
346 transfer stations 293 active landfill disposal sites, 146 recycling plants, 111 beneficial-use landfill
gas projects and six independent power production plants. Waste Management offers
environmental services to nearly 21 million residential, industrial, municipal and commercial
customers in 48 United States, Canada, and Puerto Rico. With 26,000 collection and transfer
vehicles, the company has the largest trucking fleet in the waste industry. Together with its
competitor Republic Services, Inc, the two handle more than half of all garbage collection in the
United States. With nearly 26,000 collection and transfer vehicles, waste management operates the
largest trucking fleet in the waste industry, collecting over 80 million tons of solid waste each year.
The company serves more than 20 million customers, offering a wide range of services, from picking
up household trash at a single-subscription residence to providing comprehensive waste programs

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-27
660



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

for large national customers with hundreds of locations. Refuse, recycling, and green waste bins are
picked up once per week in the City of Willows.

The City of Willows has a three (3) cart system for the collection of garbage, recycling and green
waste. The three-cart system was established to enable residents to assist in reducing the amount
of waste that is dumped in landfills. Recycling service is provided for newspapers, cardboard
(including cereal boxes, soda boxes, etc.), glass bottles and jars, aluminum, tin, steel, plastic
containers, and all junk mail and phone books.

WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITIES

The vast majority of landfill disposal from the City of goes to the Glenn County Landfill, owned and
operated by the Glenn County Waste & Recycling Department.

Glenn County Landfill & Transfer Station

Glenn County owns and operates the 195+ acre Glenn County Landfill Site, located on County Road
33, west of Artois. It was a Class Il landfill (a facility at which protection is provided to water quality
from municipal, industrial and agricultural wastes) with a maximum permitted capacity of 2,400,000
cubic yards, however, the landfill facility closed in 2020. This site used to receive agricultural waste,
construction and demolition waste, dead animal, industrial, inert, mixed municipal waste, and tires.

The Glenn County Transfer Station is a municipal solid waste, materials recovery facility, transfer
station, and anaerobic digestion facility. These facilities and associated facilities, equipment and
operations are to manage municipal solid waste from Glenn County (including Willows) and
potentially from the City of Chico. Waste collected at the transfer station that cannot be recycled is
distributed to various out-of-county landfills for disposal.

HAZARDOUS WASTE DISPOSAL

Glenn County Air Pollution Control District implements the Hazardous Waste Generator Program
throughout Glenn County. The purpose of this program is to ensure that all hazardous waste
generated in Glenn County businesses is properly handled, recycled, stored and disposed. Air
Pollution staff inspect facilities that generate hazardous waste, investigate reports of illegal
hazardous waste disposal, and respond to emergency spills of hazardous chemicals.

3.15-28 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

661



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 3.15

SOLID WASTE GENERATION RATES AND VOLUMES

The California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) tracks and monitors
solid waste generation rates on a per capita basis. Per capita solid waste generation rates and total
annual solid waste disposal volumes for Glenn County between 2014 and 2018 are shown in Table
3.15-5 below.

TABLE 3.15-5: SOLID WASTE GENERATION RATES IN GLENN COUNTY

WASTE GENERATION RATES
TOTAL DISPOSAL TONNAGE
YEAR (POUNDS/PERSON/DAY)
(TONS/YEAR)
PER RESIDENT PER EMPLOYEE

2014 3.9 28,465 20,236
2015 3.8 28,530 20,038
2016 4.2 28,604 21,758
2017 3.8 28,694 20,046
2018 4.4 28,762 23,232

SOURCE: HTTP://WWW.CALRECYCLE.CA.GOV/LGCENTRAL/REPORTS/JURISDICTION/REVIEWREPORTS.ASPX ~ ACCESSED JUNE
20169.

As shown in the Table 3.15-5 above, the per capita waste generation rate increased from 3.9to 4.4
Ibs/person/day over the 5 year (2014-2018) period, however, the total annual disposal tonnage in
Glenn County increased by 2,996 tons over the 2014 to 2018 time span. With the passage of SB
1016, per capita disposal rate is used to determine the diversion progress of a county and not the
jurisdictional diversion rates. Therefore, a population increase resulting in the generation of more
overall county waste does not affect the jurisdiction’s ability to meet its waste goals. The County’s
waste disposal rate targets are shown in Table 3.15-5.

As shown in the above table, for the years 2014 through 2018 (the latest year of data available), the
per capita waste generation rate in Glenn County was at the lowest level in 2015; and the total
annual disposal tonnage in Glenn County was at their lowest level (during this period) in 2015. Glenn
County, partnered by the City of Willows, complied with State requirements to reduce the volume
of solid waste through recycling and reuse of solid waste. Glenn County achieved the County’s per
capita disposal target rates for 2018 of 4.8 and 19.4 pounds per person per day for residents and
employees, respectively, as established by CalRecycle.

REGULATORY SETTING — SOLID WASTE

FEDERAL

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act

The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) was enacted in 1976 to address the huge
volumes of municipal and industrial solid waste generated nationwide. After several amendments,
the current Act governs the management of solid and hazardous waste and underground storage
tanks (USTs). RCRA was an amendment to the Solid Waste Disposal Act of 1965. RCRA has been
amended several times, most significantly by the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA)

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-29
662



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

of 1984. RCRA is a combination of the first solid waste statutes and all subsequent amendments.
RCRA authorizes the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to regulate waste management
activities. RCRA authorizes states to develop and enforce their own waste management programs,
in lieu of the Federal program, if a state's waste management program is substantially equivalent
to, consistent with, and no less stringent than the Federal program.

STATE

California Integrated Waste Management Act (AB 939 and SB 1322)

The California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 (AB 939 and SB 1322) requires every city
and county in the state to prepare a Source Reduction and Recycling Element to its Solid Waste
Management Plan that identifies how each jurisdiction will meet the mandatory state waste
diversion goals of 25% by 1995 and 50% by 2000. The purpose of AB 939 and SB 1322 is to “reduce,
recycle, and re-use solid waste generated in the state to the maximum extent feasible.” The term
“integrated waste management” refers to the use of a variety of waste management practices to
safely and effectively handle the municipal solid waste stream with the least adverse impact on
human health and the environment. The Act has established a waste management hierarchy, as
follows: Source Reduction; Recycling; Composting; Transformation; and Disposal.

California Integrated Waste Management Board Model Ordinance

Subsequent to the Integrated Waste Management Act, additional legislation was passed to assist
local jurisdictions in accomplishing the goals of AB 939. The California Solid Waste Re-use and
Recycling Access Act of 1991 (§42900-42911 of the Public Resources Code) directs the California
Integrated Waste Management Board (CIWMB) to draft a “model ordinance” relating to adequate
areas for collecting and loading recyclable materials in development projects. The model ordinance
requires that any new development project, for which an application is submitted on or after
September 1, 1994, include “adequate, accessible, and convenient areas for collecting and loading
recyclable materials.” For subdivisions of single family detached homes, recycling areas are required
to serve only the needs of the homes within that subdivision.

LocAL

Willows Municipal Code, Chapter 8.05: Garbage, Rubbish and Weeds

Section 8.05 of the Willows Municipal Code provides rules and regulations regarding garbage
collection and disposal. It includes general provisions, such as the unlawful accumulations of garbage
and burying garbage (Article 1), collection and transportation of garbage (Article Il), weeds and
rubbish removal (Article Ill), waste disposal sites (Article 1V) and a description of fees and other
requirements.

3.15-30 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

663



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 3.15

THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Consistent with Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, the proposed project will have a significant
impact on the environment associated with Utilities if it would:

e Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of
local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals;
and/or

e Comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations
related to solid waste.

IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES

Impact 3.15-6: General Plan implementation would comply with federal,
state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations
related to solid waste, and would not generate solid waste in excess of State
or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of local infrastructure, or
otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals (Less than
Significant)

Future development of projects as contemplated under the proposed General Plan may increase
the population within the Planning Area at buildout to approximately 7,993 persons. As described
above, the Glenn County disposed of 23,232 tons of solid waste in 2018 achieving a disposal rate of
4.4 PPD per resident. Assuming these disposal rates remain constant throughout the life of the
General Plan, the new growth under General Plan buildout would result in an increase of
approximately 7,700 pounds per day of solid waste, which equals 3.85 tons per day or 1,405.25 tons
of solid waste per year.

Glenn County owns and operates the 195+ acre Glenn County Landfill Site, located on County Road
33, west of Artois. It was a Class Il landfill (a facility at which protection is provided to water quality
from municipal, industrial and agricultural wastes) with a maximum permitted capacity of 2,400,000
cubic yards, however, the landfill facility closed in 2020. This site used to receive agricultural waste,
construction and demolition waste, dead animal, industrial, inert, mixed municipal waste, and tires.

The Glenn County Transfer Station is a municipal solid waste, materials recovery facility, transfer
station, and anaerobic digestion facility. These facilities and associated facilities, equipment and
operations are to manage municipal solid waste from Glenn County (including Willows) and
potentially from the City of Chico. Waste collected at the transfer station that cannot be recycled is
distributed to various out-of-county landfills for disposal.

The City’s projected increase in solid waste generation associated with future buildout of the
proposed General Plan is within the permitted capacity of the new Glenn County Solid Waste
Facilities. Therefore, this is a less than significant impact.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-31
664



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

Future projects within the Planning Area would be required to comply with applicable state and local
requirements including those pertaining to solid waste, construction waste diversion, and recycling.
While there is adequate permitted landfill capacity to accommodate future growth, the proposed
General Plan includes actions to further reduce the project’s impact on solid waste services, as
identified below. The General Plan would not exceed the permitted capacity of the landfill serving
the city, and the General Plan complies with regulations related to solid waste.

GENERAL PLAN ACTIONS THAT MINIMIZE POTENTIAL IMPACTS
CONSERVATION AND OPEN SPACE ELEMENT POLICIES

COS 8.1: Provide adequate waste disposal, recycling, and reuse services for present and future
residents and businesses, including programs that improve public access to solid waste collection
and recycling facilities.

COS 8.2: Participate in source reduction and recycling efforts to reduce the amount of solid waste
sent to the landfill and extend the life of the landfill.

COS 8.3: Comply with Assembly Bill 939 source reduction and recycling requirements of 50 percent
diversion of solid waste from landfills. Continue to strengthen local recycling efforts in order to assist
the State in meeting the Statewide source reduction, recycling, and composting requirements
established by Assembly Bill 341.

COS 8.4: Increase the City’s role in the source reduction and recycling components of waste
management through recycling programs at City facilities to reduce the quantity of City-generated
waste.

COS 8.5: Ensure that special waste—including hazardous materials, tires, medications, infectious
waste, asbestos waste, construction waste, and electronic waste—are recycled and disposed of in a
manner that is safe for the environment, residents, and employees.

COS 8.6: Educate the public on ways to divert household waste from the landfill, including education
programs on reducing, reusing, and recycling material.

COS 8.7: Consistent with SB 1383 conduct education and outreach on organics recycling to all
residents, businesses (including those that generate edible food that can be donated) haulers, solid
waste facilities, and local food banks and other food recovery organizations.

SAFETY ELEMENT POLICIES

SA 5.1: Encourage residents and businesses to minimize the use of toxic materials and products
including the application of pesticides.

SA 5.2: Encourage local producers and users of hazardous materials to reduce the amounts of
hazardous materials generated.

3.15-32 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

665



UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 3.15

SA 5.3: Require hazardous waste generated within the City to be disposed of in a safe manner,
consistent with all applicable local, State, and Federal laws.

SA 5.4: Require hazardous materials to be stored in a safe manner, consistent with all applicable
local, State, and Federal laws.

SA 5.5: Require compliance with the Glenn County Air Pollution Control District Hazardous Waste
Generator Program.

CONSERVATION AND OPEN SPACE ELEMENT ACTIONS

COS-8a: Continue existing, and develop new, diversion strategies (including source reduction,
recycling, composting and yard waste programs) to reduce solid waste disposal volume to meet the
State-mandated level.

COS-8b: Pursue public funding sources, such as grants, to reduce fiscal impacts of continued
implementation of recycling programs.

COS-8c: Continue to implement, and update as necessary, the City’s Municipal Code to regulate
issues related to solid waste, including but not limited to Chapter 8.05 (Garbage, Rubbish and
Weeds).

COS-8d: Develop and promote citywide reuse events such as a Community Garage Sale, and
encourage community groups and organizations to pursue reuse events and activities to prevent
reusable items from going into the landfill.

COS-8e: Provide a conservation page (or similar page) on the City’s website that provides links to
resources and provides information regarding local and regional recycling programs, opportunities
for reuse of materials, composting strategies, organics recycling, and opportunities for the disposal
of hazardous waste.

SAFETY ELEMENT ACTIONS

SA-5a: Work with existing business to require acceptance of oils, paints and other recyclable
hazardous materials.

SA-5b: Coordinate with the Glenn County Air Pollution Control District as the Certified Unified
Program Agency (CUPA) to ensure that businesses that handle hazardous materials prepare and file
a Hazardous Materials Management Plan (HMMP), and Hazardous Materials Inventory Statement
(HMIS). The HMMP and HMIS shall consist of general business information, basic information on the
location, type, quantity, and health risks of hazardous materials, and emergency response and
training plans.

SA-5c: Provide educational opportunities for generators of small quantity, household, and urban
agriculture waste products regarding their responsibilities for source reduction and proper and safe
hazardous waste management and disposal.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 3.15-33
666



3.15 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

SA-5d: Provide information about drop-off programs for the local disposal of household hazardous
waste offered in Glenn County. The availability of the programs should be widely publicized
throughout the community.

SA-5e: Refer all permits for new projects or major additions to existing uses located on sites identified
by the State as having or containing likely hazardous substances or materials to the Glenn County
Air Pollution Control District to ensure compliance with applicable State and local regulations. If
warranted, identify and require mitigation measures to ensure the exposure to hazardous materials
from historical uses has been mitigated to acceptable levels consistent with EPA and/or DTSC
standards.

3.15-34 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

667



WILDFIRES 3.16

This section provides a background discussion of the hazards associated with wildfires in the
Planning Area. Additional information related to fire hazards including the discussion of fire
suppression resources is located within Chapter 3.13, Public Services and Recreation, and
information related to Fire Hazards including Fire Hazard Mapping is included in Chapter 3.8
(Hazards and Hazardous Materials) of this report.

No comments were received during the NOP comment period regrading this environmental topic.

3.16.1 ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING
FIRE HAZARD SEVERITY ZONES

The state has charged the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CalFire)with the
identification of Fire Hazard Severity Zones (FHSZ) within State Responsibility Areas (SRAs). In
addition, CalFire must recommend Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones (VHFHSZ) identified within
any Local Responsibility Areas (LRAs). The FHSZ maps are used by the State Fire Marshall as a basis
for the adoption of applicable building code standards.

The Planning Area includes LRAs and a responsibility area (Sharpe Army Depot). No State or
Federal Responsibility Areas are included within City boundaries.

Local Responsibility Areas

The Willows Planning Area is located within a Local Responsibility Area (LRA). CalFire has
determined that the City of Willows has no Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones (VHFHSZ) within
Local Responsibility Areas.

State Responsibility Areas

There are no SRAs within the vicinity of the Planning Area.

Federal Responsibility Areas

There are no FRAs within the vicinity of the Planning Area.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update 3.16-1
668



3.16 WILDFIRES

3.16.2 REGULATORY SETTING
FEDERAL

FY 2001 Appropriations Act

Title IV of the Appropriations Act required the identification of “Urban Wildland Interface
Communities in the Vicinity of Federal Lands that are at High Risk from Wildfire” by the U.S.
Departments of the Interior and Agriculture.

Disaster Mitigation Act (2000)

Section 104 of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (Public Law 106-390) enacted Section 322,
Mitigation Planning of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, which
created incentives for state and local entities to coordinate hazard mitigation planning and
implementation efforts, and is an important source of funding for fuels mitigation efforts through
hazard mitigation grants.

National Fire Plan 2000

The summer of 2000 marked a historic milestone in wildland fire records for the United States. Dry
conditions (across the western United States), led to destructive wildfire events on an estimated
7.2 million acres, nearly double the 10-year average. Costs in damages including fire suppression
activities were approximately 2.1 billion dollars. Congressional direction called for substantial new
appropriations for wildland fire management. This resulted in action plans, interagency strategies,
and the Western Governor’s Association’s “A Collaborative Approach for Reducing Wildland Fire
Risks to Communities and the Environment - A 10-Year Comprehensive Strategy - Implementation
Plan”, which collectively became known as the National Fire Plan. This plan places a priority on
collaborative work within communities to reduce their risk from large-scale wildfires.

Healthy Forest Initiative 2002 /Healthy Forest Restoration ACT 2003

In August 2002, the Healthy Forests Initiative (HFI) was launched with the intent to reduce the
severe wildfires risks that threaten people, communities, and the environment. Congress then
passed the Healthy Forests Restoration Act (HFRA) on December 3, 2003 to provide the additional
administrative tools needed to implement the HFl. The HFRA strengthened efforts to restore
healthy forest conditions near communities by authorizing measures such as expedited
environmental assessments for hazardous fuels projects on federal land. This Act emphasized the
need for federal agencies to work collaboratively with communities in developing hazardous fuel
reduction projects and places priority on fuel treatments identified by communities themselves in
their Community Wildfire Protection Plans.

Department of the Interior Department Manual Part 620

Wildland Fire Management. Part 620 of the Department of the Interior Departmental Manual
pertains to wildland fire management policies, with the goal of providing an integrated approach
to wildland fire management. The guiding principles of the plan emphasize the need for public

3.16-2 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update

669



WILDFIRES 3.16

health and safety considerations, risk management protocols, inter-agency collaboration, and
economic feasibility of wildfire management practices, as well as the ecological role of wildfires.

STATE

California Government Code Section 65302

This section, which establishes standards for developing and updating General Plans, includes fire
hazard assessment and Safety Element content requirements.

California Strategic Fire Plan

This statewide plan is a strategic document, which guides fire policy for much of California. The
plan is aimed at reducing wildfire risk through pre-fire mitigation efforts tailored to local areas
through assessments of fuels, hazards, and risks.

California State Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan

The purpose of the State Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan (SHMP) is to significantly reduce deaths,
injuries, and other losses attributed to natural- and human-caused hazards in California. The SHMP
provides guidance for hazard mitigation activities emphasizing partnerships among local, state,
and federal agencies as well as the private sector.

California Government Code

California Government Code Section 65302.5 requires the State Board of Forestry and Fire
Protection to provide recommendations for a local jurisdiction’s General Plan fire safety element
when the jurisdiction amends its general plan. While not a direct and binding fire prevention
requirement for individuals, general plans that adopt the Board’s recommendations will include
goals and policies that provide for contemporary fire prevention standards for the jurisdiction.
While the State Board of Forestry and Fire Protection has not specifically commented on the
Proposed General Plan at the time that this EIR was written, the Proposed General Plan has been
developed to include best practices to ensure contemporary fire prevention standards, as
described in greater detail under the impact discussions below.

California Government Code Section 51175 defines Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones and
designates lands considered by the State to be a very high fire hazard.

California Government Code Section 51189 directs the Office of the State Fire Marshal to create
building standards for wildland fire resistance. The code includes measures that increase the
likelihood of a structure withstanding intrusion by fire (such as building design and construction
requirements that use fire-resistant building materials) and provides protection of structure
projections (such as porches, decks, balconies and eaves), and structure openings (such as attics,
eave vents, and windows).

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update 3.16-3
670



3.16 WILDFIRES

California Public Resource Code

The State’s Fire Safe Regulations are set forth in Public Resources Code Section 4290, which
include the establishment of SRAs.

Public Resources Code Section 4291 sets forth defensible space requirements, which are
applicable to anyone that ...owns, leases, controls, operates, or maintains a building or structure
in, upon, or adjoining a mountainous area, forest-covered lands, brush-covered lands, grass-
covered lands, or land that is covered with flammable material (§4291(a)).

Public Resources Code Sections 4292-4296 and 14 CCR 1256, Fire Prevention for Electrical Utilities,
address the vegetation clearance standards for electrical utilities. They include the standards for
clearing around energy lines and conductors such as power-line hardware and power poles. These
regulations are critical to wildland fire safety because of the substantial number of power lines in
wildlands, the historic source of fire ignitions associated with power lines, and the extensive
damage that results from power line caused wildfires in severe wind conditions.

Assembly Bill 337

Per Assembly Bill 337, local fire prevention authorities and CalFire are required to identify VHFHSZs
in LRAs. Standards related to brush clearance and the use of fire resistant materials in fire hazard
severity zones are also established.

Uniform Fire Code

The Uniform Fire Code (UFC) establishes standards related to the design, construction, and
maintenance of buildings. The standards set forth in the UFC range from designing for access by
firefighters and equipment and minimum requirements for automatic sprinklers and fire hydrants
to the appropriate storage and use of combustible materials.

Senate Bill No. 1241

California Senate Bill No. 1241 requires that the Safety Element component of city or county
general plans to incorporate fire risk related to SRAs and Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones.

Code of Regulations Title 8 (Cal/OSHA)

In accordance with CCR, Title 8, Section 1270 and Section 6773 (Fire Prevention and Fire Protection
and Fire Equipment), the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (Cal OSHA) establishes
fire suppression service standards. The standards range from fire hose size requirements to the
design of emergency access roads.

Code of Regulations Title 14 (Natural Resources)

Division 1.5 (Department of Forestry and Fire Protection), Title 14 of the CCR establishes a variety
of wildfire preparedness, prevention, and response regulations.

3.16-4 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update

671



WILDFIRES 3.16

Code of Regulations Title 19 (Public Safety)

Title 19 of the CCR establishes a variety of emergency fire response, fire prevention, and

construction and construction materials standards.

3.16.3 IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES

THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Consistent with Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, the proposed Project will have a significant
impact related to wildfires if:

e Located in or near State Responsibility Areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard
severity zones, the project would:

O

Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency
evacuation plan.

Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and
thereby expose project occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or
the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire.

Require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such as
roads, fuel breaks, emergency water sources, power lines or other utilities) that
may exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the
environment.

Expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or
downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope instability,
or drainage changes.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update 3.16-5

672



3.16 WILDFIRES

IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES

Impact 3.16-1: General Plan implementation would not have a significant
impact related to wildfire risks associated with lands in or near State
Responsibility Areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity
zones (No Impact)

The Planning Area is not located in or near any State Responsibility Areas and there are no lands
classified as very high fire hazard severity zones (VHFHSZ) within or near the Planning Area.
Therefore, the General Plan would have no impact related to wildfire risks associated with lands in
or near State Responsibility Areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity zones.

3.16-6 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update

673



OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED Toprics 4.0

CEQA requires an EIR to evaluate a project's effects in relationship to broader changes that are
occurring or that may foreseeably occur, in the surrounding environment. Accordingly, this chapter
presents discussion of CEQA-mandated analysis for cumulative impacts, irreversible impacts, and
growth inducement associated with the proposed General Plan.

4.1 CUMULATIVE SETTING AND IMPACT ANALYSIS
INTRODUCTION

CEQA requires that an EIR contain an assessment of the cumulative impacts that could be associated
with the General Plan. According to CEQA Guidelines Section 15130(a), “an EIR shall discuss
cumulative impacts of a project when the project’s incremental effect is cumulatively considerable.”
“Cumulatively Considerable,” as defined in section 15065(a)(3), means that “the incremental effects
of an individual project are significant when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects,
the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects” (as defined by
Section 15130). As defined in CEQA Guidelines Section 15355, a cumulative impact consists of an
impact that is created as a result of the combination of the project evaluated in the EIR together
with other projects causing related impacts. A cumulative impact occurs from:

...the change in the environment which results from the incremental impact of the project
when added to other closely related past, present, and reasonably foreseeable future
projects. Cumulative impacts can result from individually minor but collectively significant
projects taking place over a period of time.

In addition, Section 15130(b) identifies that the following three elements are necessary for an
adequate cumulative analysis:

1) Either:

(A) A list of past, present, and probable future projects producing related or
cumulative impacts, including, if necessary, those projects outside the control of the
agency; or,

(B) A summary of projections contained in an adopted local, regional or statewide
plan, or related planning document, that describes or evaluates conditions
contributing to the cumulative effect. Such plans may include: a general plan,
regional transportation plan, or plans for the reduction of greenhouse gas
emissions. A summary of projections may also be contained in an adopted or
certified prior environmental document for such a plan. Such projections may be
supplemented with additional information such as a regional modeling program.
Any such planning document shall be referenced and made available to the public
at a location specified by the lead agency.

2) A summary of the expected environmental effects to be produced by those projects with
specific reference to additional information stating where that information is available; and

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 4.0-1

674



4.0  OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED TOPICS

3) A reasonable analysis of the cumulative impacts of the relevant projects. An EIR shall
examine reasonable, feasible options for mitigating or avoiding the project’s contribution to
any significant cumulative effects.

Where a lead agency is examining a project with an incremental effect that is not “cumulatively
considerable,” a lead agency need not consider that effect significant, but shall briefly describe its
basis for concluding that the incremental effect is not cumulatively considerable.

CUMULATIVE SETTING

Under CEQA, the discussion of cumulative impacts should focus on the severity of the impacts and
the likelihood of their occurrence. The geographic scope for the cumulative analysis covers the
entire Willows Planning Area, which includes the City limits and the Sphere of Influence, as shown
on Figure 2.0-2 (see Chapter 2.0: Project Description). It should be noted that, for some
environmental topics, the geographic scope for the cumulative analysis also covers the boundaries
of Glenn County, the Air Basin, and/or other jurisdictional boundaries that are relevant to the
particular environmental topic.

In most cases in this EIR, the buildout analysis utilizes a 20-year horizon, and 2040 is assumed to be
the buildout year of the General Plan. The year 2040 is used as the benchmark year for the
cumulative analysis contained in this EIR. This year was chosen based on the fact that the General
Plan was developed as a 20-year plan for Willows, and the General Plan is scheduled for adoption in
late 2022.

Land Use/Growth Projections

Table 4.0-1 includes a comparison of existing conditions, the current General Plan Land Use Map,
and the proposed General Plan Land Use Map in terms of population, housing units, nonresidential
development square footage, jobs, and the jobs-to-housing ratio. As shown in table 4.0-1 buildout
of the proposed General Plan could yield a total of up to 3,421 housing units, a population of 8,689
people, 2,157,625 square feet of non-residential building square footage, and 3,501 jobs within the
Planning Area. This represents development growth over existing conditions of up to 963 new
housing units, 2,446 people, 786,233 square feet of new non-residential building square footage and
1,310 jobs.

4.0-2 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

675



OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED TOPICS

4.0

TABLE 4.0-1: COMPARATIVE GROWTH PROJECTIONS, EXISTING GENERAL PLAN LAND USE MAP AND PROPOSED

LAND USE MAP

NON-RESIDENTIAL
DWELLING ]OBS PER
ALTERNATIVE POPULATION SQUARE FEET OF ]OBS
UNITS HoUSING UNIT
DEVELOPMENT
EXISTING CONDITIONS
6,243 2,458 1,371,392 2,191 0.89
NEW GROWTH
Proposed General Plan 2,446 963 786,233 1,310 1.36
Existing General Plan 970 382 726,096 1,210 3.17
ToTAL BUILDOUT GROWTH: EXISTING PLUS NEW GROWTH
Proposed General Plan 8,689 3,421 2,157,625 3,501 1.02
Existing General Plan 7,214 2,840 2,097,488 3,401 1.20

Source: DE Novo Planning Group 2022

Existing land uses in the Willows Planning Area can be characterized in broad terms of residential,
mixed use, public facilities, commercial and office, manufacturing and industrial, and open space.
Table 4.0-2 describes the existing land uses. The predominant land use in the Planning Area, in terms
of total acreage, is Low Density Residential within the City limits, and Intensive Agriculture within

the SOI.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

4.0-3

676




4.0  OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED TOPICS

TABLE 4.0-2 EXISTING LAND USES IN THE PLANNING AREA

LAND USE TOTAL PLANNING AREA ACREAGE PARCELS | PERCENT OF AREA
City 1,454.12 2297 100.0%
Commercial/Industrial Combining Use 193.47 25 1.1%
Entryway 23.55 78 3.4%
General Commercial 109.65 220 9.6%
General Industrial 101.92 23 1.0%
Highway Commercial 61.89 38 1.7%
Light Industrial 157.88 30 1.3%
Low Density Residential 488.57 1609 70.0%
Multiple Family Residential 33.15 63 2.7%
Office and Professional 44.98 141 6.1%
Open Space 42.81 5 0.2%
Public Facilities and Services 168.73 62 2.7%
ROW/Canal 27.51 3 0.1%
SOl 3,599.09 722 100.0%
Agricultural/Residential 84.76 3 0.4%
Business Park 44.13 2 0.3%
Community Commercial 25.15 8 1.1%
General Agriculture 320.36 12 1.7%
Highway and Visitor Service Commercial 15.54 5 0.7%
Industrial 237.12 25 3.5%
Intensive Agriculture 1,682.80 41 5.7%
Multiple Family Residential 24.35 14 1.9%
Public Facilities 285.30 8 1.1%
Rural Residential 240.77 36 5.0%
Service Commercial 116.28 28 3.9%
Single Family Residential 158.20 313 43.4%
Suburban Residential 364.32 227 31.4%
Grand Total 5,053.21 3,019

*NoTE: THE WILLOWS SOI INCLUDES GLENN COUNTY’S LAND USE DESIGNATIONS,
SOURCES: GLENN COUNTY, 2019; GIS LAND USE DATA FILE; DE Novo PLANNING GROUP, 2022.

4.0-4 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

677



OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED Toprics 4.0

CUMULATIVE EFFECTS OF THE PROJECT

Method of Analysis

Although the environmental effects of an individual project may not be significant when that project
is considered separately, the combined effects of several projects may be significant when
considered collectively. Section 15130 of the CEQA Guidelines requires a reasonable analysis of a
project's cumulative impacts, which are defined as "two or more individual effects which, when
considered together are considerable or which compound or increase other environmental
impacts." The cumulative impact that results from several closely related projects is: the change in
the environment which results from the incremental impact of the project when added to other
closely related past, present, and reasonably foreseeable probable future projects. Cumulative
impacts can result from individually minor but collectively significant projects taking place over a
period of time (State CEQA Guidelines 15355[b]). Cumulative impact analysis may be less detailed
than the analysis of the project's individual effects (State CEQA Guidelines 15130[b]).

In order to assess cumulative impacts, an EIR must analyze either a list of past, present, and probable
future projects (referred to as the “list approach”) or a summary of projections contained in an
adopted general plan or related planning document (referred to as the “projection method”).
Because of the programmatic nature of the Willows General Plan, this Draft EIR uses the projection
method for the cumulative analysis and considers buildout of the proposed General Plan in addition
to buildout of the other General Plans within the County, as summarized and addressed in the Glenn
County 2020 Regional Transportation Plan (2020 RTP). Development of the RTP included review of
land use plans for each jurisdiction within Glenn County, including:

o Glenn County
o City of Willows
. City of Orland

According to the US Census, the population of Glenn County increased by approximately 15.1% each
decade from 1970 to 2010. During the 40-year period, the population grew from 17,521 to 28,122.
The California DOF projects that the population of Glenn County will increase 11.5% between 2020
and 2040, which translates to an average annual increase of 0.57%. Over the 20 year lifetime of the
Regional Transportation Plan, the population of 29,585 is expected to increase to 32,977 by 2040.

Cumulative Impacts

Cumulative impacts for most issue areas are not quantifiable and are therefore discussed in general
qualitative terms as they pertain to development patterns in the surrounding region. An exception
to this is a topic like traffic, which may be quantified by estimating future traffic patterns, pollutant
emitters, etc. and determining the combined effects that may result. In consideration of the
cumulative scenario described above, the proposed project may result in the following cumulative
impacts.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 4.0-5

678



4.0  OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED TOPICS

AESTHETICS AND VISUAL RESOURCES

Impact 4.1: Cumulative degradation of the existing visual character of the region (Less
than Cumulatively Considerable)

While the Willows Planning Area contains areas and viewsheds with relatively high scenic value,
there are no officially designated scenic vista points in the Planning Area. Additionally, as described
in Chapter 3.1, there are no officially designated scenic highways located in the vicinity of Willows.
Significant visual resources in the Planning Area include distant foothill views, and views of
agricultural lands surrounding the city.

The most significant visual feature outside the Willows Planning Area are Coastal Ranges to the east
in Glenn County. The Coastal Ranges are a prominent landmark dominating the skyline. Willows’
image is of an urban community located at the flat plain between the foothills of the Coastal Range
to the West and the Sutter Buttes to the East. Extensive agricultural lands surround the city and
provide visual relief and make expansive view of surrounding areas possible.

However, as noted in greater detail in the Project Description (Chapter 2.0), implementation of the
proposed General Plan could lead to new and expanded urban and suburban development
throughout the City. This new development may result in changes to the skyline throughout the
Planning Area, which may obstruct or interfere with views of visual features surrounding the
Planning Area. Furthermore, buildout under the proposed General Plan and implementation of the
General Plan Land Use Map has the potential to result in new and expanded development along
highway corridors with high scenic values, even though these corridors are not officially designated
as State Scenic Highways.

While growth is anticipated to occur in the Willows Planning Area and within the other cities within
Glenn County, the majority of growth is anticipated to occur in and around existing urban
development. Development of land uses and associated infrastructure is planned to occur in the
future to accommodate growth envisioned in the general plans that are effective within the
cumulative analysis area, including the lands surrounding the city within Glenn County.

Regional growth has and will continue to result in a cumulative aesthetic effect by converting
undeveloped land into developed and occupied areas and increasing overall levels of nighttime
lighting. Cumulative development entails grading/landform alteration, the development of
structures, and the installation of roadways and other infrastructure that has altered and will
continue to permanently alter the region's existing visual character. This is considered a potentially
significant cumulative impact. Subsequent projects implemented under the proposed General Plan
would be required to be consistent with the policies and actions of the proposed General Plan and
adopted regulations pertaining to aesthetics and lighting in Willows. With implementation of
adopted policies and regulations provided in Section 3.1 (Aesthetics and Visual Resources), the
proposed General Plan would not considerably contribute to permanent changes in visual character,
such as obstruction of scenic views, conversion of existing visual character, and increased lighting.
The policies and actions included within the General Plan would fully reduce the cumulative effect
of the General Plan on visual character, to mitigate the proposed project's contribution to a less-

4.0-6 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

679



OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED Toprics 4.0

than-significant level. Therefore, the proposed General Plan’s incremental contribution to this
cumulative impact would be less than cumulatively considerable.

AGRICULTURAL AND FOREST RESOURCES

Impact 4.2: Cumulative impact to agricultural lands and resources (Cumulatively
Considerable and Significant and Unavoidable)

There are no forest lands or timber lands located within the Willows Planning Area. As described in
Chapter 3.2, there are Important Farmlands located within the city and SOI, including approximately
1,788.11 acres of Prime Farmland, 759.29 acres of Statewide Important Farmland and 551.05 acres
of locally important farmland.

The General Plan has taken a proactive approach to developing policies and actions that provide
protection and preservation of agricultural lands are identified under Impact 3.2-1 and 3.2-2.
However, there are currently undeveloped parcels within the City limits and SOI that are classified
as Prime Farmlands or Important Farmlands, some of which are actively farmed. While not all these
farmlands are currently designated for agricultural uses, they are still considered to be agricultural
resources.

As described in greater detail under Impact 3.2-1, there is no feasible mitigation available to reduce
this impact to a less than significant level. Other conversions of farmland within the County over the
buildout period is also likely to occur. Furthermore, there are lands within the Willows Planning Area
that are currently under a Williamson Act contract. Policies and actions identified in Chapter 3.2
would reduce this impact, and other General Plans in Glenn County have also mitigated potential
impacts to agricultural resources. Nevertheless, this is considered a cumulatively considerable and
significant and unavoidable impact.

AIR QUALITY

Impact 4.3: Cumulative impact on the region’s air quality (Cumulatively Considerable
and Significant and Unavoidable)

With respect to local air quality emissions, toxic air contaminant emissions, and health impacts,
future development under the General Plan would be required to comply with CARB, Title 24 energy
efficiency standards, and the proposed General Plan policies and actions.

As described in Chapter 3.3, implementation of the proposed Project would result in an
approximately increase in citywide VMT. Additionally, as described previously in Chapter 3.3, Glenn
County has a State designation of Nonattainment for 03, PM10, and PM2.5 and is either Unclassified
or Attainment for all other criteria pollutants. The County has a national designation of
Nonattainment for O3 and PM 2.5. The County is designated either attainment or unclassified for
the remaining national standards. The Glenn County APCD does not provide criteria pollutant
thresholds for General Plans (such as the proposed Project). As such, there is no programmatic
threshold of significance established for criteria pollutants for which to compare the proposed
General Plan.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 4.0-7

680



4.0  OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED TOPICS

Additionally as described in Chapter 3.14 (Transportation and Circulation) of this DEIR, the proposed
General Plan would result in increased per capita VMT and would also result in an increase in total
VMT in comparison to the existing condition. The policies and actions included throughout the
proposed General Plan cover the full breadth of air quality issues and promote air quality and vehicle
trip reductions throughout the city. However, even with implementation of the General Plan policies
and actions that would reduce criteria pollutant emissions, since the proposed General Plan would
new development that would increase the overall, and per capita VMT, this impact is considered
cumulatively considerable and significant and unavoidable.

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

Impact 4.4: Cumulative loss of biological resources, including habitats and special
status species (Less than Cumulatively Considerable)

Cumulative development anticipated throughout the greater Glenn County region will result in
impacts to biological resources, including the permanent loss of habitat for special status species,
corridor fragmentation, direct and indirect impacts to special status species, and reduction and
degradation of sensitive habitat. Biological resources are a limited resource and the cumulative loss
is considered significant.

Subsequent projects implemented under the proposed General Plan would be required to be
consistent with the policies and actions of the proposed General Plan. The implementation of an
individual project would require a detailed and site-specific review of the site to determine the
presence or absence of movement corridors, special-status species, and sensitive habitat on a given
project site. If movement corridors, special-status species, or sensitive habitat are present and
disturbance is required, Federal and State laws require measures to reduce, avoid, or compensate
for impacts to these resources. The requirements of these Federal and State laws are implemented
through the permit process. However, as provided under Chapter 3.4 (Biological Resources), with
implementation of the policies and actions included within the General Plan, implementation of the
General Plan would not generate a significant impact on biological resources. Therefore, the
proposed General Plan’s incremental contribution to this cumulative impact would be less than
cumulatively considerable.

CULTURAL AND TRIBAL RESOURCES

Impact 4.5: Cumulative impacts on known and undiscovered cultural resources (Less
than Cumulatively Considerable)

Construction of the individual development projects allowed under the land use designations of the
proposed General Plan may result in the discovery and removal of cultural resources, including
archaeological, historical, and Native American resources and human remains. The proposed
General Plan policies and actions, as well as State and Federal regulations, will reduce the risk to
resources in the region. As discussed in Chapter 3.5 (Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources), each
project would require specific surveys for potential resources and the evaluation of any resources
discovered during construction activities. Other policies and actions designed to reduce impacts to
cultural and tribal cultural resources within the Planning Area and the region as a whole are also

4.0-8 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

681



OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED Toprics 4.0

provided in Chapter 3.5 (Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources). Adherence to these policies,
actions, and regulations will avoid and/or minimize a cumulative loss of these important resources
if they are found during project-specific surveys or construction. Therefore, the proposed General
Plan’s incremental contribution to cumulative cultural resource impacts would be less than
cumulatively considerable.

GEOLOGY AND SOILS

Impact 4.6: Cumulative impacts related to geology and soils (Less than Cumulatively
Considerable)

Construction of the individual development projects allowed under the land use designations of the
proposed General Plan may result in risks associated with geology and soils. For example, there is
an ongoing possibility that a fault located anywhere in the state (or region) could rupture and cause
seismic ground shaking. Additionally, grading, excavation, removal of vegetation cover, and loading
activities associated with construction activities could temporarily increase runoff, erosion, and
sedimentation. Other geologic risks such as liquefaction, landslide, lateral spreading, and soil
expansion are also geologic risks that are present.

While some cumulative impacts will occur in the region as individual projects are constructed, the
proposed General Plan policies and actions, as well as State and Federal regulations, will reduce the
risk to people in the region. Considering the protection granted by local, State, and Federal agencies
and their requirements for seismic design, as discussed in Chapter 3.6 (Geology and Soils), the
overall cumulative impact would not be significant. As a result, the proposed General Plan’s
incremental contribution to cumulative geologic and soil impacts would be less than cumulatively
considerable.

GREENHOUSE GASES, CLIMATE CHANGE, AND ENERGY

Impact 4.7: Cumulative impacts related to greenhouse gases, climate change, and
energy (Considerable Contribution and Significant and Unavoidable)

Implementation of the General Plan would not directly result in the creation of GHG emissions.
However, subsequent development allowed under the General Plan would result in new projects
that would increase GHG emissions in the Planning Area.

There are a variety of ways in which a general plan could contribute to climate change and result in
the generation of GHGs. Sprawling land use patterns that place residences far from employment
and retail centers can result in increased vehicle miles traveled (VMT), which increase GHG
generation. The conversion of forest lands and open space areas into urbanized uses removes
vegetation and trees that have positive carbon sequestration value. Imbalances between local jobs
and housing can result in increased commute times and increased VMT associated with longer travel
distances between home and work.

Cumulative impacts are the collective impacts of one or more past, present, and future projects that,
when combined, result in adverse changes to the environment. GHG emissions are cumulative by
nature, given that they spread throughout the atmosphere on a global scale. In determining the

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 4.0-9

682



4.0  OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED TOPICS

significance of a project’s contribution to anticipated adverse future conditions, a lead agency
should generally undertake a two-step analysis. The first question is whether the combined effects
from both the proposed project and other projects would be cumulatively significant. If the agency
answers this inquiry in the affirmative, the second question is whether “the project’s incremental
effects are cumulatively considerable” and thus significant in and of themselves. The cumulative
project list for this issue (climate change) comprises anthropogenic (i.e., human-made) GHG
emissions sources across the globe and no project alone would reasonably be expected to contribute
to a noticeable incremental change to the global climate. However, legislation and executive orders
on the subject of climate change in California have established a statewide context and process for
developing an enforceable statewide cap on GHG emissions. Given the nature of environmental
consequences from GHGs and global climate change, CEQA requires that lead agencies consider
evaluating the cumulative impacts of GHGs. Small contributions to this cumulative impact (from
which significant effects are occurring and are expected to worsen over time) may be potentially
considerable and, therefore, significant.

As future development projects are received and reviewed by the City in subsequent years, those
projects will be reviewed for consistency with the General Plan and all relevant State-level programs
and requirements. All future projects must implement the most current version of the Title 24
energy efficiency requirements, as required by State law. Consistency with the General Plan and
other mandatory State-level programs would ensure that future project-level contributions to global
climate change would be less than significant. Moreover, as identified in Section 3.7 (Greenhouse
Gases, Climate Change, and Energy), buildout of the General Plan would not be expected to cause
an inefficient, wasteful, or unnecessary use of energy resources nor conflict with or obstruct a state
or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency.

In general, expanded and new energy infrastructure will be needed to serve growth contemplated
in the General Plan. The environmental effect of providing the energy and gas services is associated
with the physical impacts of providing new and expanded facilities. The specific impacts of providing
new and expanded facilities cannot be determined at this time, as the General Plan does not propose
or authorize development nor does it designate specific sites for new or expanded utilities facilities
and infrastructure. However, the facilities would be primarily provided on sites with land use
designations that allow such uses and the environmental impacts of constructing and operating the
governmental facilities would likely be similar to those associated with new development,
redevelopment, and infrastructure projects under the General Plan. These impacts are described in
the relevant chapters (Chapters 3.1 through 3.16, and 4.0) of this Draft EIR. Any future development
under the General Plan would be required to comply with regulations, policies, and standards
included in the General Plan, and would be subject to CEQA review as appropriate.

Nevertheless, there is no guarantee that the General Plan alone would be sufficient to limit GHGs to
the extent required by AB 32 and SB 375, and other federal and state regulations. Therefore, General
Plan implementation is considered to have the potential to generate GHG emissions that could have
a significant impact on the environment and/or conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation

4.0-10 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

683



OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED Toprics 4.0

adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases. This impact is considered
a cumulatively considerable and significant and unavoidable impact.

HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

Impact 4.8: Cumulative impacts related to hazardous materials and human health
risks (Less than Cumulatively Considerable)

As shown in Figure 3.8-1, the City of Willows and general vicinity are not categorized as “Very High”
FHSZ by CalFire. State Responsibility Areas are not found in the City limits. There are no Federal
Responsibility Areas within the Willows Planning Area. The proposed General Plan includes
requirements for adequate water supply and water flow availability, ensuring adequate emergency
access, adequate fire protection services, fire safe design site standards, and ensuring public
awareness regarding fire safety. All future projects allowed under the General Plan and future
projects within the cumulative analysis area would be required to comply with the provisions of
Federal, State, and local requirements related to wildland fire hazards, including State fire safety
regulations associated with wildland-urban interfaces, fire-safe building standards, and defensible
space requirements.

Construction of the individual development projects allowed under the land use designations of the
proposed General Plan may involve the transportation, use, and/or disposal of hazardous materials,
which may involve the use of equipment that contains hazardous materials (e.g., solvents and fuels
or diesel-fueled equipment), or the transportation of excavated soil and/or groundwater containing
contaminants from areas that are identified as being contaminated. Furthermore, because of the
regional nature of the General Plan, some future land uses will inevitably transport or use hazardous
materials within % mile of a school, or other sensitive receptors such as hospitals and residences.

New development would inevitably increase the use of some hazardous materials within the region,
resulting in potential health and safety effects related to hazardous materials use. Any use of
hazardous materials must be managed in accordance with federal, State, and local (including
Sacramento County) regulations to minimize any risk.

Hazardous materials incidents, if any, are typically site-specific and involve accidental spills or
inadvertent releases. Associated health and safety risks generally are limited to those individuals
using the materials or to persons in the immediate vicinity of the materials. Hazard-related impacts
tend to be site-specific and project-specific. While some cumulative impacts, such as those
associated with increases in the use of hazardous materials in the City associated with additional
development, will occur in the region as individual projects are constructed, the proposed General
Plan policies and actions, as well as State and Federal regulations, will reduce the project’s
contribution to risks to people in the region. Considering the protection granted by local, State, and
Federal agencies and their requirements for the use of hazardous materials in the region, as
discussed in Chapter 3.8 (Hazards and Hazardous Materials), the overall cumulative impact for
hazard impacts would not be significant. Therefore, this impact is considered less than cumulatively
considerable.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 4.0-11

684



4.0  OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED TOPICS

HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY

Impact 4.9: Cumulative impacts related to hydrology and water quality. (Less than
Cumulatively Considerable)

Construction of the individual development projects allowed under the land use designations of the
proposed General Plan has the potential to result in construction-related water quality impacts,
impacts to groundwater recharge, and cause flooding, erosion, or siltation from the alteration of
drainage patterns.

While some cumulative impacts will occur in the region as individual projects are constructed, the
proposed General Plan policies and actions, as well as State and Federal regulations, will
substantially reduce the impacts. Considering the protection granted by local, State, and Federal
agencies and their permit and monitoring requirements, as discussed in Chapter 3.9 (Hydrology and
Water Quality), and with implementation of the policies and actions included within the General
Plan, the overall cumulative impact would not be significant. As a result, the General Plan's
incremental contribution to cumulative hydrology impacts would be less than cumulatively
considerable.

LAND USE, POPULATION, AND HOUSING

Impact 4.10: Cumulative impacts related to local land use, population, and housing
(Less than Cumulatively Considerable)

Cumulative land use and planning impacts, such as the potential for conflicts with adjacent land uses
and consistency with adopted plans and regulations, are typically site and project-specific. It may be
determined in the project-specific design phase of a development project that an individual project
may require removal of homes and result in the displacement of people and housing; however,
these effects are not cumulatively considerable because there is adequate replacement housing
available under the proposed General Plan. Additionally, any removal of homes would require
adequate compensation to the homeowner in accordance with Federal and State laws.

The land uses allowed under the proposed General Plan provide opportunities for cohesive new
growth at in-fill locations within existing urbanized areas, as well as new growth within the Planning
Areain undeveloped areas designated for urban development, but would not create physical division
within existing communities. New development and redevelopment projects would be designed to
complement the character of existing neighborhoods and provide connectivity between existing
development and new development within the cumulative analysis area. The proposed General Plan
does not include any new roadways, infrastructure, or other features that would divide existing
communities. Moreover, with implementation of General Plan policies and actions intended to guide
growth to appropriate areas and provide services necessary to accommodate growth, the land uses
allowed under the proposed General Plan, the infrastructure anticipated to accommodate proposed
land uses, and the goal and policy framework would not induce growth that would exceed adopted
thresholds. Lastly, General Plan implementation would not displace substantial numbers of existing
people or housing, necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere. Therefore, the

4.0-12 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

685



OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED Toprics 4.0

proposed General Plan's incremental contribution to cumulative land use and population impacts
would be less than cumulatively considerable.

MINERAL RESOURCES

Impact 4.11: Cumulative impacts related to mineral resources (Less than Cumulatively
Considerable)

The primary mineral resources in Glenn County are sand, gravel, and natural gas. In 1997, the
California Geological Survey assessed Glenn County mineral resources, with a focus on aggregate
resources. Within Glenn County, 9 ARAs, including 41 subdivisions were identified as containing
significant resources of concrete-grade aggregate. These areas contain an estimated minimum of
357 million tons of concrete-grade aggregate resources and a maximum of 1,031 million tons.
Fourteen present production sites have an estimated 61 million tons of concrete-grade aggregate
reserves, including both sand and gravel.

New urban uses available for development are within the City of city limits and SOl and would not
be developed within an identified significant mineral resource area. There are no other known
mineral deposits or resources extraction areas within the City that are of significant value to the
region or the state.

As noted above, implementation of the proposed project would not result in loss of a mineral
resource. As a result, the General Plan's incremental contribution to cumulative mineral resource
impacts would be less than cumulatively considerable.

NOISE

Impact 4.12: Cumulative impacts related to noise (Less than Cumulatively
Considerable)

Chapter 3.12 (Noise) Table 3.12-11 shows the future noise levels and the increase in noise levels
associated with traffic on the local roadway network under a 20-year circulation system for the
proposed General Plan, versus existing conditions.

Buildout of the General Plan may contribute to the City’s transportation noises. As indicated by Table
3.12-11, the related traffic noise level increases with a circulation system buildout of the proposed
2040 General Plan are predicted to increase between 0.1 to 0.4 dB versus the existing (2019)
conditions.

General Plan Policies N-1.1 through N-1.8, and Action N-1a, identified below, are intended to
minimize exposure to excessive noise, including noise associated with traffic. Specifically, Policies
N-1.1 through N-1.8 support noise-compatible land uses in the vicinity of traffic noise sources and
require that new development and infrastructure projects be reviewed for consistency with the
noise standards established in Tables N-1 and N-2. The proposed General Plan standards required
under Policy N-1.3, for exposure to traffic noise meet or exceed the noise level standards of the
adopted General Plan.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 4.0-13

686



4.0  OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED TOPICS

As described in Chapter 3.12 the noise increases associated with the proposed General Plan comply
with the applicable tests of significance. Therefore, the proposed General Plan would have a less
than cumulatively considerable contribution relative to the cumulative noise environment in the
City.

PUBLIC SERVICES AND RECREATION

Impact 4.13: Cumulative impacts to public services and recreation (Less than
Cumulatively Considerable)

Development accommodated under the General Plan would result in additional residents and
businesses in the City, including new residential, industrial, office, and commercial uses. As
described in Chapter 2.0 (Project Description), buildout of the General Plan could yield a total of up
to 3,421 housing units, a population of 8,689 people, 2,157,625 square feet of non-residential
building square footage, and 3,501 jobs within the Planning Area at buildout. As shown in Table 2.0-
2, this represents development growth over existing conditions of up to 963 new housing units,
2.446 people, and 1,310 jobs.

Development and growth facilitated by the General Plan would result in increased demand for public
services, including fire protection, law enforcement, schools, parks, libraries, and other public and
governmental services. The General Plan includes policies and actions to ensure that public services
are provided at acceptable levels and to ensure that development and growth does not outpace the
provision of public services.

Cumulative growth that would occur within Glenn County and other areas within Glenn County over
the life of the proposed General Plan will result in increased demand for public services, including
fire protection, law enforcement, schools, parks, libraries, and other public and governmental
services. As the demand for public services and recreation increases, there will likely be a need to
address acceptable service ratios, response times, and other performance standards. New or
expanded service structures (e.g., offices, maintenance and administrative buildings, schools, parks,
fire facilities, libraries, etc.) will be needed to provide for adequate staffing, equipment, and
appropriate facilities to serve growth within the cumulative analysis area.

New facilities will be needed to serve growth contemplated in the General Plan. The environmental
effect of providing the public services is associated with the physical impacts of providing new and
expanded facilities. The specific impacts of providing new and expanded facilities cannot be
determined at this time, as the General Plan does not propose or authorize development nor does
it designate specific sites for new or expanded public facilities. However, the facilities would be
primarily provided on sites with land use designations that allow such uses and the environmental
impacts of constructing and operating the governmental facilities would likely be similar to those
associated with new development, redevelopment, and infrastructure projects under the General
Plan. These impacts are described in the relevant chapters (Chapters 3.1 through 3.16, and 4.0) of
this Draft EIR. Any future development under the General Plan would be required to comply with
regulations, policies, and standards included in the General Plan, and would be subject to CEQA
review as appropriate.

4.0-14 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

687



OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED Toprics 4.0

The General Plan includes a range of policies and actions that would ensure that public services are
provided in a timely fashion, are adequately funded, are coordinated between the City and
appropriate service agency, and that new development funds its fair share of services. The General
Plan includes policies to ensure that services keep pace with new development and that school,
library, and governmental services are adequately planned and provided. Payment of applicable
impact fees, and ongoing revenues that would come from property taxes, sales taxes, and other
revenues generated by the future projects, would ensure that the City maintains acceptable service
ratios. The proposed General Plan's incremental contribution to cumulative public services and
recreation impacts would be less than cumulatively considerable.

TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

Impact 4.14: Cumulative impacts on the transportation network (Cumulatively
Considerable and Significant and Unavoidable)

Ad described in Chapter 3.14 the Proposed General Plan would result in a similar or increased VMT
per capita when compared to the existing (baseline) condition. This can be concluded based on the
general plan land use designations for new job centers, such as industrial facilities and highway
commercial being built on the periphery of town to the west, north, and south. The newly
designated growth areas for multi-family residential are similarly far from the central city, though
close to several job centers. As growth occurs on the periphery of the city, total VMT will increase
and vehicle trip lengths may lengthen causing higher VMT per capita levels than that of existing
development.

Furthermore, while the planned bike facilities and potential future transit improvements could
improve safety and mobility, they are unlikely to decrease VMT given the general layout of Willows.
Residents of Willows in the future will likely engage in similar travel patterns to existing residents
based on planned land use, roadways, and alternative modes of transportation in the City, resulting
in the absolute VMT of the City and increasing and the VMT per capita in Willows remaining similar
to baseline in the planning horizon.

While the proposed general plan land use pattern is likely to produce similar VMT per capita levels
as under existing conditions, the proposed General Plan includes policies designed to reduce vehicle
travel and VMT as detailed in Chapter 3.14.

While policies and actions may result in less-than-significant VMT impacts when considered at an
individual project level, they cannot be guaranteed and are not possible to fully quantify or mitigate at
a citywide level as part of a programmatic General Plan. As a result, this is considered a cumulatively
considerable and significant and unavoidable impact.

UTILITIES

Impact 4.15: Cumulative impacts related to utilities (Less than Cumulatively
Considerable)

Water: Table 3.14-3 and Table 3.14-4 summarize annual projections of demands and supplies to
meet those demands through 2045, as documented by in California Water Service 2020 Urban

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 4.0-15

688



4.0  OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED TOPICS

Water Management Plan. The proposed General Plan includes a range of policies and actions
designed to ensure an adequate water supply for development and to minimize the potential
adverse effects of increased water use. Given that projected water demands associated with
General Plan buildout would not exceed the projected available water (including after taking into
account future development within Glenn County, neighboring cities, and the broader region), and
that the proposed General Plan includes a comprehensive set of goals, policies and actions to ensure
an adequate and reliable source of clean potable water, impacts associated with water supplies are
less than significant.

Additionally, future development in the Planning Area would be required to connect to existing
water distribution infrastructure in the vicinity of each site, pay the applicable water system
connection fees, and pay the applicable water usage rates. Future projects may be required to
implement site specific and limited off-site improvements to the water distribution system in order
to connect new project sites to the City’s existing water infrastructure network. The specific impacts
of providing new and expanded waster distribution infrastructure cannot be determined at this
time, as the General Plan does not propose any specific development projects or include details on
any future development projects. However, any future improvements to the existing water
distribution infrastructure would be primarily provided on sites with land use designations that allow
for urbanized land uses, and the environmental impacts of constructing and operating the new
water distribution infrastructure would likely be similar to those associated with new development,
redevelopment, and infrastructure projects under the proposed General Plan.

This Draft EIR addresses the potential impacts of development that may occur under the proposed
General Plan, including residential, commercial, professional office, business park, light industrial,
public facilities, and a range of other uses.

As development projects are proposed within the city each project will be reviewed for a variety of
service requirements, conformance with local and State requirements and water availability. SB 610
and SB 221, require review of supplies and verify their availability before approving developments.
Additionally, General Plan Policy LU 6-3 requires all development projects to mitigate their
infrastructure service impacts or demonstrate that the City’s infrastructure, public services, and
utilities can accommodate the increased demand for services, and that service levels for existing
users will not be degraded or impaired.

The City is expected to have adequate water supply to serve the buildout GPU land uses. Calwater
anticipates that the water demand in 2045 would be 1,881 AFY and that the district has the capacity
to serve. It is estimated that the District’s service area population was 7,183 in 2020, with a 2045
Buildout assumption population of 9,117 which is within the maximum growth identified in Chapter
2.0 (Project Description).

Future development in the Planning Area would be required to connect to existing water distribution
infrastructure in the vicinity of each site, pay the applicable water system connection fees, and pay
the applicable water usage rates. Future projects may be required to implement site specific and
limited off-site improvements to the water distribution system in order to connect new project sites

4.0-16 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

689



OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED Toprics 4.0

to the existing water infrastructure network. The specific impacts of providing new and expanded
waster distribution infrastructure cannot be determined at this time, as the General Plan does not
propose or authorize any specific development projects or include details on any future
development projects. However, any future improvements to the existing water distribution
infrastructure would be primarily provided on sites with land use designations that allow for
urbanized land uses, and the environmental impacts of constructing and operating the new water
distribution infrastructure would likely be similar to those associated with new development,
redevelopment, and infrastructure projects under the proposed General Plan.

The city has ample water supply to account for buildout of the proposed General Plan, and the City
will require all development projects to demonstrate that the City’s infrastructure, public services,
and utilities can accommodate the increased demand for services, and that service levels for existing
users will not be degraded or impaired. As such, this is considered less than cumulatively
considerable.

Wastewater: The City of Willows operates and maintains the sewer system consisting of gravity
sewers and pumping stations to collect wastewater from residential and commercial customers.
The collected wastewater is discharged to trunk sewers and interceptors owned and operated by
the City of Willows and conveyed to the Willows Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) for
treatment.

Currently, all wastewater collected from the City is treated at the WWTP. There are approximately
2,255 residential connections and 222 commercial/industrial connections. The City of Willows
completed a major upgrade to the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) by increasing the treatment
capability from secondary to tertiary quality effluent with a rated capacity of 1.2 mgd (million gallons
per day). The treatment system includes influent screening, extended aeration (biolac system),
activated sludge with two secondary clarifiers, nine continuous backwash sand filters, disinfection
with sodium hypochlorite, dechlorination using sodium bisulfite injection, equalization and
emergency storage ponds, and sludge storage lagoons. The WWTP currently has a daily dry weather
average flow of approximately 0.650 million gallons per day (650,000 gallons per day) from all
customers in Willows WWTP service area.

As future development and infrastructure projects are considered by the City, each project will be
evaluated for conformance with the General Plan, Municipal Code, and other applicable regulations.
Subsequent development and infrastructure projects would also be analyzed for potential
environmental impacts, consistent with the requirements of CEQA.

As Willows continues to develop in the future, there will be an increased need for water and
wastewater services, including a reliable source of recycled water. These needs have been
addressed in the three utility districts’ master plans and will require that the districts, in coordination
with the City, continue to implement phased improvements to some pump stations, sewer mains,
and the various wastewater treatment plants when triggered by growth.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 4.0-17

690



4.0  OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED TOPICS

While full buildout of the development contemplated in the proposed General Plan would increase
the existing treatment demand at the districts’ treatment plants, the proposed General Plan includes
arange of policies designed to ensure an adequate wastewater treatment capacity for development.
Specifically, General Plan Policy LU 6-3 requires all development projects to mitigate their
infrastructure service impacts or demonstrate that the City’s infrastructure, public services, and
utilities can accommodate the increased demand for services, and that service levels for existing
users will not be degraded or impaired.

Periodic review and update of the Sewer Master Plans will be required and as growth continues to
occur within the Planning Area. It may be necessary to identify future necessary system upgrades
and capacity enhancements to meet growth, prior to the approval of new development. Given that
projected wastewater generation volumes associated with General Plan buildout are not expiated
to exceed the projected wastewater treatment volumes, the proposed General Plan's incremental
contribution to cumulative wastewater impacts would be less than cumulatively considerable.

Stormwater: Development under the proposed General Plan would result in increased areas of
impervious surfaces throughout the Planning Area, resulting in the need for additional or expanded
stormwater drainage, conveyance, and retention infrastructure. The infrastructure and facilities
necessary to serve new growth would involve development of some facilities on-site within new
development projects, some facilities off-site on appropriately designated land, and may also
involve improvements to existing facilities and disturbance of existing rights-of-way.

Stormwater drainage and conveyance facilities would be evaluated at the project-level in association
with subsequent development projects. However, the facilities would be primarily provided on sites
with land use designations that allow such uses and the environmental impacts of constructing and
operating the facilities would likely be similar to those associated with new development,
redevelopment, and infrastructure projects under the General Plan.

As future development and infrastructure projects are considered by the City, each project will be
evaluated for conformance with the General Plan, Municipal Code, and other applicable regulations.
Subsequent development and infrastructure projects would also be analyzed for potential
environmental impacts, consistent with the requirements of CEQA.

With the policies and actions listed in Section 3.14 (Utilities) would ensure that there is adequate
stormwater drainage and flood control infrastructure to serve future development under the
General Plan, and would ensure that future drainage and flood control infrastructure projects do
not result in adverse environmental impacts. The proposed General Plan's incremental contribution
to cumulative wastewater impacts would be less than cumulatively considerable.

Solid Waste: As described in Chapter 3.15, Glenn County disposed of 23,232 tons of solid waste in
2018 achieving a disposal rate of 4.4 PPD per resident. Assuming these disposal rates remain
constant throughout the life of the General Plan, the new growth under General Plan buildout would
result in an increase of approximately 7,700 pounds per day of solid waste, which equals 3.85 tons
per day or 1,405.25 tons of solid waste per year.

4.0-18 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

691



OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED Toprics 4.0

The City’s projected increase in solid waste generation associated with future buildout of the
proposed General Plan is within the permitted capacity of the new Glenn County’s solid waste
facilities. Future projects within the Planning Area would be required to comply with applicable state
and local requirements including those pertaining to solid waste, construction waste diversion, and
recycling. While there is adequate permitted landfill capacity to accommodate future growth, the
proposed General Plan includes actions to further reduce the project’s impact on solid waste
services. The General Plan would not exceed the permitted capacity of the landfill serving the City,
and the General Plan complies with regulations related to solid waste. The proposed General Plan's
incremental contribution to cumulative solid waste impacts would be less than cumulatively
considerable.

WILDFIRE

Impact 4.16: Cumulative impact related to wildfire (Less than Cumulatively
Considerable)

The Planning Area is not located in or near any State Responsibility Areas and there are no lands
classified as very high fire hazard severity zones (VHFHSZ) within or near the Planning Area.
Therefore, the General Plan would have no impact related to wildfire risks associated with lands in
or near State Responsibility Areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity zones.
Therefore, the proposed General Plan's incremental contribution to cumulative wildfire impacts
would be less than cumulatively considerable.

4.2 GROWTH-INDUCING EFFECTS
INTRODUCTION

Section 15126.2(e) of the CEQA Guidelines requires that an EIR evaluate the growth-inducing
impacts of a proposed action. A growth-inducing impact is defined by the CEQA Guidelines as:

The way in which a proposed project could foster economic or population growth, or
the construction of additional housing, either directly or indirectly, in the
surrounding environment. Included in this are projects which would remove
obstacles to population growth...It is not assumed that growth in an area is
necessarily beneficial, detrimental, or of little significance to the environment.

Based on the CEQA Guidelines, growth inducement is any growth that exceeds planned growth of
an area and results in new development that would not have taken place without implementation
of the project. A project can have direct and/or indirect growth inducement potential. Direct growth
inducement would result if a project, for example, involved construction of new housing. A project
would have indirect growth inducement potential if it established substantial new permanent
employment opportunities (e.g., commercial, industrial, or governmental enterprises) or if it would
involve a construction effort with substantial short-term employment opportunities that would
indirectly stimulate the need for additional housing and services to support the new employment
demand (Napa Citizens for Honest Government v. Napa County Board of Supervisors). Similarly, a
project would indirectly induce growth if it would remove an obstacle to additional growth and

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 4.0-19

692



4.0  OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED TOPICS

development, such as removing a constraint on a required public service. A project providing an
increased water supply in an area where water service historically limited growth could be
considered growth-inducing.

The CEQA Guidelines further explain that the environmental effects of induced growth are
considered indirect impacts of the proposed action. These indirect impacts or secondary effects of
growth may result in significant, adverse environmental impacts. Potential secondary effects of
growth include increased demand on other community and public services and infrastructure,
increased traffic and noise, and adverse environmental impacts such as degradation of air and water
quality, degradation or loss of plant and animal habitat, and conversion of agricultural and open
space land to developed uses.

Growth inducement may constitute an adverse impact if the growth is not consistent with or
accommodated by the land use plans and growth management plans and policies for the area
affected. Local land use plans provide for land use development patterns and growth policies that
allow for the orderly expansion of urban development supported by adequate urban public services,
such as water supply, roadway infrastructure, sewer service, and solid waste service.

The General Plan is a long-term plan intended to accommodate projected population, housing, and
employment growth, including the appropriate balance among these factors with the necessary
public services and infrastructure. The proposed General Plan would serve as a comprehensive, long-
term plan for the physical development of Willows. Projected growth is described in Section 3.10
(Land Use and Population), and the environmental consequences related to the potential growth
are fully assessed in each topical section. By definition, the proposed Willows General Plan is
intended to provide for and address future growth in the City.

Because the proposed General Plan provides a framework for development through its Land Use
Map, land use designations, goals, policies, and actions, it would directly induce population and
employment growth in the Willows Planning Area by designating land for development that is more
intense, in some instances, than current designations allow. The analysis of the indirect growth-
inducing impacts for the proposed General Plan focuses on the following factors: inducement of
unanticipated population growth; encouragement of economic growth that leads to jobs and
housing growth; elimination of obstacles to population growth; and resulting service, facility, or
infrastructure demands in excess of existing and planned growth.

The proposed General Plan accommodates future growth in Willows, including new businesses,
expansion of existing businesses, and new residential uses. Infrastructure and services would need
to accommodate future growth. The General Plan is oriented toward the economic growth of the
City, with emphasis given to encouraging development of a broader array of businesses, increasing
local employment opportunities, and providing residential development as necessary to serve
economic growth. The cumulative development scenario addressed in this Draft EIR is the maximum
projected development that could occur within the existing city limits and the Planning Area, if every
parcel in the city and the Planning Area developed at or near the higher end of densities and
intensities allowed under the proposed General Plan.

4.0-20 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

693



OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED Toprics 4.0

As shown in Table 2.0-3, buildout of the General Plan could yield up to 963 new housing units, and
786,233 square feet of new non-residential building square footage within the Planning Area.
Depending on growth rates, the actual growth during the life of the General Plan could be lower or
higher, but would not exceed the theoretical maximum buildout described in Chapter 2.0.

Given the historical and current population, housing, and employment trends, growth in the City, as
well as the entire state, is inevitable. The primary factors that account for population growth are
natural increase and net migration. The average annual birth rate for California is expected to be 20
births per 1,000 population. Additionally, California is expected to attract more than one third of the
country’s immigrants. Other factors that affect growth include the cost of housing, the location of
jobs, the economy, the climate, and transportation. While these factors would likely result in growth
in Willows during the planning period of the proposed General Plan, growth will continue to occur
based primarily on the demand of the housing market and demand for new commercial, industrial,
and other non-residential uses. As future development occurs under the proposed General Plan,
new roads, infrastructure, and services would be necessary to serve the development and this
infrastructure would accommodate planned growth. However, growth under the proposed General
Plan would remain within the general growth levels projected statewide and would not be
anticipated to exceed any applicable growth projections or limitations that have been adopted to
avoid an environmental effect. The proposed General Plan is intended to accommodate the City’s
fair share of statewide housing needs, based on regional numbers provided by the California
Department of Housing and Community Development on a regular basis (every five to eight years).

The proposed General Plan includes policies and actions that mitigate environmental impacts
associated with growth, such as air quality, noise, traffic, water supply, and water quality.
Additionally, this Draft EIR identifies General Plan policies and actions, where appropriate, that
would serve to reduce or eliminate potentially significant impacts associated with specific
environmental issues associated with growth. Chapters 3.1 through 3.16 and 4.0 provide a
discussion of environmental effects associated with development allowed under the proposed
General Plan.

With implementation of General Plan policies and actions intended to guide growth to appropriate
areas and provide services necessary to accommodate growth, the land uses allowed under the
proposed General Plan, the infrastructure anticipated to accommodate proposed land uses, and the
goal and policy framework would not induce growth that would exceed adopted thresholds.
Therefore, population and housing growth associated with the proposed General Plan would result
a less than significant impact.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 4.0-21

694



4.0  OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED TOPICS

4.3 SIGNIFICANT IRREVERSIBLE EFFECTS
LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

CEQA Section 15126.2(d) and Public Resources Code Sections 21100(b)(2) and 21100.1(a), requires
that the EIR include a discussion of significant irreversible environmental changes which would be
involved in the proposed action should it be implemented. Irreversible environmental effects are
described as:

e The project would involve a large commitment of nonrenewable resources;

e The primary and secondary impacts of a project would generally commit future generations
to similar uses (e.g., a highway provides access to previously remote area);

e The project involves uses in which irreversible damage could result from any potential
environmental accidents associated with the project; or

e The phasing of the proposed consumption of resources is not justified (e.g., the project
involves the wasteful use of energy).

Determining whether the proposed project would result in significant irreversible effects requires a
determination of whether key resources would be degraded or destroyed such that there would be
little possibility of restoring them. Irretrievable commitments of resources should be evaluated to
assure that such current consumption is justified.

Consumption of Nonrenewable Resources

Consumption of nonrenewable resources refers to the loss of physical features within the natural
environment, including the conversion of agricultural lands, loss of access to mining reserves, and
nonrenewable energy use. The Willows Planning Area has multiple nonrenewable resources,
including biological resources, water resources, and energy resources.

One of the objectives of the proposed General Plan is to conserve natural resources within the
Planning Area. Many of these policies and actions, aimed at preserving natural resources, are
contained within the Conservation and Sustainability Element, and have been identified throughout
this EIR. Additionally, the proposed General Plan directs most new development to infill areas, and
areas surrounding existing neighborhoods and urbanized areas. As a result, the proposed General
Plan will minimize the potential for impacts to the nonrenewable resources in the Planning Area,
including biological resources, water resources, and energy resources, to the greatest extent
feasible. More detailed and focused discussions of potential impacts to these nonrenewable
resources are contained throughout this Draft EIR.

Nonrenewable energy resources such as electricity, natural gas, propane, gasoline, and diesel would
be consumed during the construction and operation of development projects contemplated under
the General Plan buildout. The proposed General Plan includes a variety of policies that seek to
conserve, protect, and enhance energy resources. These policies focus on energy efficiency in the
design, materials, construction, and use of buildings, the use of alternative energy systems, and
alternative transportation modes. As described in Chapter 3.7 (Greenhouse Gases, Climate Change

4.0-22 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

695



OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED Toprics 4.0

and Energy), the proposed General Plan would not result in any significant adverse impacts related
to project energy requirements, energy use inefficiencies, and/or the energy intensiveness of
materials by amount and fuel type for during General Plan buildout, including during construction,
operations, maintenance, and/or removal.

Irretrievable Commitments/Irreversible Physical Changes

The implementation of the General Plan would not be expected to result in environmental accidents
that have the potential to cause irreversible damage to the natural or human environment through
environmental accidents. While activities anticipated to occur under the General Plan would result
in the limited use, transport, storage, and disposal of hazardous materials, all activities would
comply with applicable state local, and federal laws related to hazardous materials transport, use,
and storage, which would significantly reduce the likelihood and severity of accidents that could
result in irreversible environmental damage. Implementation of the proposed General Plan would
result in a commitment of land uses designated for the foreseeable future. Land use and
development consistent with the General Plan would result in irretrievable commitments by
introducing development onto sites that are presently undeveloped. The conversion of undeveloped
lands to urban uses would result in an irretrievable loss of undeveloped land, wildlife habitat, and
open space. Additionally, development will physically change the environment in terms of
aesthetics, air emission, noise, traffic, open space, and natural resources. These physical changes
are irreversible after development occurs.

Therefore, the proposed General Plan would result in changes in land use within the Planning Area
that would commit future generations to these uses.

Impact 4.17: Irreversible effects (Significant and Unavoidable)

In summary, the proposed General Plan includes an extensive policy framework that is designed to
address land use and environmental issues to the greatest extent feasible, while allowing growth
and economic prosperity for the City. However, even with the policies and actions that will serve to
reduce potential significant impacts, the proposed General Plan will result in significant irreversible
changes. This impact is considered a significant and unavoidable impact under CEQA.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 4.0-23

696



4.0  OTHER CEQA-REQUIRED TOPICS

4.4 SIGNIFICANT AND UNAVOIDABLE IMPACTS

CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.2(b) requires an EIR to discuss unavoidable significant
environmental effects, including those that can be mitigated but not reduced to a level of
insignificance. The following significant and unavoidable impacts of the General Plan are discussed
in Chapter 3 and previously in this chapter (cumulative-level). Refer to those discussions for further
details and analysis of the significant and unavoidable impacts identified below:

o Impact 3.2-1: General Plan implementation would result in the conversion of Prime
Farmland, Unique Farmland, and Farmland of Statewide Importance (Significant and
Unavoidable)

o Impact 3.2-2: General Plan implementation may result in conflicts with existing Williamson
Act Contracts (Significant and Unavoidable)

e Impact 3.3-1: General Plan implementation would not conflict with or obstruct
implementation of the applicable air quality plan, or result in a cumulatively considerable
net increase of criteria pollutants (Significant and Unavoidable)

o Impact 3.7-1: General Plan implementation has the potential to generate GHG emissions
that could have a significant impact on the environment and/or conflict with an applicable
plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse
gases (Significant and Unavoidable)

e Impact 3.14-1: General Plan implementation may conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA
Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b) (Significant and Unavoidable).

e Impact 4.3: Cumulative impact on the region’s air quality (Cumulatively Considerable and
Significant and Unavoidable)

e Impact 4.7: Cumulative impacts related to greenhouse gases, climate change, and energy
(Considerable Contribution and Significant and Unavoidable)

e Impact 4.14: Cumulative impacts on the transportation network  (Cumulatively
Considerable and Significant and Unavoidable)

e Impact 4.17: Irreversible Effects (Significant and Unavoidable)

4.0-24 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

697



ALTERNATIVES 5.0

5.1 CEQA REQUIREMENTS

CEQA requires that an EIR analyze a reasonable range of feasible alternatives that meet most or
all of the project objectives while potentially reducing or avoiding one or more environmental
effects of the project. The range of alternatives required in an EIR is governed by a “rule of reason”
that requires an EIR to set forth only those alternatives necessary to permit a reasoned choice
(CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.6[f]). Where a potential alternative was examined but not chosen
as one of the range of alternatives, the CEQA Guidelines require that the EIR briefly discuss the
reasons the alternative was dismissed.

Alternatives that are evaluated in the EIR must be potentially feasible alternatives. However, not
all possible alternatives need to be analyzed. An EIR must “set forth only those alternatives
necessary to permit a reasoned choice.” (CEQA Guidelines, Section 15126.6(f).) The CEQA
Guidelines provide a definition for a “range of reasonable alternatives” and, thus limit the number
and type of alternatives that need to be evaluated in an EIR. An EIR need not include any action
alternatives inconsistent with the lead agency’s fundamental underlying purpose in proposing a
project. (In re Bay-Delta Programmatic Environmental Impact Report Coordinated Proceedings
(2008) 43 Cal.4th 1143, 1166.)

First and foremost, alternatives in an EIR must be potentially feasible. In the context of CEQA,
“feasible” is defined as:

... capable of being accomplished in a successful manner within a reasonable
period of time, taking into account economic, environmental, legal, social and
technological factors. (CEQA Guidelines 15364)

5.2 ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED IN THIS EIR
FACTORS GUIDING SELECTION OF ALTERNATIVES

A Notice of Preparation was circulated to the public to solicit recommendations for a reasonable
range of alternatives to the proposed project. Additionally, a public scoping meeting was held
during the public review period to solicit recommendations for a reasonable range of alternatives
to the proposed project. No specific alternatives were recommended by commenting agencies or
the general public during the NOP public review and comment period.

The alternatives to the General Plan Update selected for analysis in the EIR were developed to
minimize significant environmental impacts while fulfilling the basic objectives of the project, and
address public and elected officials’ input with respect to potential land use and growth scenarios
that may be appropriate for consideration as part of the General Plan Update. Significant impacts
are summarized in Chapter 4.0 and described in greater detail in Sections 3.1 through 3.16. As
described in Chapter 2.0 (Project Description), the following objectives have been identified for
the proposed project:

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 5.0-1

698



5.0

ALTERNATIVES

e Develop a long-term vision for the City of Willows

e Establish greater connections between the General Plan and current planning issues

e Provide a range of high-quality housing options;

e Attract and retain businesses and industries that provide high-quality jobs;

e Maintain strong fiscal sustainability and continue to provide efficient and adequate public

services;

e Address new requirements of State law; and

SIGNIFICANT AND UNAVOIDABLE IMPACTS

The proposed General Plan Update would result in the following significant and unavoidable
impacts, which are described in Sections 3.1 through 3.16 and Chapter 4.0:

Impact 3.2-1: General Plan implementation would result in the conversion of Prime
Farmland, Unique Farmland, and Farmland of Statewide Importance (Significant and
Unavoidable)

Impact 3.2-2: General Plan implementation may result in conflicts with existing
Williamson Act Contracts (Significant and Unavoidable)

Impact 3.3-1: General Plan implementation would not conflict with or obstruct
implementation of the applicable air quality plan, or result in a cumulatively
considerable net increase of criteria pollutants (Significant and Unavoidable)

Impact 3.7-1: General Plan implementation has the potential to generate GHG
emissions that could have a significant impact on the environment and/or conflict
with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the
emissions of greenhouse gases (Significant and Unavoidable)

Impact 3.14-1: General Plan implementation may conflict or be inconsistent with
CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b) (Significant and Unavoidable).
Impact 4.3: Cumulative impact on the region’s air quality (Cumulatively Considerable
and Significant and Unavoidable)

Impact 4.7: Cumulative impacts related to greenhouse gases, climate change, and
energy (Considerable Contribution and Significant and Unavoidable)

Impact 4.14: Cumulative impacts on the transportation network (Cumulatively
Considerable and Significant and Unavoidable)

Impact 4.17: Irreversible Effects (Significant and Unavoidable)

5.0-2

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

699



ALTERNATIVES 5.0

ALTERNATIVES TO THE GENERAL PLAN UPDATE

Three alternatives to the General Plan Update were considered based on the analysis performed
to identify the environmental effects of the proposed project. Since the General Plan Update was
prepared with the intent to be a self-mitigating document, project alternatives focused on
amending land uses and standards to potentially address impacts. The alternatives analyzed in
this EIR include the following:

e Alternative 1: No Project Alternative. Under Alternative 1, the City would not adopt the
General Plan Update. The existing Willows General Plan would continue to be
implemented and no changes to the General Plan, including the Land Use Map,
Circulation Diagram, goals, policies, or actions would occur. Subsequent projects, such as
amending the Municipal Code (including the zoning map) and the City’s Design
Guidelines, would not occur. The Existing General Plan Land Use Map is shown on Figure
5.0-1.

e Alternative 2: Modified Project Alternative. Under Alternative 2, the City would adopt
the updated General Plan policy document, but would retain the existing land use map.
This alternative would result in the same growth as the existing General Plan and
Alternative 1, but would implement the updated goals, policies, and actions found in the
General Plan Update. This Alternative would result in less residential and non-residential
growth than the proposed Project. This alternative was developed to potentially reduce
the severity of significant impacts associated with noise, as well as the potential further
reduction in less than significant impacts related to aesthetics, biological resources,
cultural resources, noise, public services, air quality and utilities.

e Alternative 3: Agriculture Protection Alternative. Alternative 3 provides for jobs-creating
and residential development land uses, focused within the City Limits. Under this
alternative, the proposed Project would be developed in such a way as to protect lands
currently identified as prime farmland and farmland of statewide importance, by reducing
the overall footprint of the developable areas and focus development on infill
development. For the purposed of this analysis it is assumed that future development
buildout would exclude development assumed within the SOI. This Alternative would
result in the least amounts of overall developable area, but would result in slightly
increased rate of development within the City Limits when compared to Alternatives 1
and 2.

A summary of the growth projections, including population growth, housing units, jobs, and the
job/housing balance for the Project and each Alternative is shown in Table 5.0-1.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 5.0-3

700



5.0 ALTERNATIVES

TABLE 5.0-1: GROWTH PROJECTIONS BY ALTERNATIVE

NON-RESIDENTIAL
DWELLING JOBS PER
ALTERNATIVE POPULATION SQUARE FEET OF JoBs
UNITS HOUSING UNIT
DEVELOPMENT
EXISTING CONDITIONS
6,243 2,458 1,371,392 2,191 0.89
NEW GROWTH
Proposed General Plan 2,446 963 786,233 1,310 1.36
Alternative 1: Existing
GenerallPlan/No Eroject 970 382 726,096 1,210 3.17
Alternative 2: Modified 970 382 726,096 1,210 3.17
Project Alternative
Alternative 3: Agriculture 1,750 689 717,835 1,196 1.74
Protection Alternative
TOTAL BUILDOUT GROWTH: EXISTING PLUS NEW GROWTH

Proposed General Plan 8,689 3,421 2,157,625 3,501 1.02
Alternative 1: Existing
Earer] Teniie Projes 7,214 2,840 2,097,488 3,401 1.20
Alternative 2: Modified 7,214 2,840 2,097,488 3,401 1.20
Project Alternative
Alternative 3: Increased 7,993 3,147 2,089,227 3,387 1.08
Density Alternative

SOURCE: DE Novo PLANNING GRoup, 2022

The primary difference between the proposed General Plan and Alternative 2 is the Land Use
Maps associated with each of these alternatives while the primary difference between the
proposed General Plan and Alternative 3 is the assumption of an infill development focus. The
goals, policies, and actions contained in the proposed General Plan would also apply and be
implemented under Alternatives 2 and 3. Therefore, changes to the Land Use Map and growth
focus are the only variables that may increase or decrease the severity of one or more of the
significant environmental impacts identified in this Draft EIR.

Throughout the preparation of the General Plan Update, the City, and community all expressed a
desire and commitment to ensuring that the General Plan not only reflect the community’s values
and priorities, but also serve as a self-mitigating document and avoid significant environmental
impacts to the greatest extent feasible. To further this goal of crafting a self-mitigating General
Plan, the environmental analysis contained in this Draft EIR was completed concurrently with the
development of the General Plan elements and Land Use Map in order to foster informed decision
making regarding the Land Use Map and the General Plan goals, policies, and actions as they were
being developed. As the Land Use Map was crafted, refined, and revised throughout the course
of the General Plan Update, changes were made on a continuous basis in order to incrementally
and substantially reduce potentially significant environmental impacts that were identified. The
result of this approach and this process is a proposed General Plan Land Use Map that has reduced
potentially significant impacts to the environment, while still meeting the project objectives
identified by the City of Willows.

5.0-4 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

701




ALTERNATIVES 5.0

ALTERNATIVE 1 - NO PROJECT

Under Alternative 1, the City would continue to implement the existing General Plan and no
changes would be made to address updated General Plan Guidelines, or the requirements of State
law. Since adoption of the existing General Plan, State legislation has been passed requiring the
City to address new safety and circulation requirements in the General Plan and to further address
greenhouse gas emissions. The General Plan goals, policies, and actions, as well as the Land Use
Map, would not be updated to address the vision and concerns of the City’s residents, property
owners, decision-makers, and other stakeholders that actively participated in the visioning and
goal and policy development process.

Alternative 1 would result in the continuation of existing conditions and development levels. New
growth would be allowed as envisioned under the existing General Plan, with land uses required
to be consistent with the existing General Plan Land Use Map. Table 5.0-2 shows the acreages of
each land use designation for the existing General Plan Land Use Map.

TABLE 5.0-2: ALTERNATIVE 1 (EXISTING GENERAL PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATIONS)

LAND USE CITY SOl ToTAL
Agricultural/Residential - 84.75 84.75
Business Park - 44.13 44.13
Commercial/Industrial Combining Use 193.45 - 193.45
Community Commercial - 25.15 25.15
Entryway 23.55 - 23.55
General Agriculture - 320.33 320.33
General Commercial 109.64 - 109.64
General Industrial 101.90 - 101.90
Highway and Visitor Service Commercial - 15.54 15.54
Highway Commercial 61.89 - 61.89
Industrial - 237.09 237.09
Intensive Agriculture - 1682.61 1682.61
Light Industrial 157.87 - 157.87
Low Density Residential 488.51 - 488.51
Multiple Family Residential 33.15 24.34 57.50
Office and Professional 44.98 - 44.98
Open Space 42.81 - 42.81
Public Facilities - 285.26 285.26
Public Facilities and Services 168.71 - 168.71
ROW/Canal 27.50 - 27.50
Rural Residential - 240.75 240.75
Service Commerecial - 116.27 116.27
Single Family Residential - 158.19 158.19
Suburban Residential - 364.29 364.29
Grand Total 1453.95 3598.68 5052.63

SOURCE: DE Novo PLANNING GRoup, 2021

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 5.0-5

702



5.0 ALTERNATIVES

As shown in Table 5.0-2, Alternative 1 would provide for reduced acres of residential land uses
and would not include new land uses such as mixed-uses used included in the proposed General
Plan’s land use map (See Chapter 2.0 Project Description).

As shown in Table 5.0-1, Alternative 1 would result in increased housing and job growth within
the Willows city limits when compared to existing conditions, but less overall growth than the
proposed Project.

Under Alternative 1 at full buildout, there would be an increase over existing conditions in
residential growth (approximately 382 dwelling units) and jobs (approximately 1,210 jobs) within
the Planning Area. Under cumulative conditions, development in Planning Area combined under
Alternative 1 would result in a population of 7,214 and 3,401 jobs. Under Alternative 1, the
existing General Plan policy framework would still be in effect, which would constitute a status
quo approach to land use regulation in the City. The Proposed Land Use Map, along with the
policy framework proposed by the General Plan Update, encourages and aims to achieve a
community with a balanced land use pattern that meets the City’s long-term housing,
employment, and civic needs. The proposed General Plan was prepared in conformance with
State laws and regulations associated with the preparation of general plans, including
requirements for environmental protection.

Alternative 1 would not include updated policies, particularly those related to additional housing
opportunities, greenhouse gases, community health, and mobility for all roadway users, as
required by State law. This alternative would not include various policies proposed in the General
Plan update to ensure protection of environmental resources, both at a project level and under
cumulative conditions, consistent with the objectives of CEQA.

Alternative 1 fails to meet several of the basic General Plan objectives, including: Establishing a
greater connection between the General Plan and current planning issues; and addressing new
requirements of State law.

Therefore, Alternative 1 (No Project) is rejected from further consideration as a CEQA alternative,
as it fails to meet several of the Project objectives. However, for reference, the environmental
effects associated with Alternative 1 are discussed and summarized in Table 5.0-3 to provide a
general comparison between the adopted Willows General Plan (Alternative 1 — No Project), the
proposed project, and Alternatives 2 and 3.

5.0-6 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

703



ALTERNATIVES 5.0

ALTERNATIVE 2 — MODIFIED PROJECT ALTERNATIVE

Under Alternative 2, the City would adopt the updated General Plan policy document, including
the revised goals, policies, and actions; however, the City would retain the existing land use map.
Alternative 2 would result in less residential and nonresidential growth than the proposed General
Plan, but it would result in the same growth as Alternative 1. Land use designations are
summarized in Table 5.0-2.

The goals, policies, and actions of the General Plan Update would apply to subsequent
development, planning, and infrastructure projects under this alternative.

As shown previously in Table 5.0-1, Alternative 2 would result in approximately fewer housing
units and fewer residents within Willows when compared to the proposed General Plan Land Use
Map. Employment opportunities would also be slightly decreased under this alternative.

ALTERNATIVE 3 —AGRICULTURE PROTECTION ALTERNATIVE

Alternative 3 - Agriculture Protection Alternative provides jobs-creating and residential
development land uses focused within the City Limits. Under this alternative, the proposed
Project would be developed in such a way to protect lands currently identified as prime farmland
and farmland of statewide importance, by reducing the overall footprint of the developable areas
and focus development on infill development. For the purposed of this analysis it is assumed that
future development would exclude land areas within the SOI. This Alternative would result in the
least amounts of overall developable area, but would result in slightly increased rate of
development within the City Limits when compared to Alternatives 1 and 2.

5.3 ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS

The alternatives analysis provides a summary of the relative impact level of significance associated
with each alternative for each of the environmental issue areas analyzed in this EIR. Following the
analysis of each alternative, Table 5.0-1 summarizes the comparative effects of each alternative.

Aesthetics

As described in Chapter 3.1 (Aesthetics and Visual Resources) impacts related to Aesthetics were
found be less than significant. Project Alternatives 1 and 2 would result in similar development
patterns when compared to the Proposed Project; however, as noted above, Alternative 3 would
result in the least amount of dwelling units increased agricultural land conservation. The reduced
development potential under Alternative 3 as compared to the Proposed General plan and
Alternatives 1 and 2 would likely result in decreased building intensities and decreased densities
in the Planning Areas SOI. Willows has prepared the proposed General Plan to include numerous
policies and actions related to community design to maintain and enhance the Planning Area’s
appearance and function. Specifically, the policies and actions are intended to protect and
preserve visual resources, including ensuring appropriate transitions between land uses to
preserve the community’s harmonious character within the Planning Area.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 5.0-7

704



5.0 ALTERNATIVES

Maximum densities and building intensities under Alternative 1 and 2 would be generally the
same as the Proposed Project, and aesthetic impacts would generally be the same under these
alternatives. Visual impacts would be slightly reduced under Alternative 3 when compared to the
Proposed General Plan. Additionally, Alternative 2 includes adoption of the updated policy
document, which includes numerous policies and actions to preserve and protect visual
resources. Therefore, Alternative 2 would be superior to the No Project Alternative (Alternative
1).

Agriculture and Forest Resources

As described in Impact 3.2-1 of Chapter 3.2, impacts related to Agricultural and Forest Resources
were found be significant. There are agricultural lands identified by the CA Department
Conservation’s Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program within the Willows Planning Area.
Furthermore, there are lands within the Willows Planning Area that are currently under a
Williamson Act contract.

There are no forest lands or timber lands located within the Willows Planning Area.

This impact would remain significant under all of the Alternatives. All Project Alternatives would
result in general plan land use designations that would result in development patterns that impact
agricultural resources. However, the reduced footprint of urban development and its impact to
agricultural resources under Alternative 3 would be reduced when compared to all other
alternatives. The impact level under all other alternative scenarios would remain roughly similar,
however the additional areas designated for development under the Proposed General Plan
would be greater than under the existing General Plan’s Land Use Map. Therefore Alternatives 1
and 2 would have slightly reduced impacts to agricultural resources when compared to the
proposed Project.

Air Quality
As described in Chapter 3.3 (Air Quality) Impact 3.3-1, the proposed General Plan implementation
would result in significant impacts to air quality.

As further described in Chapter 3.3, policies and actions included in the proposed General Plan
would further the fundamental goals of reducing emissions of criteria pollutants associated with
reducing building energy usage, and would increase opportunities for alternative transit in
Willows and the surrounding areas. The General Plan policies and actions that would work to
further criteria pollutant emissions reductions, including reviewing projects for conformance with
applicable air quality plans and regulations, reducing energy demands, and implementing
methods to reduce vehicle miles traveled. However, even with implementation of the General
Plan policies and actions that would reduce criteria pollutant emissions, the proposed General
Plan would increase VMT.

Under Alternative 2, the Planning Area would be developed with the existing General Plan Land
Use Map, but would be required to adhere to the same policy guidance and local, state, and
regional air quality measures as the Proposed General Plan. Buildout of the Existing General Plan

5.0-8 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

705



ALTERNATIVES 5.0

and Alternative 2 would result in approximately fewer housing units, fewer residents, and fewer
jobs within Willows when compared to the proposed General Plan Land Use Map. Additionally
Alternative 3 would result in the least overall development footprint and would result in the most
infill development further reducing overall VMT. A decrease in total residential unit count,
population, and jobs may also decrease the total air quality emissions and overall VMT. As such,
the air quality impact is increased slightly under the Proposed General Plan when compared to all
other alternatives. However, the Proposed General Plan’s updated policy document, includes a
range of goals and policies that would reduce air quality and toxic air contaminant emissions. As
such, the air quality impacts may increase slightly under Alternative 1 and decrease slightly under
Alternative 2 when compared to the proposed General Plan. Moreover, when compared to the
proposed Project, Alternative 3 impacts would be reduced when compared to all other
Alternatives.

Biological Resources

There are various biological resources, including habitat, that occurs throughout the region. As
described in Chapter 3.4 (Biological Resources) General Plan implementation would result in less
than significant impacts to biological resources. Approval of the General Plan would not directly
approve or entitle any development or infrastructure projects. However, implementation of the
General Plan and existing Land Use Map would allow and facilitate future development in Willows,
which could result in adverse impacts to special-status plant and wildlife species, as well as
sensitive natural habitat or wildlife movement corridors. Subsequent development projects will
be required to comply with the General Plan and adopted Federal, State, and local regulations for
the protection of special status plants and animals, including habitat. The City of Willows has
prepared the proposed General Plan to include numerous policies and actions intended to protect
special status plants and animals, including habitat, from adverse effects associated with future
development and improvement projects.

The proposed Project and Alternatives 1 and 2 would result in similar development patterns, while
Alternative 3 would result in the most land conserved for agricultural uses which may provide
additional habitat opportunities within the Planning Area. The proposed General Plan and
Alternatives 2 and 3 would also include updated biological policies and actions aimed at protecting
biological resources (as described in detail in Chapter 3.4). Therefore, impacts to biological
resources under Alternative 2 would be slightly reduced when compared to the proposed General
Plan and Alternative 3 would be superior to all other alternatives. Additionally, because
Alternative 2 would update the biological resource policies consistent with the Proposed General
Plan, impacts to biological resources would be slightly reduced when compared to the No Project
Alternative, which does not include an updated policy document.

Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources

As described in Chapter 3.5 (Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources) General Plan implementation
would result in less than significant impacts to cultural and tribal cultural resources.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 5.0-9

706



5.0 ALTERNATIVES

The proposed Project and Alternatives 1 and 2 would result in similar development patterns and
a similar development footprint. Alternative 3 would include additional preservation of
agricultural lands within the SOI.

Because Alternatives 2 and 3 would update cultural resource policies to include new policies and
actions related to agency coordination, consultation, and monitoring consistent with the
proposed General Plan Policy Document, impacts to cultural resources would be slightly reduced
when compared to the No Project Alternative which does not include additional and updated
policies related to cultural resources. Alternative 3 would result in the potential for the fewest
impacts as the development footprint would be reduced. The impact under all other scenarios
(the proposed General Plan, and Alternatives 2 a) would remain the same.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Energy

As described in Chapter 3.7 (Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Energy), the proposed General Plan
would result in significant impacts to Greenhouse Gases, Climate Change, and Energy.

As further described in Chapter 3.7, even with implementation of the General Plan policies and
actions that would reduce emissions, the proposed General Plan would increase VMT.

Under Alternative 2, the Planning Area would be developed with the existing General Plan Land
Use Map, but would be required to adhere to the same policy guidance and local, state, and
regional air quality measures as the Proposed General Plan. Buildout of the Existing General Plan
and Alternative 2 would result in approximately fewer housing units, fewer residents, and fewer
jobs within Willows when compared to the proposed General Plan Land Use Map. Additionally
Alternative 3 would result in the least overall levels of development and would result in the most
infill development. The decrease in total residential unit count, population, and jobs may decrease
the total air quality emissions and overall VMT. As such, the air quality impact is increased slightly
under the Proposed General Plan when compared to all other alternatives. However, the
Proposed General Plan’s updated policy document, includes a range of goals and policies that
would reduce air quality and toxic air contaminant emissions. As such, the air quality impacts may
increase slightly under Alternative 1 and decrease slightly under Alternative 2 when compared to
the proposed General Plan. Moreover, when compared to the proposed Project, Alternative 3
impacts would be reduced when compared to all other Alternatives.

As stated in Chapter 3.7, the proposed General Plan includes a range of goals and policies that
would reduce GHG emissions associated with future development and improvement projects.
Under Alternative 2, the Planning Area would be developed with the existing General Plan Land
Use Map, but would be required to adhere to the same policy guidance and local, state, and
regional greenhouse gas measures as the Proposed General Plan. Buildout of Alternatives 1 and
2 would result in fewer housing units, residents, and jobs within Willows when compared to the
proposed General Plan Land Use Map, while Alternative 3 would result in the least overall levels
of development. The decrease in total residential unit count and population may decrease the
total greenhouse gas emissions and energy use. As such, the greenhouse gas emissions impact is
increased slightly under the proposed General Plan when compared to Alternatives 2 and 3.

5.0-10 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

707



ALTERNATIVES 5.0

Moreover, when compared to Alternative 1 (No Project), the Proposed General Plan, Alternative
2 and Alternative 3 all include a range of goals and policies that would reduce GHG emissions,
including policies to encourage mixed-use development, complete streets and multi modal
improvements that would further reduce per capita GHG impacts. Therefore, when compared to
Alternative 1 (No Project), Alternatives 2 and 3 and the proposed General Plan would be slightly
superior. Alternative 3 would be superior to all alternatives as this alternative places more
emphasis on infill development that presents substantially more opportunities for trip
internalization and increased opportunities for walking and bicycling.

Geology

As described in Chapter 3.6 (Geology), the proposed General Plan would result in less than
significant impacts to Geology and Soils. All alternatives would result in similar development
patterns. The proposed General Plan and Alternatives 2 and 3 would also include updated policies
related to geologic hazards, including requirements for project reviews and standards for
construction and building practices (as described in detail in Chapter 3.6).

All future projects within the Planning Area will be required to comply with state laws including
the preparation of stormwater plans, and compliance with the provisions of the California Building
Standards Code (CBSC), which requires development projects to perform geotechnical
investigations in accordance with State law, engineer improvements to address potential seismic
and ground failure issues, and use earthquake-resistant construction techniques to address
potential earthquake loads when constructing buildings and improvements. However, impacts
related to Geology and Soils would generally similar the same under all alternatives, although the
reduced development footprint under Alternative 3 may slightly reduce these impacts.
Additionally, the updated policy document provides for additional policies and action related to
geologic hazards and safety when compared to the existing General Plan, therefore the proposed
General Plan and Alternatives 2 and 3 would be considered to be slightly superior to the
Alternative 1.

Hazards and Hazardous Materials

As described in Chapter 3.8 (Hazards and Hazardous Materials), all impacts related to hazards and
hazardous materials were found to be less than significant. The proposed General Plan and
Alternative 2 would include updated policies and actions aimed at protecting the public from
hazardous materials. These policies and actions in the General Plan would ensure that potential
hazards are identified on a project site, that development is located in areas where potential
exposure to hazards and hazardous materials can be mitigated to an acceptable level, and that
business operations comply with Federal and State regulations regarding the use, transport,
storage, and disposal of hazardous materials. The proposed General Plan also includes policies
and actions to ensure that the City has adequate emergency response plans and measures to
respond in the event of an accidental release of a hazardous substance. (as described in detail in
Chapter 3.8). Additionally, under all Project Alternatives no development could take place in areas
of high wildland fire risk.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 5.0-11

708



5.0 ALTERNATIVES

All Project Alternatives would result in additional developed uses including commercial, industrial,
residential, and mixed-use and public facility development. The impacts under all scenarios would
remain similar, however, impacts to hazards and hazardous materials would be slightly reduced
under the Proposed Project, and Alternatives 2 and 3 when compared to Alternative 3. Because
Alternative 1 as this alternative does not include the adoption of the updated General Plan policy
document which included additional policies and actions related to hazardous materials safety
and review requirements, and emergency response.

Hydrology and Water Quality

As described in Chapter 3.9 (Hydrology and Water Quality), under all impact areas,
implementation of the proposed General Plan would result in less than significant impacts related
to Hydrology and Water Quality.

All of the alternatives generally would allow development to occur in a manner similar to the
proposed General Plan, where flood control and water quality protection measures are well
established and enforced. This variation in intensity and land use designation changes would not
substantially alter impacts from or to flooding, water quality, or on groundwater supplies because
existing federal, State, and local regulations would apply to guard against flood hazards, water
guality contamination, or impact on groundwater supplies. Impact for each alternative, like the
proposed project, would be less than significant.

Alternative 2 and Alternative 1 (No Project) would result in development of the existing General
Plan Land Use Map, which results in the least number of housing units and non-residential square
feet when compared to the proposed General Plan and Alternative 3. Compared to the proposed
General Plan, the potential water quality impacts related to construction and operation would be
similar. As described in Chapter 3.9, General Plan implementation would not result in
construction, or long-term impacts to surface water quality from urban stormwater runoff. All
alternatives would also be required to submit a SWPPP with BMPs to the RWQCB and comply with
all storm water sewer system (MS4) requirements. It would be expected that impacts related to
water quality would be similar under Alternatives 2 and Alternative 3 as compared to the
Proposed General Plan. The implementation of the General Plan policies and actions which
includes policies aimed to enhance stormwater quality and infiltration as well as actions to review
development projects to identify potential stormwater and drainage impacts and require
development to include measures to ensure off-site runoff is not increased as a beyond pre-
development levels would not be updated and included under Alternative 1 as this alternative
does not include an update to the General Plan Policy Document to include updated policies
related to permeable surfaces onsite detention, and infiltration. Therefore, this impact under the
No-Project Alternative may be slightly increased when compared to all other alternatives.
Additionally, Because Alternative 3 would result in the least land disturbance and the most
permeable lands Alternative 3 would be superior to all other alternatives.

5.0-12 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

709



ALTERNATIVES 5.0

Land Use Planning and Population/Housing

The proposed General Plan is a long-range land use plan. As described in Chapter 3.10 (Land Use,
Population, and Housing) all impacts related to land use, population, and housing were found to
be less than significant under the Proposed General Plan. As described previously, the proposed
General Plan and Alternatives 2 and 3 would include adoption of the updated policy document
consistent with the Proposed General Plan. Therefore, Alternatives 2 and 3 would also result in
the same impact level as the proposed General Plan. Additionally, the amount and typology of
allowable development under the Proposed General Plan, has been crafted to help assist Willows
to meet the City’s Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) and future housing needs, and
comply with State law. Because the No Project Alternative retains the existing General Plan Land
Use Map, and policy document it would result in less consistency with pertinent state and regional
plans relative to the proposed General Plan and Alternative 3 in terms of the Plan’s ability to meet
housing needs. All alternatives would provide greater consistency with applicable state and
regional plans than the No Project Alternative, due to the proposed Project and Alternatives 2 and
3 adopting the updated General Plan policy document.

Mineral Resources

As described in Chapter 3.11, the proposed General Plan would result in less than significant
impacts relating mineral resources. All of the alternatives, like the Proposed General Plan,
accommodate development generally in the same areas, and these areas are, for the most part,
are either already urbanized or are planned for the same development. Given that mineral
resources would not be impacted by the proposed Project, impacts associated with each of the
alternatives would be similar under all alternatives and all would remain less than significant.
However, It should be noted that Alternative 3 may result in slightly reduced impacts when
compared to all other alternatives as this alternative results in the least amounts of overall land
committed to developed uses.

Noise

As described in Chapter 3.12, and 4.0 the proposed General Plan would result in less than
significant noise impacts. The proposed General Plan and Alternatives 2 and 3 include General
Plan Policies intended to minimize exposure to excessive noise, including noise associated with
increased traffic and stationary sources. Additional policies would ensure that new development
mitigates potential noise impacts to the greatest extent feasible through incorporating the noise
control treatments necessary to achieve acceptable noise levels and sets criteria for evaluating
future increases in traffic noise levels.

Alternatives 2 would also result in fewer residential units, less non-residential square feet and
fewer jobs within the city. These reductions in jobs and housing units would slightly reduce traffic
and traffic related noise. As such, noise impacts would be slightly reduced under Alternative 2
when compared to all other alternatives.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 5.0-13

710



5.0 ALTERNATIVES

Public Services and Recreation

As described in Chapter 3.13, the proposed General Plan would result in less than significant
impacts relating to public services and recreation. New development would place increased
demands on public services such as law enforcement, fire, schools, parks, libraries, and other
governmental services. The proposed General Plan includes policies and actions that require
payment of impact fees to the City and other public agencies to ensure that additional
development allowed does not have adverse impacts on these services and agencies.

Alternatives 2 and 3 would adopt the updated General Plan policy document, but Alternative 2
would retain the existing General Plan Land Use Map. Under Alternative 2 and the No Project
Alternative, the development area and development types would remain similar, however, there
would be the fewest, dwelling units, and reduced population when compared to the Propose
General Plan and Alternative 3 and thus, impacts to public services (the demand for police, fire
and other public services) would be slightly reduced. Overall, Alternative 2 would have a slightly
reduced impact to public services when compared to the proposed Project and Alternative 3, and
a reduced impact when compared to Alternative 1 as Alternative 1 would not include adoption of
the updated General Plan policy document.

Transportation

As described in Chapter 3.14 (Transportation and Circulation), the proposed General Plan would
result in significant and unavoidable impacts to the circulation network.

As described in Section 3.14 (Transportation and Circulation), the average VMT overall and per
capita is expected to increase under the existing and proposed General Plan. As a result, the VMT
impacts associated with employment-based uses allowed by the proposed General Plan were
considered significant and unavoidable.

Alternative 2 and Alternative 1 (No Project) would result in development of the existing General
Plan Land Use Map; therefore, the overall VMT per capita would still be significant and
unavoidable. However, under Alternative 2, the updated policy document would be adopted and
future developments would be required to adhere to the same policy guidance and local, state,
and regional air quality measures as the Proposed General Plan and Alternative 3. Therefore, when
compared to Alternative 1, Alternative 2 would slightly reduce impacts to transportation and
circulation. While the proposed General Plan would result in a slightly higher average VMT than
Alternative 2 the updated policy guidance included many circulation policies and actions that may
help to reduce VMT overtime and would be roughly sillier when compared to Alternative 1. The
infill development land use patterns under Alternative 3 would create a more balanced mixed of
infill residential and employment generating uses and would result in a reduction VMT through
opportunities for trip internalization and increased opportunities for walking and bicycling due to
more compact development approach as well as the updated policy document that supports VMT
reduction strategies. Therefore, the transportation impacts related to VMT are slight increased
under The Proposed General Plan and Alternatives 1 and 2 when compared to Alternative 3.

5.0-14 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

711



ALTERNATIVES 5.0

Utilities and Service Systems

As described in Chapter 3.15, the proposed General Plan would result in less than significant
impacts relating Utilities.

New development would place increased demands on utilities. Under Alternative 2, the Planning
Area would be developed with the same development patterns and uses as the existing General
Plan (Alternative 1). Alternative 2 would result in the least amount of new residential and non-
residential development and the smallest increase in population and jobs compared to the
proposed General Plan (and Alternative 3). The quantity of infrastructure installed would be
substantially reduced, under Alternative 3 as this alternatives would require a smaller
development footprint, but the demand for utility services, including wastewater and solid waste
services would be would be similar to that required under the Proposed General Plan.

Therefore, demand for utilities would be slightly less under Alternative 3 when compared to the
proposed General Plan and Alternative 2. Additionally the reduced development anticipated
under Alternatives 1 and 2 would reduce the need to expanded utility services. The updated policy
document include policies and actions to support adequate service levels throughout the city (as
described in Chapter 3.15). Therefore Alternative 2 would be slightly superior to the No Project
Alternatives due to the updated policy guidance related to public services.

Wildfire

As described in Chapter 3.16 (Wildfire), the proposed General Plan would result in less than
significant impacts relating to all Wildfire impacts. All alternatives would result in similar
development patterns and a similar development footprint all of which are located outside
delineated fire hazard areas. The impact under all other scenarios would remain the same.

Irreversible Effects

The proposed Project would have a significant and unavoidable impact associated with
irreversible environmental effects as described under Impact 4.17. Implementation of the
proposed General Plan would result in a commitment of land uses designated for the foreseeable
future. Land use and development consistent with the General Plan would result in irretrievable
commitments by introducing development onto sites that are presently undeveloped.
Additionally, development will physically change the environment in terms of air emission, noise,
traffic, open space, and natural resources. These physical changes are irreversible after
development occurs. Therefore, the proposed General Plan would result in changes in land use
within the Planning Area that would commit future generations to these uses.

During the planning horizon, development under Alternatives 1, 2, and 3 would be reduced in
comparison to the proposed General Plan. Under cumulative conditions, Alternatives 1 and 2
would result in less residential and less non-residential floor area (see Table 5.0-1). All
Alternatives would use nonrenewable resources, including metals, stone, and other materials
related to construction, and result in on-going demand for fossil fuels and other resources
associated with energy production at levels less than than the proposed Project. The associated

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 5.0-15

712



5.0 ALTERNATIVES

irretrievable commitment of nonrenewable resources and permanent conversion of other
undeveloped lands that under all alternatives would remain a significant impact. Alternative 3
may have slightly reduced impact in comparison to the proposed General Plan and all other
alternatives due to the due to reduced development footprint, however the expected overall
development levels are increased when compared to Alternatives 1 and 2 and as such the
additional building construction, and increased in population may offset any benefits of a reduced
development footprint. Alternative 1 would not include an updated policy document that
included additional policies and actions related to the conservation of resources and sustainable
development patterns and therefore, would be considered inferior to all other alternatives.

ENVIRONMENTALLY SUPERIOR ALTERNATIVE

CEQA requires that an environmentally superior alternative be identified among the alternatives
that are analyzed in the EIR. If the No Project Alternative is the environmentally superior
alternative, an EIR must also identify an environmentally superior alternative among the other
alternatives (CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.6(e)(2)). The environmentally superior alternative is
that alternative with the least adverse environmental impacts when compared to the proposed
General Plan.

A comparative analysis of the proposed General Plan and each of the Project alternatives is
provided in Table 5.0-3 below. The table includes a numerical scoring system, which assigns a
score of 1 to 5 to each of the alternatives with respect to how each alternative compares to the
proposed project in terms of the severity of the environmental topics addressed in this EIR. A
score of “3” indicates that the alternative would have the same level of impact when compared
to the proposed project. A score of “1” indicates that the alternative would have a better (or
reduced) impact when compared to the proposed project. A Score of “2” indicates that the
alternative would have a slightly better (or slightly reduced) impact when compared to the
proposed project. A score of “4” indicates that the alternative would have a slightly worse (or
slightly increased) impact when compared to the proposed project. A score of “5” indicates that
the alternative would have a worse (or increased) impact when compared to the proposed
project. The project alternative with the lowest total score is considered the environmentally
superior alternative.

As shown in Table 5.0-3, Alternative 3 is the environmentally superior alternative, as it was
developed and refined to reduce as many environmental effects as possible. All of the alternatives
fail to reduce any significant and unavoidable impacts to a less than significant level however
Alternative 3 would reduce impacts to agricultural lands and resources the greatest extent.
Throughout the preparation of the General Plan Update, the City Council, Planning Commission,
and community all expressed a desire and commitment to ensuring that the General Plan not only
reflect the community’s values and priorities, but also serve as a self-mitigating document and
avoid significant environmental impacts to the greatest extent feasible. To that end, the proposed
General Plan includes the fully range of feasible mitigation and minimization policies and actions
available to reduce potential impacts to the greatest extent possible.

5.0-16 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

713



ALTERNATIVES 5.0
TABLE 5.0-3: COMPARISON OF ALTERNATIVES TO THE PROPOSED PROJECT
ALTERNATIVE 3
PROPOSED ALTERNATIVE 1 ALTERNATIVE 2
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUE (AGRICULTURE
PROJECT (No PROJECT) (MODIFIED)
PROTECTION)
Aesthetics 3 —Same 4 —Slightly Worse 3 —Same 2 —Slightly Better
Agricultural Resources 3_Same 2 —Slightly Better | 2 —Slightly Better 1 —Better
Air Quality 3 —Same 4 —Slightly Worse 3 —Same 2 —Slightly Better
Biological Resources 3 —Same 4 —Slightly Worse | 2 —Slightly Better 1 —Better
Cultural Resources 3 —Same 4 —Slightly Worse 3 —Same 2 —Slightly Better
g;zir;:?:zz (;ra:zt:;,ycllmate 3 —Same 4 —Slightly Worse 3 —Same 2 —Slightly Better
Geology and Soils 3 —Same 4 —Slightly Worse 3 —Same 2 —Slightly Better
Hazards and Hazardous Materials 3 —Same 4 —Slightly Worse 3 —Same 3 —-Same
Hydrology and Water Quality 3 —Same 4 —Slightly Worse 3 —Same 2 —Slightly Better
Land Use and Population 3 —Same 4 —Slightly Worse 3 —Same 3 —Same
Noise 3 —Same 3 —Same 2 —Slightly Better 3 —Same
Public Services and Recreation 3 —Same 3 —Same 2 —Slightly Better 3 —Same
Transportation and Circulation 3 —Same 4 —Slightly Worse | 2 —Slightly Better 1 —Better
Utilities 3 —Same 3 —Same 2 —Slightly Better | 2 —Slightly Better
Wildfire 3 —Same 3 —Same 3 —Same 3 —Same
Irreversible Effects 3 —Same 4 —Slightly Worse 3 —Same 2 —Slightly Better
SUMMARY 48 58 43 34

Overall, Alternative 3 is the environmentally superior alternative as it is the most effective in terms
of overall reductions of impacts compared to the proposed General Plan and all other alternatives.
As such, Alternative 3 is the environmentally superior alternative for the purposes of this EIR
analysis.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan 5.0-17

714



5.0 ALTERNATIVES

SATISFACTION OF PROJECT OBJECTIVES

Alternative 1

As described previously Alternative 1 failed to meet the most basic Project Objectives including
addressing current planning issues and new requirements of State law.

Alternative 2

Like The Proposed Project, Alternative 2 reflects the current goals and vision expressed by city
residents, businesses, decision-makers, and other stakeholders; through the updated policy
document, and addresses new requirements of State law, including climate change planning,
environmental justice, complete streets, etc. Alternative 2 meets the basic Project Objectives.
However, without the updated Land Use Map, Alternative 2 provides less opportunities for high-
quality housing options and development opportunities throughout the city.

Alternative 3

Like the proposed Project, Alternative 3 would satisfy many Project Objectives as it would adopt
the updated policy document. This alternative would allow for less growth that would be allowed
under the proposed Project. Objectives of the General Plan include establishing a greater
connection between the General Plan and current planning issues, and being consistent with state
law. Housing needs and the ability of support housing throughout the planning areas is locally and
regionally important to supporting housing development and statewide housing goals. Alternative
3 is the environmentally superior alternative, as it was developed and refined to reduce as many
environmental effects as possible while still meeting many of the project objectives. However,
without additional opportunities for future growth within the SOI, Alternative 3 provides less
options for housing and job creation throughout the planning area.

5.0-18 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

715



l City of Willows General Plan Designations: Glenn County
= Willows Sphere of Influence General Agriculture

Intensive Agriculture

General Plan Designations: City of Willows

Agricultural/Residential
Industrial COUNTY OF GLENN, CALIFORNIA

R FIGURE 5.0-1. GENERAL PLAN MAP
Community Commercial CITY OF WILLOWS

Highway/Visitor Service Commercial

Low Density Residential

Multiple Family Residential

General Commercial

Highway Commercial
Commercial/Industrial Combining Use
General Industrial

Light Industrial

Entryway

Office and Professional

Service Commercial
0 1,000 2,000

[ ]
Single Family Residential Feet

Suburban Residential
Multiple Family Residential

Rural Residential

Open Space

Public Facilities and Services

Sources: Glenn County; CalAtlas. Map date: November 8, 2019.




5.0 ALTERNATIVES

This page left intentionally blank

5.0-20 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan

77



REPORT PREPARERS 6.0

CITY OF WILLOWS

Karen Mantele .........cccoveeeeeeiiccciiieeennnn, Principal Planner - City of Willows Planning Department

DE NovO PLANNING GROUP

BEN RIChIE .t Principal /Project Manager
WillIam CreNSNaW .....co.eeiiieiieeee et s Senior Planner
4 To | 1= Yo T 4T TSSO PSRRR Planner/ GIS and Mapping
Jennifer DEMAITINO, .....ccccviieiiiiie ettt e e e e e ebre e s e earae e e e sanaeas GIS and Mapping

Saxelby Acoustics - Noise Consultant

0GR (] | o 25U Principal

Fehr & Peers - Transportation Consultant

BF: 1V o I 2] o1 Yo o PSSR Principal

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update 6.0-1
718



6.0 REPORT PREPARERS

This page left intentionally blank.

6.0-2 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update
719



REFERENCES 7.0

REFERENCES

Apartments.com, 2019; interviews with apartment complex managers, 2019; BAE, 2019.

Asbestos TEM Laboratories inc. adapted 2011 U.S. Geological Survey open-file report prepared by
Bradley S. Van Gosen (U.S. Geological Survey, Denver, CO) and John P. Clinkenbeard
(California Geological Survey, Sacramento.

Barbour and Major. 1988. Terrestrial vegetation of California.

Bay Area Economics. Glenn County General Plan Update Existing Conditions Background Report:
Economic and Demographic Conditions and Trends —May 20, 2019.

C Donald Ahrens. 2006. Meteorology Today: An Introduction to Weather, Climate, & the
Environment.

California Air Resources Board (2018) Aerometric Data Analysis and Management System or
iADAM Air Pollution Summaries.

California Air Resources Board (2019) Aerometric Data Analysis and Management System or
iADAM Air Pollution Summaries.

California Air Resources Board. 2015. 2020 Statewide Greenhouse Gas Emissions and the 2020
Target. https://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/inventory/data/misc/2020_forecast_base0911_2015-01-
22.pdf

California Air Resources Board. 2017a. California Ambient Air Quality Standards (CAAQS). Available
at: http://www.arb.ca.gov/research/aaqgs/caaqgs/caaqgs.htm

California Air Resources Board. 2018b. Area Designations Map/State and National. Page last
updated on August 8, 2018. Accessed on August 20, 2018. Available at:
https://www.arb.ca.gov/desig/adm/adm.htm

California Air Resources Board. ARB Databases: Aerometric Data Analysis and Management System
(ADAM). http://www.arb.ca.gov/html/databases.htm.

California Department of Conservation. 2002. California Geological Survey, Note 36.

California Department of Conservation. 2019. California Important Farmlands Map. Farmland
Mapping and Monitoring Program, Glenn County, 2019;

California Department of Conservation. FY 2014/2016. California Land Conservation (Williamson)
Act Status Report.

California Department of Education. 2017-2018 school year fitness test results. Available At:
http://www.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/PhysFitness

California Department of Education. 2019. DataQuest. Available:
<http://dg.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/>.

California Department of Finance (DOF), P-1 State Population Projections, 2010-2060.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update 7.0-1
720


http://www.alibris.com/search/books/author/Ahrens%2C%20C%20Donald
http://www.arb.ca.gov/research/aaqs/caaqs/caaqs.htm

7.0 REFERENCES

California Department of Finance. 2019. Table E-5, Population and Housing Estimates for Cities,
Counties and the State, January 1, 2010-2019, with 2010 Benchmark.

California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection and State Board of Forestry and Fire
Protection. 2010. 2010 Strategic Fire Plan for California.

California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection and State Board of Forestry and Fire
Protection. 2018. 2018 Strategic Fire Plan for California.

California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection. Fire Hazard Severity Zones in SRA. Cal Fire -
FRAP, Fire Hazard Severity Zones in SRA, adopted 11-7-2007. Map date: July 22, 2019.

California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection. Fire Hazard Severity Zones in SRA. Accessed
July 2019. Available at: <http://www.fire.ca.gov/fire_prevention/fhsz_maps >.

California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection. FRAP Map. Available at:
https://frap.fire.ca.gov/media/2446/fuel-rank-map.pdf

California Department of Public Health 2014. Nutrition Education and Obesity Prevention Branch.
Obesity in California: The Weight of the State, 2000-2012. Available At:
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/cpns/Documents/ObesityinCaliforniaReport.pdf

California Department of Public Health. 2018. Mapping Tools by Area Extent. Available At:
http://gis.cdph.ca.gov/cnn/.

California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery. 2019.
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/SWFacilities/Directory/Search.aspx.

California Department of Toxic Substances Control. 2019. Envirostor Database.
http://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/.

California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics. 2001. California Airport Land Use
Planning Handbook.

California Department of Transportation. 2018. Officially Designated State Scenic Highways.
Available: <http://www.dot.ca.gov/hg/LandArch/scenic/schwyl.html>.

California Department of Transportation. CalTrans, Long-Term Socio-Economic Forecasts by
County, 2018.

California Department of Water Resources (DWR). 2006. California’s Groundwater Bulletin 118.
Sacramento Valley Groundwater Basin, Colusa Subbasin. January 20, 2006.

California Department of Water Resources (DWR). 2019. Bulletin 118, California’s Groundwater,
2016 Update.

California Department of Water Resources. 2003. California’s Groundwater Bulletin 118-Update.
October.

7.0-2 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update
721



REFERENCES 7.0

California Department of Water Resources. 2019 Dams within the Jurisdiction of the State of
California. Available:
http://www.water.ca.gov/damsafety/docs/Dams%20by%20County_Sept%202017.pdf.

California Department of Water Resources. Best Available Maps (BAM). Designated Floodways and
Regulated Streams. Available: http://gis.bam.water.ca.gov/bam/

California Dept. of Fish and Game. 2009. Protocols for Surveying and Evaluating Impacts to Special
Status Native Plant Populations and Natural Communities.

California Dept. of Fish and Wildlife. 2019. “Special Animals List.” Natural Diversity Database.
California Dept. of Fish and Wildlife. 2019. California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB)

California Dept. of Water Resources. 2019. Integrated Report (CWA Section 303(d) List / 305(b)
Report).

California Employment Development Department, Local Area Unemployment Statistics (LAUS),
2019.

California Energy Commission, 2019. 2017 Power Content Label. Pacific Gas and Electric Company.
July 2018. https://ww2.energy.ca.gov/pcl/labels/2017_labels/PG_and_E_2017_PCL.pdf

California Energy Commission. 2012. Energy Almanac. Retrieved August 2012, from
http://energyalmanac.ca.gov/overview/index.html

California Energy Commission. 2017. California Greenhouse Gas Emission Inventory — 2017 Edition.
Available at: https://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/inventory/data/data.htm

California Environmental Protection Agency. 2010. Climate Action Team Report to Governor
Schwarzenegger and the Legislature. December 2010.
http://www.climatechange.ca.gov/climate_action_team/reports/

California Geological Survey. 1992. Fault Rupture Hazard Zones in California, Alquist-Priolo Special
Studies Zone Act of 1972 with Index to Special Studies Zones Maps. California Geological
Survey (formerly California Division of Mines and Geology, CDMG) Special Publication 42,
Revised 1992. State of California Department of Conservation.

California Geological Survey. 1999, Revised 2002. Simplified Fault Activity Map of California.
Compiled by Charles W. Jennings and George J. Saucedo.

California Geological Survey. 2003. The Revised 2002 California Probabilistic Seismic Hazard Maps.
Prepared by T. Cao, W.A. Bryant, B. Rowshandel, D. Branum, and C.J. Willis. California
Geological Survey. June 2003.

California Geological Survey. 2019. Seismic Shaking Hazards in California Based on the USGS/CGS
Probabilistic Seismic Hazards Assessment (PSHA) Model.

California Native Plant Society, Rare Plant Program. 2019. Inventory of Rare and Endangered Plants
of California (online edition, v8-03 0.38). Website http://www.rareplants.cnps.org [accessed
25 July 2019].

California Natural Resources Agency (2015) updated mineral land classification map.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update 7.0-3
722


http://energyalmanac.ca.gov/overview/index.html
https://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/inventory/data/data.htm
http://www.climatechange.ca.gov/climate_action_team/reports/

7.0 REFERENCES

California Office of Emergency Services. Available: CalOES. https://www.caloes.ca.gov
California Water Resources Control Board. 2019. https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/.

California Water Service 2015 Urban Water Management Plan Willows District June 2016.
Available:
https://www.calwater.com/docs/uwmp2015/wil/2015_Urban_Water_Management_Plan_Fin
al_(WIL).pdf

California Water Service 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Willows District

California Water Service. 2018. Water Quality Report. Available At:
https://www.calwater.com/docs/ccr/2018/wil-wil-2018.pdf

California’s Groundwater Bulletin 118. Sacramento Hydrologic Region Sacramento River Valley
Groundwater Basin, Colusa Subbasin. Available:
https://water.ca.gov/LegacyFiles/groundwater/bulletin118/basindescriptions/5-21.52.pdf

CalRecycle, 2019. Jurisdiction Review Reports.
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/LGCentral/reports/jurisdiction/reviewreports.aspx

CalRecycle, 2019. SWIS Facility/Site Search.
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/swfacilities/directory/search.aspx

CalWater, California Interagency Watershed Mapping Committee. 2008. California Watershed
Boundary Dataset (WBD).

CalWater, California Interagency Watershed Mapping Committee. 2008. California Watershed
Boundary Dataset (WBD).

CalWater, California Interagency Watershed Mapping Committee. California Watershed Boundary
Dataset (WBD).

City of Willows Recreation Department, 2019.
<https://willowsca.myrec.com/info/facilities/default.aspx>

City of Willows, 2019. City of Willows Municipal Code. Willows, CA. Last Updated February 2019.

City of Willows. 2010. Willows General Plan— Land Use Element Adopted July 9t" 1996, revised
2000, and 2010.

City of Willows. 2015. Willows General Plan 2014 — 2019 Housing Element 2015.

City of Willows. 2019. Library Department. Available:
<https://www.cityofwillows.org/dept/library>.

CoStar Realty Information Inc. CoStar data package and GIS 2019 BAE, 2019.

County of Glenn. General Plan Policy Plan Glenn County General Plan VOLUME I. Adopted June,
1993.

7.0-4 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update
723



REFERENCES 7.0

Department of Conservation (1997) Mineral Land Classification Map Concrete Grade Aggregate
Resource in Eastern Glenn County.

Ellsworth, W.L. 1990. “Earthquake History 1769-1989.” The San Andreas Fault System, California.
R.E. Wallace, ed. United States Geological Survey. Professional Paper 1515. Chapter 6.

Employment Development Department (EDD), Employment by Industry Data, 2019
Eubank, Elizabeth1948 Glenn County Directory. Publisher unknown, Willows, California.

Federal Bureau of Investigation. 2017. Table 10, California, Offenses Known to Law Enforcement,
by Metropolitan and Nonmetropolitan Counties.

FireDepartment.net. 2018. Glenn County, CA Fire Departments. Available:
<https://beta.firedepartment.net/directory/california/glenn-county/>

Glenn County Agricultural Commission. 2016. Glenn County Agriculture (Crop) Report.
Glenn County Agricultural Commission. 2017. Glenn County Agriculture (Crop) Report.

Glenn County Department of Agriculture. Northern Sacramento Valley (Four County) Drinking
Water Quality Strategy Document Final Draft. June 2005. Available:
https://www.countyofglenn.net/sites/default/files/Water_Advisory_Committee/NorthernSac
ramentoValley-FourCountyDWQSDCopy-ReadyFINAL.pdf

Glenn County Groundwater Management Plan. Development of a Locally Driven Groundwater
Management Plan (Ordinance #1115). Available:
https://water.ca.gov/LegacyFiles/urbanwatermanagement/2010uwmps/CA%20Water%20Ser
vice%20C0%20-%20Willows/Appendix%20H%20-%20GWMP.pdf

Glenn County Local Agency Formation Commission Municipal Service Review and Sphere of
Influence for the City Of Willows Adopted August 11, 2014 by Glenn LAFCO Resolution No.
2014-04

Glenn County Medical Center. 2012 Community Health Needs Assessment. Available At:
https://www.glennmed.org/pages/pdf/GlennMedicalCtr_CHNA_12.pdf

Glenn County Sheriff’s Office. 2013 Annual Report and Statistical Analysis.

Glenn County Transportation Commission (GCTC). 2015. Glenn County Regional Transportation
Plan (RTP).

Glenn County, Annual Crop & Livestock Report, 2010, 2017.

Glenn County, CA Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan 2018. Available:
https://www.countyofglenn.net/sites/default/files/Planning/Glenn%20County%20MJHMP%2
0100918.pdf

Glenn County. 1990. Comprehensive Airport Land Use Plan Willows Glenn Airport. Adopted June
30 1990. Glenn County Land Use Commission.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update 7.0-5
724



7.0 REFERENCES

Glenn County. 1991. Comprehensive Airport Land Use Plan Orland Haigh Field Airport. Adopted
February 27 1991. Glenn County Land Use Commission.

Glenn County. 2015. Glenn County General Plan 2014 — 2019 Housing Element Adoption Draft
March 2015.

Glenn County. 2019. Parcel Data provided by the County Assessor’s Office.
Glenn County. Glenn County General Plan 1993 Policy Plan. Adopted June, 1993.

Glenn County. Glenn County General Plan 1993 Volume Il Setting. Glenn County, CA. Certified
June, 1993.

Glenn Groundwater Authority GGA Board of Directors Special Meeting Date: May 8, 2019. Draft
Fee Study For The Glenn Groundwater Sustainability Agency. 2019. Available:
https://www.countyofglenn.net/sites/default/files/Water_Resources/Glenn_Groundwater_A
uthority/GGA%20Meeting%20Packet%202019May8.pdf

Glenn Groundwater Authority. 2019 Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). website.
Accessed: June 28, 2019. Available at:
https://www.countyofglenn.net/dept/agriculture/water-resources/sustainable-groundwater-
management-act-sgma-0

Glenn Local Agency Formation Commission Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence for
the Northeast Willows Community Services District. April 13, 2015. Available:
https://www.countyofglenn.net/sites/default/files/Local_Agency_Formation_Commission/No
rtheastWillowsCommunityServicesDistrict.pdf

Glenn Local Agency Formation Commission. 2019. Levee and Reclamation Districts in Glenn
County Final Municipal Service Reviews and Sphere Of Influence Plans. Adopted February 11,
2019 Resolution No. 2019-01. Available:
https://www.countyofglenn.net/sites/default/files/Information_Services_Coordinating_Com
mittee/Final%20Levee%20%26%20Reclamation%20Districts%20MSRs%20and%20S01%20Plan
s.pdf

Glenn Local Agency Formation Commission. Final Municipal Service Reviews and Sphere of
Influence Plans for the Levee and Reclamation Districts in Glenn County. February 11, 2019.
Available:
https://www.countyofglenn.net/sites/default/files/Information_Services_Coordinating_Com
mittee/Final%20Levee%20%26%20Reclamation%20Districts%20MSRs%20and%20S01%20Plan
s.pdf

Goldschmidt, Walter 1978 Nomlaki. In California, edited by Robert F Heizer, pp. 341-349.
Handbook of North American Indians. vol. 8, William G. Sturtevant, general editor.
Smithsonian Institution, Washington, D.C.

Hickman, James C. 1993. Jepson Manual: Higher Plants of California.

7.0-6 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update

725


https://www.countyofglenn.net/sites/default/files/Information_Services_Coordinating_Committee/Final%20Levee%20%26%20Reclamation%20Districts%20MSRs%20and%20SOI%20Plans.pdf
https://www.countyofglenn.net/sites/default/files/Information_Services_Coordinating_Committee/Final%20Levee%20%26%20Reclamation%20Districts%20MSRs%20and%20SOI%20Plans.pdf
https://www.countyofglenn.net/sites/default/files/Information_Services_Coordinating_Committee/Final%20Levee%20%26%20Reclamation%20Districts%20MSRs%20and%20SOI%20Plans.pdf

REFERENCES 7.0

Holland, R.F., 1986. Preliminary descriptions of the terrestrial natural communities of California.
State of California, The Resources Agency, Nongame Heritage Program, Dept. Fish & Game,
Sacramento, Calif. 156 pp.

Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change. 2013. “Climate Change 2013: The Physical Science
Basis, Summary for Policymakers.” Available at:
http://www.climatechange2013.org/images/report/WG1AR5_SPM_FINAL.pdf

International Energy Agency. 2018. FAQs: Oil. Available at: https://www.iea.org/about/fags/oil/
Interviews with City of Willows and City of Orland Staff, 2019; BAE, 2019.

Jennings, C.W. 1994. Fault Activity Map of California and Adjacent Areas with Locations and Ages
of Recent Volcanic Eruptions. California Division of Mines and Geology (CDMG), Geologic Data
Map No. 6, Map Scale 1:750,000.

Kyle, Douglas E. 2002 Historic Spots in California. Fifth edition. Original text by Mildred Brooke
Hoover, Hero Eugene Rensch, and Ethel Rensch, edited by William N. Abeloe. Stanford
University Press, Stanford.

LoopNet Broker listings, 2019; BAE, 2019.

McComish, Charles David and Rebecca T. Lambert 1918 History of Colusa and Glenn Counties,
California, With Biographical Sketches. Historic Record Company, Los Angeles.

McNulty, M. Eliza and Wickland, Matthew. University of California, Berkeley. 2003. Redesigning
Marsh Creek Dam to allow Chinook salmon passage, flood protection, and mercury
sedimentation.

National Resources Defense Council. 2019. NRDC Fact Sheet: California Snowpack and the
Drought. April 2014. Available at: https://www.nrdc.org/sites/default/files/ca-snowpack-and-
drought-FS.pdf

National Transportation Safety Board. Accessed August 14, 2019. Available at:
http://www.ntsb.gov/ layouts/ntsb.aviation/index.aspx.

Natural Resources Conservation Service (USDA), Web Soils Survey 2019.

Norther California Water Association. 2017. Sacramento Valley Water Management Plan
Compliance for UWMP and AWMP. Available: https://norcalwater.org/wp-
content/uploads/Sac-Valley-Water-Mgmt.-Plan-Compliance-Map-11x17.pdf

Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA). 2018. CalEnviroScreen 3.0. Available:
https://oehha.ca.gov/calenviroscreen/report/calenviroscreen-30

Pacific Gas and Electric Company, 2007. Pacific Gas and Electric Company Service Territory.
https://www.pge.com/mybusiness/customerservice/otherrequests/treetrimming/territory/

Pacific Gas and Electric Company, 2017. PG&E Renewable Energy Deliveries Grow; GHG-Free
Portfolio Is Nearly 70 Percent. March 16, 2017.
https://www.pge.com/en/about/newsroom/newsdetails/index.page?title=20170316_pge_re
newable_energy_deliveries_grow_ghg-free_portfolio_is_nearly_70_percent

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update 7.0-7
726


http://www.climatechange2013.org/images/report/WG1AR5_SPM_FINAL.pdf

7.0 REFERENCES

Regional Water Quality Control Board, Revised 2018. Central Valley Region Water Quality Control
Plan for the Sacramento River and San Joaquin River Basins.

Rogers, Justus H. 1891 Colusa County: Its History Traced From a State of Nature Through the Early
Period of Settlement and Development to the Present Day. Privately published, Orland.

Rosenthal, Jeffery S., Gregory G. White, and Mark Q. Sutton 2007 The Central Valley: A View
from the Catbird’s Seat. In California Prehistory: Colonialization, Culture, and Complexity,
edited by Terry L. Jones and Kathryn Klar, pp. 147-164. Altimira Press, Walnut Creek,
California.

Sawyer, John and Todd Keeler-Wolf. 1995. A Manual of California Vegetation.

Seaber, P.R., Kapinos, F.P., and Knapp, G.L., 1987, Hydrologic Unit Maps: U.S. Geological Survey
Water-Supply Paper 2294, 63 p.

Shumway. 1997. Mineral Land Classification of Concrete-Grade Aggregate Resources in Glenn
County, California.

Skinner, Mark W. and Bruce M. Pavlik, Eds. 2001. California Native Plant Society's Inventory of Rare
and Endangered Vascular Plants of California.

State of California. California Natural Resources Agency Department of Water Resources Water
Use and Efficiency Statewide Integrated Water Management. Status of 2015 Urban Water
Management Plans A report to the Legislature. Available:
http://www.watereducation.org/sites/main/files/file-attachments/2015_uwmp_leg_report_-
_final_-9-22-17.pdf

State of California. California Natural Resources Agency Department of Water Resources Water
Use and Efficiency Statewide Integrated Water Management. Water Use Efficiency Data
(WUEdata). 2015 Agricultural Water Management Plans (AWMPs). Available:
https://wuedata.water.ca.gov/awmp_plans

State of California. California Natural Resources Agency Department of Water Resources. 2015.
California’s Groundwater Update 2013 A Compilation of Enhanced Content for California
Water Plan Update 2013. Sacramento River Hydrologic Region. Available:
https://water.ca.gov/-/media/DWR-Website/Web-Pages/Programs/California-Water
Plan/Docs/Update2013/GroundwaterUpdate/Californias-Groundwater-Update-2013--
Sacramento-River-Regional-Report.pdf

State Water Resources Control Board, CalEPA. 2018. California Lakes and Reservoirs Impaired by
Mercury. http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/mercury/reservoirs/.

U.S. Census Bureau, 2013-2017 5-year sampling period, table S1501.
U.S. Census Bureau, 2013-2017 5-year sampling period, table DP-03.
U.S. Census Bureau, 2013-2017 5-year sampling period, table B25004.

U.S. Census Bureau, ACS 2006-2010 and 2013-2017 5-year sampling period, table B25024.

7.0-8 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update
727


http://pubs.usgs.gov/wsp/wsp2294/

REFERENCES 7.0

U.S. Census Bureau, ACS 2013-2017 5-year sampling period, table B25003.

U.S. Census Bureau, ACS 2013-2017 5-year sampling period, table B25034.

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, CHAS, 2011-2015.

U.S. Census Bureau, ACS 2006-2010 and 2013-2017 5-year sampling period, Table S2401.

U.S. Census Bureau, ACS 2006-2010 and 2013-2017, 5-year sampling period, tables S0804, BO8007
U.S. Census Bureau, ACS 2013-2017 5-year sampling period, table B0O3002.

U.S. Census Bureau, ACS 2013-2017 5-year sampling period, table S1101.

U.S. Census Bureau, Census Transportation Planning Products Program (CTPP) 2012-2016 5-year
sampling period.

U.S. Census Bureau, Decennial Census 2010, P1, P18, P42, ACS 2013-2017 5-year sampling period,
B01003, S1101, B26001; BAE, 2019.

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, CHAS, 2011-2015.

U.S. Department of Transportation National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 2017. Fatality
Analysis Reporting System (FARS) Available At: http://www-fars.nhtsa.dot.gov/ and
http://www.nhtsa.gov/FARS

United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS).
2019. Web Soil Survey. Available at: http://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov

United States Energy Information Administration (U.S. EIA). 2017a. California State Energy Profile.
Last updated July 18, 2019. Available at: https://www.eia.gov/state/print.php?sid=CA

United States Energy Information Administration (U.S. EIA). 2017b. Total System Electric
Generation. Data as of June 24, 2019. Available at:
http://www.energy.ca.gov/almanac/electricity_data/total_system_power.html

University of California Los Angeles (UCLA) Health Policy Center 2010-2014. California Health
Interview Survey. Available At: http://ask.chis.ucla.edu &
http://healthpolicy.ucla.edu/Pages/home.aspx

US Geologic Survey; CalAtlas; Open Street Data Map date: June 17, 2019.
USEPA. 2019. My Waters Mapper. Available: https://www.epa.gov/waterdata/my-waters-mapper

Waste Management. 2019 City of Willows Collection Calendar.
https://www.wm.com/location/california/north-valley/willows/index.jsp

Waste Management. 2019. "About Waste Management". www.wm.com. Retrieved July 2019.

White, Greg 2003a Testing and Mitigation at Four Sites on Level (3) Long Haul Fiber Optic
Alignment, Colusa County, California.  Archaeological Research Program, California State
University, Chico. Chico. 2003b Population Ecology of the Colusa Reach. Unpublished Ph.D.
dissertation, Department of Anthropology, University of California, Davis.

Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update 7.0-9
728


https://www.eia.gov/state/print.php?sid=CA
http://www.energy.ca.gov/almanac/electricity_data/total_system_power.html

7.0 REFERENCES

Willows Fire Department, 2019. 2016 Annual Report.

Willows Fire Department, 2019. Willows Fire Department website. Available at:
https://www.cityofwillows.org/dept/public-safety/fire. Accessed on6/17/2019.

Willows Municipal Code. Title 18 Unified Development Code (Zoning). Current through Ordinance
745-19, July 9, 2019.

7.0-10 Draft Environmental Impact Report - Willows General Plan Update
729



Appendix A

Notice of Preparation and NOP Comments

730



w
7 4

City of Willows

CALIFORNIA

Notice of Preparation and Scoping Meeting
Willows General Plan Update Environmental Impact Report

Date: April 6, 2022
To: State Clearinghouse, Agencies, Organizations and Interested Parties
Subject: Notice of Preparation and Scoping Meeting for the Willows General Plan

Update Environmental Impact Report
Scoping Meeting:  April 20, 2022, 6:00 p.m.
Comment Period:  April 6, 2022 to May 9, 2022.

The City of Willows (City) will serve as Lead Agency in the preparation of a programmatic
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the City of Willows General Plan Update (Plan).

The purpose of this notice is (1) to serve as a Notice of Preparation (NOP) of an EIR pursuant to
the State CEQA Guidelines Section 15082, (2) to advise and solicit comments and suggestions
regarding the scope and content of the EIR to be prepared for the proposed project, and (3) to
notice the public scoping meeting. The proposed project is a long-term General Plan consisting
of policies that will guide future development activities and City actions. No specific development
projects are proposed as part of the Plan. Information regarding the project description, project
location, and topics to be addressed in the Draft EIR is provided below. Additional project
documents and information (including the Proposed Draft General Plan) are available at the City
of Willows, Community Development Department, Planning Division located at: City of Willows,
201 N Lassen Street, Willows, CA 95988, and on-line at:

https://www.cityofwillows.org/dept/community-development-services-department/planning

For questions regarding this notice, please contact Karen Mantele, Principal Planner at (530) 934-
7041, or by email kmantele@cityofwillows.org.

Notice of Preparation 30-Day Comment Period

The City, as Lead Agency, requests that responsible and trustee agencies, and the Office of
Planning and Research, respond in a manner consistent with Section 15082(b) of the CEQA
Guidelines. Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21080.4, responsible agencies, trustee
agencies and the Office of Planning and Research must submit any comments in response to this
notice no later than 30 days after receipt. In accordance with the time limits established by CEQA,
the NOP public review period will begin on April 6, 2022 and end on May 9, 2022.

731



NOP — City of Willows General Plan Update

In the event that the City does not receive a response from any Responsible or Trustee Agency
by the end of the review period, the City may presume that the Responsible Agency or Trustee
Agency has no response to make (State CEQA Guidelines Section 15082(b)(2)). All Comments
in response to this notice must be submitted in writing at the address below, or via email, by the
close of the 30-day NOP review period, which is 5:00 PM on May 9, 2022:

Karen Mantele
Principal Planner
Community Development Department, Planning Division
City of Willows
201 N Lassen Street
Willows, CA 95988
kmantele@cityofwillows.org
Scoping Meeting
The City will hold a scoping meeting to provide an opportunity for agency representatives and the
public to assist the City in determining the scope and content of the EIR.

The scoping meeting will be held on April 20, 2022 at 6:00pm, at:

City Hall Council Chambers
City of Willows
201 N Lassen Street
Willows, CA 95988

For comments before or after the meeting or additional information, please contact Karen
Mantele, Principal Planner at (530) 934-7041, or by email kmantele@cityofwillows.org.

Project Location and Setting

The City of Willows is located within California’s Central Valley in the southern portion of Glenn
County. Interstate 5 (I-5) connects Willows to Redding to the north and Sacramento to the south.
State Route (SR) 32 connects Willows to Chico to the east. SR 162 connects Willows to the
Mendocino National Forest to the west.

The Planning Area is the geographic area for which the Willows General Plan provides a
framework for long-term plans for growth, resource conservation, and the provision of public
services. State law requires the General Plan to include all territory within Willows’ incorporated
area as well as "any land outside its boundaries which in the planning agency's judgment bears
relation to its planning" (California Government Code Section 65300). The Plan Area is in Glenn
County. For the purposes of the General Plan, the Planning Area is defined as the Willows city
limits and the surrounding Sphere of Influence (SOI), as defined by the Local Agency Formation
Commission (LAFCO). The General Plan boundary (Planning Area) is shown in Figure 1
(Proposed General Plan Land Use Map).

Page 2 of 7
732



NOP — City of Willows General Plan Update

Project Description

The City of Willows is preparing a comprehensive update to its existing General Plan, which was
adopted in 1974, and underwent partial updates in 1981 and 2010. The General Plan Update is
expected to be completed in 2022.

The City’s proposed General Plan includes a broad goal and policy framework that guides land
use and planning decisions within the city. The overall purpose of the General Plan is to create a
policy framework that articulates a vision for the City’s long-term physical form and development,
while preserving and enhancing the quality of life for residents and increasing opportunities for
high-quality local job growth and housing options. The key components of the General Plan will
include broad goals for the future of Willows, and specific policies and actions that will help
implement the stated goals.

The updated General Plan will guide the City’s development and conservation through land use
objectives and policy guidance. The City will implement the Plan by requiring development,
infrastructure improvements, and other projects to be consistent with its policies and by
implementing the actions included in the Plan, including subsequent project-level environmental
review, as required under CEQA.

State law requires the City to adopt a comprehensive, long-term general plan for the physical
development of its planning area. The Plan must include land use, circulation, housing,
conservation, open space, noise, and safety elements, as specified in Government Code Section
65302, to the extent that the issues identified by State law exist in the City’s planning area.

The Willows General Plan includes a comprehensive set of goals, policies, and actions
(implementation measures), as well as a revised Land Use Map (Figure 1).

e A goal is a description of the general desired result that the City seeks to create through
the implementation of the General Plan.

e A policy is a specific statement that guides decision-making as the City works to achieve
its goals. Once adopted, policies represent statements of City regulations. The General
Plan’s policies set out the standards that will be used by City staff, the Planning
Commission, and the City Council in their review of land development projects, resource
protection activities, infrastructure improvements, and other City actions. Policies are on-
going and don’t necessarily require specific action on behalf of the City.

e An action is an implementation measure, procedure, technique, or specific program to be
undertaken by the City to help achieve a specified goal or implement an adopted policy.
The City must take additional steps to implement each action in the General Plan. An
action is something that can and will be completed.

The Willows General Plan includes all of the State-mandated topics and elements noted above,
and addresses additional topics, such as Environmental Justice (in the Land Use Element) and
Climate Adaptation and Resiliency (in the Safety Element).

The Plan has been prepared to address the requirements of State law and the relevant items
addressed in Government Code Section 65300 et seq. The Willows General Plan is intended to
reflect the desires and vision of residents, businesses, and City Council.

Page 3 of 7
733



NOP — City of Willows General Plan Update

The following objectives are identified for the proposed update to the General Plan:
e Develop a long-term vision for the City of Willows
e Engage a broad spectrum of the community members
e Engage key stakeholders to perpetuate long-term involvement
e Establish greater connections between the General Plan and current planning issues

e Educate the public on the City’s existing conditions, and the General Plan update process

Growth Projections

While no specific development projects are proposed as part of the Willows General Plan Update,
the General Plan will accommodate future growth in Willows, including new businesses,
expansion of existing businesses, and new residential uses. The buildout analysis assumes an
approximately 20-year horizon, and 2040 is assumed to be the buildout year of the General Plan.

Growth projections should not be considered a prediction for growth, as the actual amount of
development that will occur throughout the planning horizon of the General Plan is based on many
factors outside of the City’s control. Actual future development would depend on future real estate
and labor market conditions, property owner preferences and decisions, site-specific constraints,
and other factors. New development and growth are largely dictated by existing development
conditions, market conditions, and land turnover rates. Very few communities in California actually
develop to the full potential allowed in their respective General Plans during the planning horizon.

As shown in Table 1 and Table 2, buildout of the General Plan could yield a total of up to
approximately 689 housing units and approximately 717,834 square feet of non-residential
building square footage within the City Limits. These projections are likely an overstatement of
the level of growth that will occur in the Willows community over the next 20 years, given that
these growth levels exceed historical growth rates in Willows. However, for the purposes of the
General Plan EIR, these are the levels of growth that will be analyzed, given that these growth
levels are feasible based on the development potential provided in the proposed Land Use Map.

Page 4 of 7
734



NOP — City of Willows General Plan Update

TABLE 1: GROWTH PROJECTIONS - BUILDOUT OF VACANT LAND IN WILLOWS CITY LIMITS

Vacant Residential . . SPUth Total New
. . . Non-Residential Willows . .
Land Use Designation Acreages FAR! Units per . . . Residential
Buildout (sf) Residential .
(acre) Acre . Units
Community?
from to from to from | to
City 164.99 641 | 734
Non-residential Land Uses
Comn'?e.rual/lndustrlal 7272 0.25 i i 395,966 i i i
Combining Use
General Commercial 21.55 0.25 - - 117,361 - - -
General Industrial 13.34 0.25 - - 72,644 - - -
Highway Commercial 16.61 0.25 - - 90,468 - - -
Light Industrial 3.36 0.25 - - 18,313 - - -
Office and Professional 4.24 0.25 - - 23,083 - - -
Publ.lc Facilities and 13.57 i i i i i i i
Services
Residential Land Uses
Low Density Residential 18.08 - 2 6 36 108 419 455 527
Multiple Family 1.51 - 16 30 24 45 162 186 207
Residential
Notes:
1- Assumes new non-residential development occurs at a FAR of 0.25 and is developed on 50% of the vacant parcels for each
non-residential land use category.
2- The South Willows Residential Community is an entitled project, and is assumed to be fully built-out by 2040

SOURCES: CITY oF WiLLows 2021; COUNTY OF GLENN 2021; PARCELQUEST PARCEL DATA 2022. DE Novo PLANNING

GRour 2022.

TABLE 2: GROWTH PROJECTION — HOUSING UNITS IN WiLLOwS CITY LIMITS

Total Buildout New Housing Units! 689
2020 Housing Units (existing) 2,458
2040 Housing Units (projected) 3,147
Mid-range Growth Projection (annual growth rate over 20 years) 1.40%

NOTES: 1- ASSUMES THAT ALL VACANT RESIDENTIAL PARCELS WILL DEVELOP AT THE MID-RANGE ALLOWED DENSITY

SouURCES: DE Novo PLANNING GRoup 2022.

Page 5 of 7

735



NOP — City of Willows General Plan Update

As shown in Table 3, buildout of the General Plan could yield a total of approximately 137 to 411
housing units and approximately 68,399 square feet of non-residential building square footage
within the Willows SOI.

TABLE 3: GROWTH PROJECTIONS - BUILDOUT OF VACANT LAND IN WILLOWS SOI

. . Vacant Residential Units Non-Residential Total New
Land Use Designation Acreages FAR* . . . .
per Acre Buildout (sq. ft) Residential Units
(acre)

from to from to
SOl 84.98 84.98 137 411
Non-residential Land Uses
General Commercial 0.18 0.25 - 975 -
General Industrial 1.95 0.25 - 10,637 -
Highway Commercial 1.47 0.25 - 8,015 -
Light Industrial 6.37 0.25 - 34,676 -
Mixed Use 2.59 0.25 - 14,096 -
Publ.lc Facilities and 3.94 i i i i
Services
Residential Land Uses
Low Density Residential 68.47 ‘ - ‘ 2 ‘ 6 ‘ - 137 411
Note: *Assumes new non-residential development occurs at FAR of 0.25 is developed on 50% of the vacant parcels for each
non-residential land use category.

SOURCES: CITY oF WiLLows 2021; COUNTY OF GLENN 2021; PARCELQUEST PARCEL DATA 2022. DE Novo PLANNING
GRour 2022.

Program EIR Analysis

The City, as the Lead Agency under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), will prepare
a Program EIR for the Willows General Plan Update. The EIR will be prepared in accordance with
CEQA, the CEQA Guidelines (Guidelines), relevant case law, and City procedures. No Initial
Study will be prepared pursuant to Section 15063(a) of the CEQA Guidelines.

The EIR will analyze potentially significant impacts associated with adoption and implementation
of the General Plan. In particular, the EIR will focus on areas that have development potential.
The EIR will evaluate the full range of environmental issues contemplated under CEQA and the
CEQA Guideline. At this time, the City anticipates that EIR sections will be organized in the
following topical areas:

o Aesthetic Resources e Land Use and Planning
e Agriculture and Forestry Resources ¢ Noise
e Air Quality e Population and Housing
e Biological Resources e Public Services and Recreation
e Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources e Transportation
¢ Geology, Soils, and Mineral Resources e Utilities/Service Systems
e Greenhouse Gases, Climate Change, e  Wildfire

and Energy e Mandatory Findings of
e Hazards and Hazardous Materials Significance/Cumulative Impacts
e Hydrology and Water Quality e Alternatives

Page 6 of 7

736



Road 45

Southern Pacific RR

SOl
Amendment
l Areat

I 172.31 acres

Road G

Road 48

ROAO"4S

First Ave

Plumas St

Road J

(=]

o

(5]

<]

-4
o 1,000 2,000
[ mem s

Feet

Map date: March 30, 2022.

=Roads53

Road 57

Glennwood Ln

Green St
-I-
.Frm:h

Pacific Ave
>

aurel St
Ash St

Birch St
Cedar St

Vine St

Southern Pacific RR

Ventura St

Sonoma St

\\

Road 51, s mm mm mm =
| |

I SOI Amendment I
Area 2

: 158.62 acres I

Loee.f Road=53:—--Uu ma mu we e =

Road M

Planning Areas

General Plan Designations
Low Density Residential
Multiple Family Residential

- Urban Reserve

- General Commercial

- Highway Commercial

- Commercial/Industrial Combining Use
Light Industrial

*County designation. See Glenn County General Plan.

_1 City of Willows D Willows Sphere of Influence l -‘ Proposed SOI Amendment Area

- General Industrial

Office and Professional
Open Space
Public Facilities and Services

Agricultural/Residential*

- Mixed Use*

CITY OF WILLOWS

FIGURE 1:

PROPOSED SOI AMENDMENT

ARFAS

DeNovo Planning Group

A Land Use Planning, Design, and Environmental Firm ]

737



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8811A8F0-93A1-4E7F-A069-85FF2BAD3CC7

State of California — Natural Resources Agency GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor
DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE CHARLTON H. BONHAM, Director
North Central Region

1701 Nimbus Road, Suite A

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670-4599

916-358-2900

www.wildlife.ca.gov

CALIFORNIA

DEPARTMENT OF
FISH &
(WILDLIFE

May 3, 2022

Karen Mantele

Principal Planner

Community Development Department, Planning Division
City of Willows

201 N Lassen Street

Willows, CA 95988

kmantele@cityofwillows.org

Subject:  WILLOWS GENERAL PLAN UPDATE DRAFT PROGRAM
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT
SCH# 2022040089

Dear Ms. Mantele:

The California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) received and reviewed the
Notice of Preparation of an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) from the Community
Development Department, Planning Division for the Willows General Plan Update
(Project) in Glenn County pursuant the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
statute and guidelines.?.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments and recommendations regarding
those activities involved in the Project that may affect California fish, wildlife, plants, and
their habitats. Likewise, we appreciate the opportunity to provide comments regarding
those aspects of the Project that CDFW, by law, may need to exercise its own
regulatory authority under the Fish and Game Code (Fish & G. Code).

CDFW ROLE

CDFW is California’s Trustee Agency for fish and wildlife resources and holds those
resources in trust by statute for all the people of the State (Fish & G. Code, 88 711.7,
subd. (a) & 1802; Pub. Resources Code, § 21070; CEQA Guidelines § 15386, subd. (a).).
CDFW, in its trustee capacity, has jurisdiction over the conservation, protection, and
management of fish, wildlife, native plants, and habitat necessary for biologically
sustainable populations of those species (Id., § 1802.). Similarly, for purposes of CEQA,
CDFW provides, as available, biological expertise during public agency environmental

1 CEQA is codified in the California Public Resources Code in section 21000 et seq. The “CEQA Guidelines” are
found in Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, commencing with section 15000.

738


http://www.wildlife.ca.gov/
mailto:kmantele@cityofwillows.org

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8811A8F0-93A1-4E7F-A069-85FF2BAD3CC7

Willows General Plan Update
May 3, 2022
Page 2 of 14

review efforts, focusing specifically on projects and related activities that have the potential
to adversely affect fish and wildlife resources.

CDFW may also act as a Responsible Agency under CEQA. (Pub. Resources Code, §
21069; CEQA Guidelines, § 15381.) CDFW expects that it may need to exercise
regulatory authority as provided by the Fish and Game Code. As proposed, for
example, the Project may be subject to CDFW'’s lake and streambed alteration
regulatory authority. (Fish & G. Code, 8 1600 et seq.) Likewise, to the extent
implementation of the Project as proposed may result in “take” as defined by State law
of any species protected under the California Endangered Species Act (CESA) (Fish &
G. Code, § 2050 et seq.), the Project proponent may seek related take authorization as
provided by the Fish and Game Code.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION SUMMARY

The Project site is located in Glenn County, encompassing the City of Willows, and
immediately surrounding area.

The Project consists of a Programmatic Update to the City General Plan. The proposed
Project is a long-term General Plan consisting of policies that will guide future
development activities and City actions. No specific development projects are proposed
as part of the Plan.

The Project description should include the whole action as defined in the CEQA
Guidelines 8 15378 and should include appropriate detailed exhibits disclosing the
Project area including temporary impacted areas such as equipment stage area, spoils
areas, adjacent infrastructure development, staging areas and access and haul roads if
applicable.

As required by 8§ 15126.6 of the CEQA Guidelines, the EIR should include an
appropriate range of reasonable and feasible alternatives that would attain most of the
basic Project objectives and avoid or minimize significant impacts to resources under
CDFW's jurisdiction.

COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

CDFW offers the comments and recommendations presented below to assist the
Community Development Department, Planning Division in adequately identifying
and/or mitigating the Project’s significant, or potentially significant, impacts on biological
resources. The comments and recommendations are also offered to enable CDFW to
adequately review and comment on the proposed Project with respect to impacts on
biological resources. CDFW recommends that the forthcoming EIR address the
following:

739



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8811A8F0-93A1-4E7F-A069-85FF2BAD3CC7

Willows General Plan Update
May 3, 2022
Page 3 of 14

Assessment of Biological Resources

Section 15125(c) of the CEQA Guidelines states that knowledge of the regional setting
of a project is critical to the assessment of environmental impacts and that special
emphasis should be placed on environmental resources that are rare or unique to the
region. To enable CDFW staff to adequately review and comment on the Project, the
EIR should include a complete assessment of the flora and fauna within and adjacent to
the Project footprint, with emphasis on identifying rare, threatened, endangered, and
other sensitive species and their associated habitats. CDFW recommends the EIR
specifically include:

1. An assessment of all habitat types located within the Project footprint, and a map
that identifies the location of each habitat type. CDFW recommends that floristic,
alliance- and/or association-based mapping and assessment be completed
following, The Manual of California Vegetation, second edition (Sawyer 2009).
Adjoining habitat areas should also be included in this assessment where site
activities could lead to direct or indirect impacts offsite. Habitat mapping at the
alliance level will help establish baseline vegetation conditions.

2. A general biological inventory of the fish, amphibian, reptile, bird, and mammal
species that are present or have the potential to be present within each habitat
type onsite and within adjacent areas that could be affected by the Project.
CDFW recommends that the California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB), as
well as previous studies performed in the area, be consulted to assess the
potential presence of sensitive species and habitats. A nine United States
Geologic Survey (USGS) 7.5-minute quadrangle search is recommended to
determine what may occur in the region, larger if the Project area extends past
one quad (see Data Use Guidelines on the Department webpage
www.wildlife.ca.qov/Data/CNDDB/Maps-and-Data). Please review the webpage
for information on how to access the database to obtain current information on
any previously reported sensitive species and habitat, including Significant
Natural Areas identified under Chapter 12 of the Fish and Game Code, in the
vicinity of the Project. CDFW recommends that CNDDB Field Survey Forms be
completed and submitted to CNDDB to document survey results. Online forms
can be obtained and submitted at:
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Data/CNDDB/Submitting-Data.

Please note that CDFW’s CNDDB is not exhaustive in terms of the data it
houses, nor is it an absence database. CDFW recommends that it be used as a
starting point in gathering information about the potential presence of species
within the general area of the Project site. Other sources for identification of
species and habitats near or adjacent to the Project area should include, but may
not be limited to, State and federal resource agency lists, California Wildlife
Habitat Relationship System, California Native Plant Society Inventory, agency

740


http://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Data/CNDDB/Maps-and-Data
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Data/CNDDB/Submitting-Data

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8811A8F0-93A1-4E7F-A069-85FF2BAD3CC7

Willows General Plan Update
May 3, 2022
Page 4 of 14

3.

4.

contacts, environmental documents for other projects in the vicinity, academics,
and professional or scientific organizations.

A complete and recent inventory of rare, threatened, endangered, and other
sensitive species located within the Project footprint and within offsite areas with
the potential to be affected, including California Species of Special Concern and
California Fully Protected Species (Fish & G. Code § § 3511, 4700, 5050, and
5515). Species to be addressed should include all those which meet the CEQA
definition (CEQA Guidelines § 15380). The inventory should address seasonal
variations in use of the Project area and should not be limited to resident species.
The EIR should include the results of focused species-specific surveys,
completed by a qualified biologist, and conducted at the appropriate time of year
and time of day when the sensitive species are active or otherwise identifiable.
Species-specific surveys should be conducted in order to ascertain the presence
of species with the potential to be directly, indirectly, on or within a reasonable
distance of the Project activities. CDFW recommends the Community
Development Department, Planning Division rely on survey and monitoring
protocols and guidelines available at: www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Survey-
Protocols. Alternative survey protocols may be warranted; justification should be
provided to substantiate why an alternative protocol is necessary. Acceptable
species-specific survey procedures should be developed in consultation with
CDFW and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, where necessary. Some aspects
of the Project may warrant periodic updated surveys for certain sensitive taxa,
particularly if the Project is proposed to occur over a protracted time frame, or in
phases, or if surveys are completed during periods of drought or deluge.

A thorough, recent (within the last two years), floristic-based assessment of
special-status plants and natural communities, following CDFW's Protocols for
Surveying and Evaluating Impacts to Special Status Native Plant Populations
and Natural Communities (see www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Plants).

Information on the regional setting that is critical to an assessment of
environmental impacts, with special emphasis on resources that are rare or
unigue to the region (CEQA Guidelines § 15125[c]).

Analysis of Direct, Indirect, and Cumulative Impacts to Biological Resources

The EIR should provide a thorough discussion of the Project’s potential direct, indirect,
and cumulative impacts on biological resources. To ensure that Project impacts on
biological resources are fully analyzed, the following information should be included in
the EIR:

1.

The EIR should define the threshold of significance for each impact and describe
the criteria used to determine whether the impacts are significant (CEQA

741


http://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Survey-Protocols
http://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Survey-Protocols
http://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Plants

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8811A8F0-93A1-4E7F-A069-85FF2BAD3CC7

Willows General Plan Update
May 3, 2022
Page 5 of 14

Guidelines, 8 15064, subd. (f)). The EIR must demonstrate that the significant
environmental impacts of the Project were adequately investigated and
discussed, and it must permit the significant effects of the Project to be
considered in the full environmental context.

2. A discussion of potential impacts from lighting, noise, human activity, and wildlife-
human interactions created by Project activities especially those adjacent to
natural areas, exotic and/or invasive species occurrences, and drainages. The
EIR should address Project-related changes to drainage patterns and water
quality within, upstream, and downstream of the Project site, including: volume,
velocity, and frequency of existing and post-Project surface flows; polluted runoff;
soil erosion and/or sedimentation in streams and water bodies; and post-Project
fate of runoff from the Project site.

3. Adiscussion of potential indirect Project impacts on biological resources,
including resources in areas adjacent to the Project footprint, such as nearby
public lands (e.g., National Forests, State Parks, etc.), open space, adjacent
natural habitats, riparian ecosystems, wildlife corridors, and any designated
and/or proposed reserve or mitigation lands (e.g., preserved lands associated
with a Conservation or Recovery Plan, or other conserved lands).

4. A cumulative effects analysis developed as described under CEQA Guidelines
section 15130. The EIR should discuss the Project's cumulative impacts to
natural resources and determine if that contribution would result in a significant
impact. The EIR should include a list of present, past, and probable future
projects producing related impacts to biological resources or shall include a
summary of the projections contained in an adopted local, regional, or statewide
plan, that consider conditions contributing to a cumulative effect. The cumulative
analysis shall include impact analysis of vegetation and habitat reductions within
the area and their potential cumulative effects. Please include all potential direct
and indirect Project-related impacts to riparian areas, wetlands, wildlife corridors
or wildlife movement areas, aquatic habitats, sensitive species and/or special-
status species, open space, and adjacent natural habitats in the cumulative
effects analysis.

Mitigation Measures for Project Impacts to Biological Resources

The EIR should include appropriate and adequate avoidance, minimization, and/or
mitigation measures for all direct, indirect, and cumulative impacts that are expected to
occur as a result of the construction and long-term operation and maintenance of the
Project. CDFW also recommends the environmental documentation provide
scientifically supported discussion regarding adequate avoidance, minimization, and/or
mitigation measures to address the Project's significant impacts upon fish and wildlife
and their habitat. For individual projects, mitigation must be roughly proportional to the
level of impacts, including cumulative impacts, in accordance with the provisions of

742



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8811A8F0-93A1-4E7F-A069-85FF2BAD3CC7

Willows General Plan Update
May 3, 2022
Page 6 of 14

CEQA (Guidelines § § 15126.4(a)(4)(B), 15064, 15065, and 16355). In order for
mitigation measures to be effective, they must be specific, enforceable, and feasible
actions that will improve environmental conditions. When proposing measures to avoid,
minimize, or mitigate impacts, CDFW recommends consideration of the following:

1. Fully Protected Species: Fully Protected Species (Fish & G. Code § 3511) have
the potential to occur within or adjacent to the Project area, including, but not
limited to: Bald Eagle (Haliaeetus leucocephalus). Fully protected species may
not be taken or possessed at any time. Project activities described in the EIR
should be designed to completely avoid any fully protected species that have the
potential to be present within or adjacent to the Project area. CDFW also
recommends the EIR fully analyze potential adverse impacts to fully protected
species due to habitat modification, loss of foraging habitat, and/or interruption of
migratory and breeding behaviors. CDFW recommends that the Community
Development Department include in the analysis how appropriate avoidance,
minimization and mitigation measures will reduce indirect impacts to fully
protected species.

2. Species of Special Concern: Several Species of Special Concern (SSC) have the
potential to occur within or adjacent to the Project area, including, but not limited
to: Northern Harrier (Circus hudsonius), Yellow-breasted Chat (Icteria virens),
Yellow-headed Blackbird (Xanthocephalus xanthocephalus), Yellow Warbler
(Setophaga petechia), Short-eared Owl (Asio flammeus), Burrowing Owl (Athene
cunicularia), white sturgeon (Acipenser transmontanus), hardhead
(Mylopharodon conocephalus), American badger (Taxidea taxus), and Western
pond turtle (Emys marmorata). Project activities described in the EIR should be
designed to avoid any SSC that have the potential to be present within or
adjacent to the Project area. CDFW also recommends that the EIR fully analyze
potential adverse impacts to SSC due to habitat modification, loss of foraging
habitat, and/or interruption of migratory and breeding behaviors. CDFW
recommends the Community Development Department include in the analysis
how appropriate avoidance, minimization and mitigation measures will reduce
impacts to SSC.

3. Sensitive Plant Communities: CDFW considers sensitive plant communities to be
imperiled habitats having both local and regional significance. Plant communities,
alliances, and associations with a statewide ranking of S-1, S-2, S-3, and S-4
should be considered sensitive and declining at the local and regional level.
These ranks can be obtained by querying the CNDDB and are included in The
Manual of California Vegetation (Sawyer 2009). The EIR should include
measures to fully avoid and otherwise protect sensitive plant communities from
Project-related direct and indirect impacts.

4. Native Wildlife Nursey Sites: CDFW recommends the EIR fully analyze potential
adverse impacts to native wildlife nursey sites, including but not limited to bat

743



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8811A8F0-93A1-4E7F-A069-85FF2BAD3CC7

Willows General Plan Update
May 3, 2022
Page 7 of 14

maternity roosts. the City of Willows, and surrounding lands, may contain
potential nursery site habitat for structure and/or tree roosting bats and is near
potential foraging habitat. Bats are considered non-game mammals and are
afforded protection by state law from take and/or harassment, (Fish & G. Code, §
4150; Cal. Code of Regs, § 251.1). CDFW recommends that the EIR fully identify
the Project’s potential impacts to native wildlife nursery sites, and include
appropriate avoidance, minimization, and mitigation measures to reduce impacts
or mitigate any potential significant impacts to bat nursery sites.

5. Mitigation: CDFW considers adverse Project-related impacts to sensitive species
and habitats to be significant to both local and regional ecosystems, and the EIR
should include mitigation measures for adverse Project-related impacts to these
resources. Mitigation measures should emphasize avoidance and reduction of
Project impacts. For unavoidable impacts, onsite habitat restoration,
enhancement, or permanent protection should be evaluated and discussed in
detail. If onsite mitigation is not feasible or would not be biologically viable and
therefore not adequately mitigate the loss of biological functions and values,
offsite mitigation through habitat creation and/or acquisition and preservation in
perpetuity should be addressed.

The EIR should include measures to perpetually protect the targeted habitat
values within mitigation areas from direct and indirect adverse impacts in order to
meet mitigation objectives to offset Project-induced qualitative and quantitative
losses of biological values. Specific issues that should be addressed include
restrictions on access, proposed land dedications, long-term monitoring and
management programs, control of illegal dumping, water pollution, increased
human intrusion, etc.

6. Habitat Revegetation/Restoration Plans: Plans for restoration and revegetation
should be prepared by persons with expertise in the regional ecosystems and
native plant restoration techniques. Plans should identify the assumptions used
to develop the proposed restoration strategy. Each plan should include, at a
minimum: (1) the location of restoration sites and assessment of appropriate
reference sites; (2) the plant species to be used, sources of local propagules,
container sizes, and seeding rates; (3) a schematic depicting the mitigation area;
(4) a local seed and cuttings and planting schedule; (5) a description of the
irrigation methodology; (6) measures to control exotic vegetation on site; (7)
specific success criteria; (8) a detailed monitoring program; (9) contingency
measures should the success criteria not be met; and (10) identification of the
party responsible for meeting the success criteria and providing for conservation
of the mitigation site in perpetuity. Monitoring of restoration areas should extend
across a sufficient time frame to ensure that the new habitat is established, self-
sustaining, and capable of surviving drought.

744



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8811A8F0-93A1-4E7F-A069-85FF2BAD3CC7

Willows General Plan Update
May 3, 2022
Page 8 of 14

CDFW recommends that local onsite propagules from within the Project area and
nearby vicinity be collected and used for restoration purposes. Onsite seed
collection should be appropriately timed to ensure the viability of the seeds when
planted. Onsite vegetation mapping at the alliance and/or association level
should be used to develop appropriate restoration goals and local plant palettes.
Reference areas should be identified to help guide restoration efforts. Specific
restoration plans should be developed for various Project components as
appropriate. Restoration objectives should include protecting special habitat
elements or re-creating them in areas affected by the Project. Examples may
include retention of woody material, logs, snags, rocks, and brush piles. Fish and
Game Code sections 1002, 1002.5 and 1003 authorize CDFW to issue permits
for the take or possession of plants and wildlife for scientific, educational, and
propagation purposes. Please see our website for more information on Scientific
Collecting Permits at www.wildlife.ca.gov/Licensing/Scientific-
Collecting#53949678-reqgulations-.

7. Nesting Birds: Please note that it is the Project proponent’s responsibility to comply
with all applicable laws related to nesting birds and birds of prey. Migratory non-
game native bird species are protected by international treaty under the federal
MBTA of 1918, as amended (16 U.S.C. 703 et seq.). CDFW implemented the
MBTA by adopting the Fish and Game Code section 3513. Fish and Game Code
sections 3503, 3503.5 and 3800 provide additional protection to nongame birds,
birds of prey, their nests, and eggs. Sections 3503, 3503.5, and 3513 of the Fish
and Game Code afford protective measures as follows: section 3503 states that it is
unlawful to take, possess, or needlessly destroy the nest or eggs of any bird, except
as otherwise provided by the Fish and Game Code or any regulation made
pursuant thereto; section 3503.5 states that is it unlawful to take, possess, or
destroy any birds in the orders Falconiformes or Strigiformes (birds-of-prey) or to
take, possess, or destroy the nest or eggs of any such bird except as otherwise
provided by the Fish and Game Code or any regulation adopted pursuant thereto;
and section 3513 states that it is unlawful to take or possess any migratory
nongame bird as designated in the MBTA or any part of such migratory nongame
bird except as provided by rules and regulations adopted by the Secretary of the
Interior under provisions of the MBTA.

Potential habitat for nesting birds and birds of prey is present within the Project
area. The Project should disclose all potential activities that may incur a direct or
indirect take to nongame nesting birds within the Project footprint and its vicinity.
Appropriate avoidance, minimization, and/or mitigation measures to avoid take
must be included in the EIR.

CDFW recommends the EIR include specific avoidance and minimization
measures to ensure that impacts to nesting birds or their nests do not occur.
Project-specific avoidance and minimization measures may include, but not be

745


http://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Licensing/Scientific-Collecting#53949678-regulations-
http://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Licensing/Scientific-Collecting#53949678-regulations-

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8811A8F0-93A1-4E7F-A069-85FF2BAD3CC7

Willows General Plan Update
May 3, 2022
Page 9 of 14

limited to: Project phasing and timing, monitoring of Project-related noise (where
applicable), sound walls, and buffers, where appropriate. The EIR should also
include specific avoidance and minimization measures that will be implemented
should a nest be located within the Project site. In addition to larger, protocol
level survey efforts (e.g., Swainson’s hawk surveys) and scientific assessments,
CDFW recommends a final preconstruction survey be required no more than
three (3) days prior to vegetation clearing or ground disturbance activities, as
instances of nesting could be missed if surveys are conducted earlier.

8. Moving out of Harm’s Way: Projects authorized in the future as a result of this Project
are anticipated to result in the clearing of natural habitats that support native species.
To avoid direct mortality, the Community Development Department should state in the
EIR a requirement for a qualified biologist with the proper handling permits, will be
retained to be onsite prior to and during all ground- and habitat-disturbing activities.
Furthermore, the EIR should describe that the qualified biologist with the proper
permits may move out of harm’s way special-status species or other wildlife of low or
limited mobility that would otherwise be injured or killed from Project-related activities,
as needed. The EIR should also describe qualified biologist qualifications and
authorities to stop work to prevent direct mortality of special-status species. CDFW
recommends fish and wildlife species be allowed to move out of harm’s way on their
own volition, if possible, and to assist their relocation as a last resort. It should be
noted that the temporary relocation of onsite wildlife does not constitute effective
mitigation for habitat loss.

9. Translocation of Species: Additionally, the EIR should cover a range of possibilities
for mitigation. The use of relocation, salvage, and/or transplantation as mitigation for
impacts to rare, threatened, or endangered species are generally experimental in
nature and largely unsuccessful. Therefore, the EIR should describe additional
mitigation measures utilizing habitat restoration, conservation, and/or preservation,
in addition to avoidance and minimization measures, if it is determined that there
may be impacts to rare, threatened, or endangered species.

The EIR should incorporate mitigation performance standards that would ensure
that impacts are reduced to a less-than-significant level. Mitigation measures
proposed in the EIR should be made a condition of approval of the Project. Please
note that obtaining a permit from CDFW by itself with no other mitigation proposal
may constitute mitigation deferral. CEQA Guidelines section 15126.4, subdivision
(a)(1)(B) states that formulation of mitigation measures should not be deferred until
some future time. To avoid deferring mitigation in this way, the EIR should describe
avoidance, minimization and mitigation measures that would be implemented
should the impact occur.

746



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8811A8F0-93A1-4E7F-A069-85FF2BAD3CC7

Willows General Plan Update
May 3, 2022
Page 10 of 14

California Endangered Species Act

CDFW is responsible for ensuring appropriate conservation of fish and wildlife
resources including threatened, endangered, and/or candidate plant and animal
species, pursuant to CESA. CDFW recommends that a CESA Incidental Take Permit
(ITP) be obtained if the Project has the potential to result in “take” (Fish & G. Code § 86
defines “take” as “hunt, pursue, catch, capture, or Kkill, or attempt to hunt, pursue, catch,
capture, or kill”’) of State-listed CESA species, either through construction or over the life
of the Project.

State-listed species with the potential to occur in the area include, but are not limited to:
Tricolored Blackbird (Agelaius tricolor), Swainson’s Hawk (Buteo swainsoni), Western
Yellow-billed Cuckoo (Coccyzus americanus occidentalis), Bank Swallow (Riparia
riparia), and giant gartersnake (Thamnophis gigas),

The EIR should disclose the potential of the Project to take State-listed species and how
the impacts will be avoided, minimized, and mitigated. Please note that mitigation
measures that are adequate to reduce impacts to a less-than significant level to meet
CEQA requirements may not be enough for the issuance of an ITP. To issue an ITP,
CDFW must demonstrate that the impacts of the authorized take will be minimized and
fully mitigated (Fish & G. Code 82081 (b)). To facilitate the issuance of an ITP, if
applicable, CDFW recommends the EIR include measures to minimize and fully mitigate
the impacts to any State-listed species the Project has potential to take. CDFW
encourages early consultation with staff to determine appropriate measures to facilitate
future permitting processes and to engage with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and/or
National Marine Fisheries Service to coordinate specific measures if both State and
federally listed species may be present within the Project vicinity.

Native Plant Protection Act

The Native Plant Protection Act (Fish & G. Code 81900 et seq.) prohibits the take or
possession of State-listed rare and endangered plants, including any part or product
thereof, unless authorized by CDFW or in certain limited circumstances. Take of State-
listed rare and/or endangered plants due to Project activities may only be permitted
through an ITP or other authorization issued by CDFW pursuant to California Code of
Regulations, Title 14, section 786.9 subdivision (b).

Lake and Streambed Alteration Program

The EIR should identify all perennial, intermittent, and ephemeral rivers, streams, lakes,
other hydrologically connected aquatic features, and any associated biological
resources/habitats present within the entire Project footprint (including utilities, access,
and staging areas). The environmental document should analyze all potential
temporary, permanent, direct, indirect and/or cumulative impacts to the above-
mentioned features and associated biological resources/habitats that may occur

747



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8811A8F0-93A1-4E7F-A069-85FF2BAD3CC7

Willows General Plan Update
May 3, 2022
Page 11 of 14

because of the Project. If it is determined the Project will result in significant impacts to
these resources the EIR shall propose appropriate avoidance, minimization and/or
mitigation measures to reduce impacts to a less-than-significant level.

Section 1602 of the Fish and Game Code requires an entity to notify CDFW prior to
commencing any activity that may do one or more of the following:

1. Substantially divert or obstruct the natural flow of any river, stream or lake;

2. Substantially change or use any material from the bed, channel or bank of any
river, stream, or lake; or

3. Deposit debris, waste, or other materials where it may pass into any river, stream
or lake.

Please note that "any river, stream or lake" includes those that are episodic (i.e., those
that are dry for periods of time) as well as those that are perennial (i.e., those that flow
year-round). This includes ephemeral streams and watercourses with a subsurface flow.
It may also apply to work undertaken within the flood plain of a body of water.

If upon review of an entity’s notification, CDFW determines that the Project activities
may substantially adversely affect an existing fish or wildlife resource, a Lake and
Streambed Alteration (LSA) Agreement will be issued which will include reasonable
measures necessary to protect the resource. CDFW’s issuance of an LSA Agreement is
a “project” subject to CEQA (see Pub. Resources Code 21065). To facilitate issuance of
an LSA Agreement, if one is necessary, the EIR should fully identify the potential
impacts to the lake, stream, or riparian resources, and provide adequate avoidance,
mitigation, and monitoring and reporting commitments. Early consultation with CDFW is
recommended, since modification of the Project may avoid or reduce impacts to fish
and wildlife resources. Notifications for projects involving timber harvesting operations
must be submitted using paper notification forms. All other LSA Notification types must
be submitted online through CDFW'’s Environmental Permit Information Management
System (EPIMS). For more information about EPIMS, please visit
https://wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Environmental-Review/EPIMS. More information
about LSA Notifications, paper forms and fees may be found at
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Environmental-Review/LSA.

Please note that other agencies may use specific methods and definitions to determine
impacts to areas subject to their authorities. These methods and definitions often do not
include all needed information for CDFW to determine the extent of fish and wildlife
resources affected by activities subject to Notification under Fish and Game Code
section 1602. Therefore, CDFW does not recommend relying solely on methods
developed specifically for delineating areas subject to other agencies’ jurisdiction (such
as United States Army Corps of Engineers) when mapping lakes, streams, wetlands,
floodplains, riparian areas, etc. in preparation for submitting a Notification of an LSA.

748


https://wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Environmental-Review/EPIMS
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Environmental-Review/LSA

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8811A8F0-93A1-4E7F-A069-85FF2BAD3CC7

Willows General Plan Update
May 3, 2022
Page 12 of 14

CDFW relies on the lead agency environmental document analysis when acting as a
responsible agency issuing an LSA Agreement. CDFW recommends lead agencies
coordinate with us as early as possible, since potential modification of the proposed
Project may avoid or reduce impacts to fish and wildlife resources and expedite the
Project approval process.

The following information will be required for the processing of an LSA Notification and
CDFW recommends incorporating this information into any forthcoming CEQA
document(s) to avoid subsequent documentation and Project delays:

1. Mapping and quantification of lakes, streams, and associated fish and wildlife
habitat (e.g., riparian habitat, freshwater wetlands, etc.) that will be temporarily
and/or permanently impacted by the Project, including impacts from access and
staging areas. Please include an estimate of impact to each habitat type.

2. Discussion of specific avoidance, minimization, and mitigation measures to
reduce Project impacts to fish and wildlife resources to a less-than-significant
level. Please refer to section 15370 of the CEQA Guidelines.

Based on review of maps, aerial photography and observation of the area from public
roadways, the Project site supports a number of natural waterways and associated
riparian habitat including: Walker Creek, Wilson Creek, Willow Creek, Logan Creek, the
Sacramento River and many unnamed seasonal streams and channels as well as
agricultural irrigation water supply and drainage channels which provide habitat for
some of the previously identified listed species (above). CDFW recommends the EIR
fully identify the Project’s potential impacts to the streams and/or associated riparian
vegetation and wetlands.

CHEMICAL USE

Rodenticides that control small mammal populations would also reduce available
burrows, making the habitat no longer suitable for Burrowing Owl, giant gartersnake and
other sensitive wildlife species. Lack of underground refugia could result in increased
exposure to predators, heat, and other elements. As such, CDFW recommends the
project avoid use of chemical rodenticides. Additionally, the widespread use of
rodenticides has been documented to result in wildlife losses due to non-target
exposure of fully protected and listed species as well as losses through secondary
exposure (McMillin et al. 2008, Hosea 2000).

ENVIRONMENTAL DATA

CEQA requires that information developed in environmental impact reports and
negative declarations be incorporated into a database, which may be used to make
subsequent or supplemental environmental determinations (Pub. Resources Code, 8§
21003, subd. (e)). Accordingly, please report any special-status species and natural

749



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8811A8F0-93A1-4E7F-A069-85FF2BAD3CC7

Willows General Plan Update
May 3, 2022
Page 13 of 14

communities detected during Project surveys to the CNDDB. The CNNDB field survey
form can be found at the following link:
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Data/CNDDB/Submitting-Data. The completed form can be
submitted online or mailed electronically to CNDDB at the following email address:
CNDDB@uwildlife.ca.gov.

FILING FEES

The Project, as proposed, would have an effect on fish and wildlife, and assessment of
filing fees is necessary. Fees are payable upon filing of the Notice of Determination by
the Community Development Department and serve to help defray the cost of
environmental review by CDFW. Payment of the fee is required in order for the
underlying project approval to be operative, vested, and final. (Cal. Code Regs, tit. 14, 8
753.5; Fish & G. Code § 711.4; Pub. Resources Code, § 21089.)

CONCLUSION

Pursuant to Public Resources Code sections 21092 and 21092.2, CDFW requests
written notification of proposed actions and pending decisions regarding the Project.
Written notifications shall be directed to: California Department of Fish and Wildlife
North Central Region, 1701 Nimbus Road, Rancho Cordova, CA 95670.

CDFW appreciates the opportunity to comment on the NOP of the EIR for the City of
Willows General Plan Update and recommends that the Community Development
Department address CDFW’s comments and concerns in the forthcoming EIR.
CDFW personnel are available for consultation regarding biological resources and
strategies to minimize impacts.

If you have any questions regarding the comments provided in this letter, or wish to
schedule a meeting and/or site visit, please contact Robert Hosea, Environmental
Scientist (530) 708-1199 or robert.hosea@wildlife.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

DocuSigned by:
(5

778EDABAE45F4C9...

Kelley Barker
Environmental Program Manager

ec: Juan Torres, Senior Environmental Scientist (Supervisory)
Robert (Bob) Hosea Environmental Scientist

CEQACommentLetters@wildlife.ca.gov
Department of Fish and Wildlife

750


mailto:cnddb@dfg.ca.gov

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8811A8F0-93A1-4E7F-A069-85FF2BAD3CC7

Willows General Plan Update
May 3, 2022
Page 14 of 14

Office of Planning and Research, State Clearinghouse, Sacramento

Literature Cited

Sawyer, J. O., T. Keeler-Wolf, and J. M. Evens. 2009. A Manual of California
Vegetation, 2" ed. California Native Plant Society Press, Sacramento, California.
http://vegetation.cnps.org/

McMillin, S. C., R.C. Hosea, B.J. Finlayson, B.L. Cypher, and A Mekebri. 2008.
Anticoagulant Rodenticide Exposure in an Urban Population of the San Joaquin Kit Fox.
Proc.23rd Vertebrate. Pest Conf. (R. M. Timm and M. B. Madon, Eds.) Published at
Univ. of Calif., Davis. Pp. 163-165.

Hosea, R.C. 2000. Exposure of Non-Target Wildlife to Anticoagulant Rodenticides in

California. Proceedings, 19th Vert. Pest Conf. (A.C. Crabb, Ed.) Publ. Univ. of Cal.,
Davis.

751


http://vegetation.cnps.org/

\\‘

L/
N
—

\‘ ., Department of Toxic Substances Control

Meredith Williams, Ph.D.
Jared Blumenfeld Director Gavin Newsom
Secretary for 8800 Cal Center Drive Governor
Environmental Protection . .
Sacramento, California 95826-3200

SENT VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL
April 19, 2022

Ms. Karen Mantele
Principal Planner

City of Willows

201 N Lassen Street
Willows, California 95988
KMantele@cityofwillows.org

NOTICE OF PREPARATION OF AN ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR
WILLOWS GENERAL PLAN UPDATE — DATED APRIL 6, 2022
(STATE CLEARINGHOUSE NUMBER: 2022040089)

Dear Ms. Mantele:

The Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) received a Notice of Preparation
of an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Willows General Plan Update (Project).
The Lead Agency is receiving this notice from DTSC because the Project includes one
or more of the following: groundbreaking activities, work in close proximity to a roadway,
work in close proximity to mining or suspected mining or former mining activities,
presence of site buildings that may require demolition or modifications, importation of
backfill soil, and/or work on or in close proximity to an agricultural or former agricultural
site.

DTSC recommends that the following issues be evaluated in the Hazards and
Hazardous Materials section of the EIR:

1. The EIR should acknowledge the potential for historic or future activities on or
near the project site to result in the release of hazardous wastes/substances on
the project site. In instances in which releases have occurred or may occur,
further studies should be carried out to delineate the nature and extent of the
contamination, and the potential threat to public health and/or the environment
should be evaluated. The EIR should also identify the mechanism(s) to initiate

752


mailto:KMantele@cityofwillows.org

Ms. Karen Mantele
April 19, 2022
Page 2

any required investigation and/or remediation and the government agency who
will be responsible for providing appropriate regulatory oversight.

2. Refiners in the United States started adding lead compounds to gasoline in the
1920s in order to boost octane levels and improve engine performance.
This practice did not officially end until 1992 when lead was banned as a fuel
additive in California. Tailpipe emissions from automobiles using leaded gasoline
contained lead and resulted in aerially deposited lead (ADL) being deposited in
and along roadways throughout the state. ADL-contaminated soils still exist
along roadsides and medians and can also be found underneath some existing
road surfaces due to past construction activities. Due to the potential for
ADL-contaminated soil DTSC, recommends collecting soil samples for lead
analysis prior to performing any intrusive activities for the project described in
the EIR.

3. If any sites within the project area or sites located within the vicinity of the project
have been used or are suspected of having been used for mining activities,
proper investigation for mine waste should be discussed in the EIR. DTSC
recommends that any project sites with current and/or former mining operations
onsite or in the project site area should be evaluated for mine waste according to
DTSC’s 1998 Abandoned Mine Land Mines Preliminary Assessment Handbook.

4. If buildings or other structures are to be demolished on any project sites included
in the proposed project, surveys should be conducted for the presence of
lead-based paints or products, mercury, asbestos containing materials, and
polychlorinated biphenyl caulk. Removal, demolition and disposal of any of the
above-mentioned chemicals should be conducted in compliance with California
environmental regulations and policies. In addition, sampling near current and/or
former buildings should be conducted in accordance with DTSC’s 2006
Interim Guidance Evaluation of School Sites with Potential Contamination from
Lead Based Paint, Termiticides, and Electrical Transformers.

5. If any projects initiated as part of the proposed project require the importation of
soil to backfill any excavated areas, proper sampling should be conducted to
ensure that the imported soil is free of contamination. DTSC recommends the
imported materials be characterized according to DTSC’s 2001 Information
Advisory Clean Imported Fill Material.

6. If any sites included as part of the proposed project have been used for
agricultural, weed abatement or related activities, proper investigation for
organochlorinated pesticides should be discussed in the EIR. DTSC
recommends the current and former agricultural lands be evaluated in

753


https://dtsc.ca.gov/2020/04/17/document-request/?wpf337186_14=https://dtsc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2018/11/aml_handbook.pdf
https://dtsc.ca.gov/2020/04/17/document-request/?wpf337186_14=https://dtsc.ca.gov/wpcontent/uploads/sites/31/2018/09/Guidance_Lead_%20%20Contamination_050118.pdf
https://dtsc.ca.gov/2020/04/17/document-request/?wpf337186_14=https://dtsc.ca.gov/wpcontent/uploads/sites/31/2018/09/Guidance_Lead_%20%20Contamination_050118.pdf
https://dtsc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2018/09/SMP_FS_Cleanfill-Schools.pdf
https://dtsc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2018/09/SMP_FS_Cleanfill-Schools.pdf

Ms. Karen Mantele
April 19, 2022
Page 3

accordance with DTSC’s 2008 Interim Guidance for Sampling Agricultural
Properties (Third Revision).

Additionally, DTSC recommends reviewing DTSC’s Envirostor data management
system and the State Water Resource Control Board’s GeoTracker data management
system for potentially impacted sites within the area covered by the Project.

DTSC appreciates the opportunity to comment on the EIR. Should you need any
assistance with an environmental investigation, please visit DTSC’s Site Mitigation and
Restoration Program page to apply for lead agency oversight. Additional information
regarding voluntary agreements with DTSC can be found at DTSC’s Brownfield website.

If you have any questions, please contact me at (916) 255-3710 or via email at
Gavin.McCreary@dtsc.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

Y

Gavin McCreary

Project Manager

Site Evaluation and Remediation Unit
Site Mitigation and Restoration Program
Department of Toxic Substances Control

cc:  (via email)

Governor’s Office of Planning and Research
State Clearinghouse
State.Clearinghouse@opr.ca.gov

Mr. Dave Kereazis

Office of Planning & Environmental Analysis
Department of Toxic Substances Control
Dave.Kereazis@dtsc.ca.gov

754


https://dtsc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2018/09/Ag-Guidance-Rev-3-August-7-2008-2.pdf
https://dtsc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2018/09/Ag-Guidance-Rev-3-August-7-2008-2.pdf
https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/
https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/
https://dtsc.ca.gov/brownfields/voluntary-agreements-quick-reference-guide/
https://dtsc.ca.gov/brownfields/voluntary-agreements-quick-reference-guide/
https://dtsc.ca.gov/brownfields/
mailto:Gavin.McCreary@dtsc.ca.gov
mailto:State.clearinghouse@opr.ca.gov
mailto:Dave.Kereasis@dtsc.ca.gov

’ N
. &
"71:-_'} Lo

CHAIRPERSON
Laura Miranda
Luisefio

VICE CHAIRPERSON
Reginald Pagaling
Chumash

P ARLIAMENTARIAN
Russell Attebery
Karuk

SECRETARY
Sara Dutschke
Miwok

COMMISSIONER

William Mungary
Paiute/White Mountain
Apache

COMMISSIONER
Isaac Bojorquez
Ohlone-Costanoan

COMMISSIONER

Buffy McQuillen
Yokayo Pomo, Yuki,
Nomiaki

COMMISSIONER
Wayne Nelson
Luiseno

COMMISSIONER
Stanley Rodriguez
Kumeyaay

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY
Raymond C.
Hitchcock
Miwok/Nisenan

NAHC HEADQUARTERS
1550 Harbor Boulevard
Suite 100

West Sacramento,
Callifornia 95691

(916) 373-3710
nahc@nahc.ca.gov
NAHC.ca.gov

STATE OF CALIFORNIA Gavin Newsom. Governor

NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE COMMISSIQN

ECEIVE
oo

April 15, 2022 APR 2 5 2022

Karen Mantele, Principal Planner
City of Willows

201 N Lassen Street

Willows, CA 95988

City of Willows

Re: 2022040089, Willows General Plan Update Project, Glenn County

Dear Ms. Mantele:

The Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) has received the Notice of Preparation
(NOP), Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) or Early Consultation for the project
referenced above. The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (Pub. Resources Code
§21000 et seq.), specifically Public Resources Code §21084.1, states that a project that may
cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource, is a project that
may have a significant effect on the environment. (Pub. Resources Code § 21084.1; Cal. Code
Regs., tit.14, §15064.5 (b) (CEQA Guidelines §15064.5 (b)}. If there is substantial evidence, in
light of the whole record before a lead agency, that a project may have a significant effect on
the environment, an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) shall be prepared. (Pub. Resources
Code §21080 (d); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 14, § 5064 subd.(a)(1) (CEQA Guidelines § 15064 (a)(1)).
In order to determine whether a project will cause a substantial adverse change in the
significance of a historical resource, a lead agency will need to determine whether there are
historical resources within the area of potential effect (APE).

CEQA was amended significantly in 2014. Assembly Bill 52 (Gatto, Chapter 532, Statutes of
2014) (AB 52) amended CEQA to create a separate category of cultural resources, “tribal
cultural resources” (Pub. Resources Code §21074) and provides that a project with an effect
that may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource is
a project that may have a significant effect on the environment. (Pub. Resources Code
§21084.2). Public agencies shall, when feasible, avoid damaging effects to any tribal cultural
resource. (Pub. Resources Code §21084.3 (a)). AB 52 applies to any project for which a notice
of preparation, a notice of negative declaration, or a mitigated negative declaration is filed on
or after July 1, 2015. If your project involves the adoption of or amendment to a general plan or
a specific plan, or the designation or proposed designation of open space, on or after March 1,
2005, it may also be subject to Senate Bill 18 (Burton, Chapter 905, Statutes of 2004) (SB 18).

Both SB 18 and AB 52 have tribal consultation requirements. If your project is also subject to the
federal National Environmental Policy Act (42 U.S.C. § 4321 et seq.) (NEPA}, the triball
consultation requirements of Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (154

U.S.C. 300101, 36 C.F.R. §800 et seq.) may also apply.

The NAHC recommends consultation with California Native American tribes that are
traditionally and culturally aoffiiated with the geographic area of your proposed project as early
as possible in order to avoid inadvertent discoveries of Native American human remains and
best protect tribal cultural resources. Below is a brief summary of portions of AB 52 and SB 18 as
well as the NAHC's recommendations for conducting cultural resources assessments.

Consult your legal counsel about compliance with AB 52 and SB 18 as well as compliance with
any other applicable laws.

Page 1 of 5

755



AB 52
AB 52 has added to CEQA the additional requirements listed below, along with many other requirements:

1. ; Fourteen Day Period to Provide Notice of Completion of an Application/Decision to Undertake a Project:
Within fourteen (14) days of determining that an application for a project is complete or of a decision by a public
agency to undertake a project, alead agency shall provide formal notification to a designated contact of, or
tribal representative of, traditionally and culturally offiiated California Native American tribes that have
requested notice, to be accomplished by at least one written notice that includes:

a. A brief description of the project.

b. The lead agency contact information.

c. Notification that the California Native American tribe has 30 days to request consultation. (Pub.

Resources Code §21080.3.1 (d)).

d. A “Cadlifornia Native American tribe" is defined as a Native American tribe located in California that is

on the contact list maintained by the NAHC for the purposes of Chapter 905 of Statutes of 2004 (SB 18).

(Pub. Resources Code §21073).

2. Beain Consultation Within 30 Days of Receiving a Tribe's Request for Consultation and Before Releasing a
Negative Declaration, Mitigated Negative Declaration, or Environmental Impact Report: A lead agency shall
begin the consultation process within 30 days of receiving a request for consultation from a California Native
American fribe that is traditionally and culturally affiiated with the geographic area of the proposed project.
(Pub. Resources Code §21080.3.1, subds. (d) and (e)) and prior to the release of a negative declaration,
mitigated negative declaration or Environmental Impact Report. (Pub. Resources Code §21080.3.1(b)).

a. For purposes of AB 52, “consultation shall have the same meaning as provided in Gov. Code §65352.4

(SB 18). (Pub. Resources Code §21080.3.1 (b)).

3. Mandatory Topics of Consultation If Requested by a Tribe: The following topics of consultation, if a tribe
requests to discuss them, are mandatory topics of consultation:

a. Alternatives fo the project.

b. Recommended mitigation measures.

c. Significant effects. (Pub. Resources Code §21080.3.2 (a)).

4. Discretionary Topics of Consultation: The following topics are discretionary topics of consultation:
a. Type of environmental review necessary.
b. Significance of the tribal cultural resources.
¢. Significance of the project’s impacts on tribal cultural resources.
d. [f necessary, project alternatives or appropriate measures for preservation or mitigation that the tribe
may recommend to the lead agency. (Pub. Resources Code §21080.3.2 (a}).

5. Confidentiality of Information Submitted by a Tribe During the Environmental Review Process: With some
exceptions, any information, including but not limited to, the location, description, and use of tribal cuttural
resources submitted by a California Native American tribe during the environmental review process shall not be
included in the environmental document or otherwise disclosed by the lead agency or any other public agency
to the public, consistent with Government Code §6254 (r) and §6254.10. Any information submitted by a
Callifornia Native American tribe during the consultation or environmental review process shall be published in a
confidential appendix to the environmental document unless the fribe that provided the information consents, in
writing, to the disclosure of some or all of the information to the public. (Pub. Resources Code §21082.3 (c](1)).

6. Discussion of Impacts to Tribal Cultural Resources in the Environmental Document: If a project may have a
significant impact on a tribal cuitural resource, Ihe iead agency's environimental document shall discuss both of
the following:
a. Whether the proposed project has a significant impact on an identified tribal cultural resource.
b. Whether feasible alternatives or mitigation measures, including those measures that may be agreed
to pursuant to Public Resources Code §21082.3, subdivision (a), avoid or substantially lessen the impact on
the identified tribal cultural resource. (Pub. Resources Code §21082.3 (b)).

Page 2 of 5

756



7. Conclusion of Consultation: Consultation with a tribe shall be considered concluded when either.of the

following occurs:
a. The parties agree to measures to mitigate or avoid a significant effect, if a significant effect exists, on

a tribal cultural resource; or
b. A party, acting in good faith and after reasonable effort, concludes that mutual agreement cannot

be reached. (Pub. Resources Code §21080.3.2 (b)).

8. Recommending Mitigation Measures Agreed Upon in Consultation in the Environmental Document: Any
mitigation measures agreed upon in the consultation conducted pursuant to Public Resources Code §21080.3.2
shall be recommended for inclusion in the environmental document and in an adopted mitigation monitoring
and reporting program, if determined to avoid or lessen the impact pursuant to Public Resources Code §21082.3,
subdivision (b), paragraph 2, and shall be fully enforceable. (Pub. Resources Code §21082.3 (a)).

9. Required Consideration of Feasible Mitigation: If mitigation measures recommended by the staff of the lead
agency as a result of the consultation process are not included in the environmental document or if there are no
agreed upon mitigation measures at the conclusion of consultation, or if consultation does not occur, and if
substantial evidence demonstrates that a project will cause a significant effect to a tribal cultural resource, the
lead agency shall consider feasible mitigation pursuant to Public Resources Code §21084.3 (b). (Pub. Resources

Code §21082.3 (e]).

10. Exampiles of Mitigation Measures That, If Feasible, May Be Considered to Avoid or Minimize Sianificant Adverse
Impacts to Tribal Cultural Resources:
a. Avoidance and preservation of the resources in place, including, but not limited to:
i. Planning and construction to avoid the resources and protect the cultural and natural
context.
ii. Planning greenspace, parks, or other open space, to incorporate the resources with culturally
appropriate protection and management criteria.
b. Treating the resource with culturally appropriate dignity, taking into account the tribal cultural values
and meaning of the resource, including, but not limited to, the following:
i. Protecting the cultural character and integrity of the resource.
ii. Protecting the traditional use of the resource.
ili. Protecting the confidentiality of the resource.
c. Permanent conservation easements or other interests in real property, with culturally appropriate
management criteria for the purposes of preserving or utilizing the resources or places.
d. Protecting the resource. (Pub. Resource Code §21084.3 (b)).
e. Please note that a federally recognized California Native American tribe or a non-federally
recognized California Native American tribe that is on the contact list maintained by the NAHC to protect
a California prehistoric, archaeological, cultural, spiritual, or ceremonial place may acquire and hold
conservation easements if the conservation easement is voluntarily conveyed. (Civ. Code §815.3 (c)).
f. Please note that it is the policy of the state that Native American remains and associated grave
artifacts shall be repatriated. (Pub. Resources Code §5097.991).

11. Prerequisites for Certifying an Environmental Impact Report or Adopting a Mitigated Negative Declaration or
Negative Declaration with a Significant Impact on an Identified Tribal Cultural Resource: An Environmental
Impact Report may not be certified, nor may a mitigated negative declaration or a negative declaration be
adopted unless one of the following occurs:
a. The consultation process between the tribes and the lead agency has occurred as provided in Public
Resources Code §21080.3.1 and §21080.3.2 and concluded pursuant to Public Resources Code
§21080.3.2.
b. The tribe that requested consultation failed to provide comments to the lead agency or otherwise
failed to engage in the consultation process.
c. Thelead agency provided notice of the project to the tribe in compliance with Public Resources
Code §21080.3.1 (d) and the tribe failed to request consultation within 30 days. (Pub. Resources Code
§21082.3 (d)}.

The NAHC's PowerPoint presentation titled, “Tribal Consultation Under AB 52: Requirements and Best Practices” may
be found online at: http://nahc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/AB52TribalConsultation CalEPAPDF.pdf

Page 3 of 5

757



SB 18

SB 18 applies to local governments and requires local governments to contact, provide notice to, refer plans to, and
consult with tribes prior to the adoption or amendment of a general plan or a specific plan, or the designation of
open space. (Gov. Code §65352.3). Local governments should consult the Governor's Office of Planning and
Research's "Tribal Consultation Guidelines,”  which can be found online at:
hittps://www.opr.ca.qov/docs/09 14 05 Updated Guidelines 922.pdf.

Some of SB 18’s provisions include:

1. Tribal Consultation: If alocal government considers a proposal to adopt or amend a general plan or o
specific plan, or to designate open space it is required to contact the appropriate tribes identified by the NAHC
by requesting a "Tribal Consultation List."” If a tribe, once contacted, requests consultation the local government
must consult with the fribe on the plan proposal. A tribe has 90 days from the date of receipt of noftification to
request consultation unless a shorter timeframe has been agreed to by the tribe. (Gov. Code §465352.3
(a)(2)).
2. No Statutory Time Limit on SB 18 Tribal Consultation. There is no statutory time limit on SB 18 tribal consultation.
3. Confidentiglity: Consistent with the guidelines developed and adopted by the Office of Planning and
Research pursuant to Gov. Code §65040.2, the city or county shall protect the confidentiality of the information
concerning the specific identity, location, character, and use of places, features and objects described in Public
Resources Code §5097.9 and §5097.993 that are within the city's or county's jurisdiction. (Gov. Code §65352.3
(b)).
4. Conclusion of SB 18 Tribal Consultation: Consultation should be concluded at the point in which:
a. The parties to the consultation come to a mutual agreement concerning the appropriate measures
for preservation or mitigation; or
b. Either the local government or the tribe, acting in good faith and after reasonable effort, concludes
that mutual agreement cannot be reached concerning the appropriate measures of preservation or
mitigation. (Tribal Consultation Guidelines, Governor's Office of Planning and Research (2005) at p. 18).

Agencies should be aware that neither AB 52 nor SB 18 precludes agencies from initiating tribal consultation with
trioes that are traditionally and culturally offiliated with their jurisdictions before the timeframes provided in AB 52 and
SB 18. For that reason, we urge you to continue to request Native American Tribal Contact Lists and "Sacred Lands
File" searches from the NAHC. The request forms can be found online at: http://nahc.ca.gov/rescurces/forms/.

NAHC Recommendations for Cultural Resources Assessments

To adequately assess the existence and significance of tribal cultural resources and plan for avoidance, preservation
in place, or barring both, mitigation of project-related impacts to tribal cultural resources, the NAHC recommends

the following actions:

1. Contact the appropriate regional California Historical Research Information System (CHRIS) Center
(htip://ohp.parks.ca.gov/2page id=1068) for an archaeological records search. The records search will
determine:

a. If part or all of the APE has been previously surveyed for cultural resources.

b. If any known cultural resources have already been recorded on or adjacent to the APE.

c. [Ifthe probability is low, moderate, or high that cultural resources are located in the APE.

d. If asurvey is required to determine whether previously unrecorded cultural resources are present.

2. If an archaeological inventory survey is required, the final stage is the preparation of a professional report
detailing the findings and recommendations of the records search and field survey.
a. The final report containing site forms, site significance, and mitigation measures should be submitted
immediately to the planning department. All information regarding site locations, Native American
human remains, and associated funerary objects should be in a separate confidential addendum and

not be made available for public disclosure.
b. The final written report should be submitted within 3 months after work has been completed to the

appropriate regional CHRIS center.

Page 4 of 5

758



3. Contact the NAHC for:
a. A Sacred Lands File search. Remember that tribes do not always record their sacred sites in the

Sacred Lands File, nor are they required to do so. A Sacred Lands File search is not a substitute for
consultation with tribes that are traditionally and culturally affiiated with the geographic area of the
project's APE.

b. A Native American Tribal Consultation List of appropriate tribes for consultation concerning the
project site and to assist in planning for avoidance, preservation in place, or, failing both, mitigation
measures.

4. Remember that the lack of surface evidence of archaeological resources (including tribal cultural resources)
does not preclude their subsurface existence.
a. Lead agencies should include in their mitigation and monitoring reporting program plan provisions for
the identification and evaluation of inadvertently discovered archaeological resources per Cal. Code
Regs., it. 14, §15064.5(f) (CEQA Guidelines §15064.5(f)). In areas of identified archaeological sensitivity, a
certified archaeologist and a culturally affiiated Native American with knowledge of cultural resources
should monitor all ground-disturbing activities.
b. Lead agencies should include in their mitigation and monitoring reporting program plans provisions
for the disposition of recovered cultural items that are not burial associated in consultation with culturally
affiiated Native Americans.
¢. Lead agencies should include in their mitigation and monitoring reporting program plans provisions
for the treatment and disposition of inadvertently discovered Native American human remains. Heailth
and Safety Code §7050.5, Public Resources Code §5097.98, and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 14, §15064.5,
subdivisions (d) and {e) (CEQA Guidelines §15064.5, subds. (d) and (e)) address the processes to be
followed in the event of an inadvertent discovery of any Native American human remains and
associated grave goods in a location other than a dedicated cemetery.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at my email address:
Cameron.Vela@nahec.cd.gov.

Sincerely,

Camansn Vela

Cameron Vela
Cultural Resources Analyst

cc: State Clearinghouse

Page 5 of 5

759



760



Appendix B

Noise Inputs

761



((acousTics

Acoustics - Noise :Vibration

Environmental Noise Assessment

Willows General Plan Update EIR

City of Willows, California

July 5, 2022

Project # 190703

Prepared for:

DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP EEEE

De Novo Planning Group
1020 Suncast Lane, #106
El Dorado Hills, CA 95762

Prepared by:

Saxelby Acoustics LLC

Luke Saxelby, INCE Bd. Cert.
Principal Consultant
Board Certified, Institute of Noise Control Engineering (INCE)

(916) 760-8821

www.SaxNoise.com | Luke@SaxNoise.com
915 Highland Pointe Drive, Suite 250
Roseville, CA 95678

IF



Appendix A: Acoustical Terminology

Acoustics

Ambient Noise

ASTC

Attenuation
A-Weighting

Decibel or dB

CNEL

DNL
lic

Frequency
Ldn

Leq

Lmax

L(n)

Loudness
NIC

NNIC
Noise
NRC

RT60
Sabin

SEL

SPC

STC

Threshold
of Hearing

Threshold
of Pain

Impulsive

Simple Tone

The science of sound.

The distinctive acoustical characteristics of a given space consisting of all noise sources audible at that location. In many
cases, the term ambient is used to describe an existing or pre-project condition such as the setting in an environmental
noise study.

Apparent Sound Transmission Class. Similar to STC but includes sound from flanking paths and correct for room
reverberation. A larger number means more attenuation. The scale, like the decibel scale for sound, is logarithmic.

The reduction of an acoustic signal.

A frequency-response adjustment of a sound level meter that conditions the output signal to approximate human
response.

Fundamental unit of sound, A Bell is defined as the logarithm of the ratio of the sound pressure squared over the
reference pressure squared. A Decibel is one-tenth of a Bell.

Community Noise Equivalent Level. Defined as the 24-hour average noise level with noise occurring during evening
hours (7 - 10 p.m.) weighted by +5 dBA and nighttime hours weighted by +10 dBA.

See definition of Ldn.

Impact Insulation Class. An integer-number rating of how well a building floor attenuates impact sounds, such as
footsteps. A larger number means more attenuation. The scale, like the decibel scale for sound, is logarithmic.

The measure of the rapidity of alterations of a periodic signal, expressed in cycles per second or hertz (Hz).
Day/Night Average Sound Level. Similar to CNEL but with no evening weighting.

Equivalent or energy-averaged sound level.

The highest root-mean-square (RMS) sound level measured over a given period of time.

The sound level exceeded a described percentile over a measurement period. For instance, an hourly L50 is the sound
level exceeded 50% of the time during the one-hour period.

A subjective term for the sensation of the magnitude of sound.

Noise Isolation Class. A rating of the noise reduction between two spaces. Similar to STC but includes sound from
flanking paths and no correction for room reverberation.

Normalized Noise Isolation Class. Similar to NIC but includes a correction for room reverberation.
Unwanted sound.

Noise Reduction Coefficient. NRC is a single-number rating of the sound-absorption of a material equal to the arithmetic
mean of the sound-absorption coefficients in the 250, 500, 1000, and 2,000 Hz octave frequency bands rounded to the
nearest multiple of 0.05. It is a representation of the amount of sound energy absorbed upon striking a particular
surface. An NRC of 0 indicates perfect reflection; an NRC of 1 indicates perfect absorption.

The time it takes reverberant sound to decay by 60 dB once the source has been removed.

The unit of sound absorption. One square foot of material absorbing 100% of incident sound has an absorption of 1
Sabin.

Sound Exposure Level. SEL is a rating, in decibels, of a discrete event, such as an aircraft flyover or train pass by, that
compresses the total sound energy into a one-second event.

Speech Privacy Class. SPC is a method of rating speech privacy in buildings. It is designed to measure the degree of
speech privacy provided by a closed room, indicating the degree to which conversations occurring within are kept
private from listeners outside the room.

Sound Transmission Class. STCis an integer rating of how well a building partition attenuates airborne sound. It is widely
used to rate interior partitions, ceilings/floors, doors, windows and exterior wall configurations. The STC rating is
typically used to rate the sound transmission of a specific building element when tested in laboratory conditions where
flanking paths around the assembly don’t exist. A larger number means more attenuation. The scale, like the decibel
scale for sound, is logarithmic.

The lowest sound that can be perceived by the human auditory system, generally considered
to be 0 dB for persons with perfect hearing.

Approximately 120 dB above the threshold of hearing.

Sound of short duration, usually less than one second, with an abrupt onset and
rapid decay.

Any sound which can be judged as audible as a single pitch or set of single pitches. ( ACOUSTI cs

Acoustics-Noise -Vibration

IF



((Acousrics

ooooooooooooooooooooooo

Appendix B: Traffic Noise

Calculation Inputs and Results

764




Appendix B-1
FHWA-RD-77-108 Highway Traffic Noise Prediction Model

Project #:
Description:
Ldn/CNEL:
Hard/Soft:

1
2
3
4
)
6
7
8
9

190703

Willows General Plan Update - Existing (2019)
Ldn

Soft

Wood St (Washington St to Murdock Ave)
County Road 57 (Road D to I-5 SB Ramps)
N Tehama (French St to SR 162)

N Tehama (SR 162 to W Willow St)

Hwy 99W (Road M to County Road 57)
Hwy 99W (County Road 57 to South Ct)
Wood St (N Tehama St to N Colusa St)
County Road 57 (Hwy 99W to Road M)
Interstate 5 (Road 57 to State Hwy 162)

O O OO o o o oo

(

SAXELBY

ACOUSTICS

Acoustics- Noise - Vibration

765




Appendix B-2
FHWA-RD-77-108 Highway Traffic Noise Prediction Model

Project #:
Description:
Ldn/CNEL:
Hard/Soft:

1
2
3
4
)
6
7
8
9

190703

Willows General Plan Update - Future (2040)
Ldn

Soft

Wood St (Washington St to Murdock Ave)
County Road 57 (Road D to I-5 SB Ramps)
N Tehama (French St to SR 162)

N Tehama (SR 162 to W Willow St)

Hwy 99W (Road M to County Road 57)
Hwy 99W (County Road 57 to South Ct)
Wood St (N Tehama St to N Colusa St)
County Road 57 (Hwy 99W to Road M)
Interstate 5 (Road 57 to State Hwy 162)

O O OO o o o oo

(

SAXELBY

ACOUSTICS

Acoustics- Noise - Vibration

766




Appendix C

Noise Barrier Reductions

767



|||||||||||||||||||||||

Appendix C: Example Loading Dock
Noise Barrier Reductions

768




Appendix C-1 : Barrier Insertion Loss Calculation

Project Information: Project Name: Willows GPU
Location(s): Example Loading Dock - 100' with 12' sound wall

Noise Level Data: Source Description: Loading Dock
Source Noise Level, dBA Leq: 66.0
Source Frequency (Hz): 1000
Source Height (ft): 8

Site Geometry: Receiver Description: Sensitive Use
Source to Barrier Distance (C;): 100
Barrier to Receiver Distance (C,): 15
Pad/Ground Elevation at Receiver: 0
Receiver Elevation’:
Base of Barrier Elevation: 0
Starting Barrier Height 12

Barrier Effectiveness

Top of Barrier  Barrier Height Barrier Breaks Line of Site to
Elevation (ft) (ft) Insertion Loss, dB Noise Level, dB Source?

12 -13 53
13 -14 52
14 -15 51
15 -15 51
16 -16 50
17 -17 49
18 -17 49
19 -17 49
20 -17 49
21 -17 49
22 -17 49

! Standard receiver elevation is five feet above grade/pad elevations at the receiver location(s)

Elevation (feet)
()]
L

Distance (feet)

((ACOUSTICS

Acoustics- Noise - Vibration

769




Appendix C-2 : Barrier Insertion Loss Calculation

Project Information: Project Name: Willows GPU
Location(s): Example Loading Dock - 250' with 12' sound wall

Noise Level Data: Source Description: Loading Dock
Source Noise Level, dBA Leq: 58.0
Source Frequency (Hz): 1000
Source Height (ft): 8

Site Geometry: Receiver Description: Sensitive Use
Source to Barrier Distance (C;): 250
Barrier to Receiver Distance (C,): 15
Pad/Ground Elevation at Receiver: 0
Receiver Elevation’:
Base of Barrier Elevation: 0
Starting Barrier Height 12

Barrier Effectiveness

Top of Barrier  Barrier Height Barrier Breaks Line of Site to
Elevation (ft) (ft) Insertion Loss, dB Noise Level, dB Source?

12 -13 45
13 -14 44
14 ) 43
15 -15 43
16 -16 42
17 -16 42
18 -17 41
19 -17 41
20 -17 41
21 -17 41
22 -17 41

! Standard receiver elevation is five feet above grade/pad elevations at the receiver location(s)

14
12 4
T 10 -
e .
= S s
o 62 N o ememmeen
S
w 2 4
0 \ ‘ | | | |
0 50 100 150 200 . o
Distance (feet)

((ACOUSTICS

Acoustics- Noise - Vibration

770




Appendix C-3 : Barrier Insertion Loss Calculation

Project Information: Project Name: Willows GPU
Location(s): Example Loading Dock - 150' with building shielding

Noise Level Data: Source Description: Loading Dock
Source Noise Level, dBA Leq: 62.5
Source Frequency (Hz): 1000
Source Height (ft): 8

Site Geometry: Receiver Description: Sensitive Use
Source to Barrier Distance (C;): 150
Barrier to Receiver Distance (C,): 15
Pad/Ground Elevation at Receiver: 0
Receiver Elevation’:
Base of Barrier Elevation: 0
Starting Barrier Height 20

Barrier Effectiveness

Top of Barrier  Barrier Height Barrier Breaks Line of Site to
Elevation (ft) (ft) Insertion Loss, dB Noise Level, dB Source?

20 -17 45
21 -17 45
22 -17 45
23 -17 45
24 -17 45
25 -17 45
26 -18 44
27 -18 44
28 -18 44
29 -18 44
30 -18 44

! Standard receiver elevation is five feet above grade/pad elevations at the receiver location(s)

25 4
20 -
B
& 15 +
c
2 10 ~
R .
@ 5 T ---------------------------
w
0 -+ T T T T T ; : : ‘
0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180
Distance (feet)

((ACOUSTICS

Acoustics- Noise - Vibration

771




DISCUSSION & ACTION
CALENDAR



Agenda Item: #7a.

Date: January 10, 2023

To: Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers

From: Pat Piatt, Community Development & Services Director
Marti Brown, City Manager

Subject: Green Street Urgent Repair Project

Recommendation:

Adopt a resolution authorizing the City Manager, or her designee, to execute a contract with
All-American Construction, Inc. for the Green Street Urgent Repair Project for a not to exceed
amount of $57,000.

Rationale for Recommendation:

The portion of Green Street between North Lassen and North Butte Streets needs urgent
repair. The westerly 200 feet +/- is fully within the City limits and it is in very poor condition
requiring immediate attention.

Background:
The portion of Green Street between North Lassen and North Butte Streets is in need of

immediate repair. However, the portion east of this stretch is partially owned by the County
(40%) and partially owned by the City (60%). Due to the dual ownership, repair of this portion
of the street has been difficult to coordinate between the two jurisdictions in the past (e.g.,
authorize concurrent funding, bidding processes).

In an effort to move the project forward, City staff met with County Public Works staff to
discuss the possibility of a joint project to repair this section of Green Street as part of the
County’s broader street repair efforts in nearby neighborhoods that would occur at
approximately the same time. The initial thought was that the City would design the project
and County crews would perform the work.

The design of the joint project was completed in the summer of 2022 and a copy of it was
shared with County staff to review and develop a cost estimate for construction. After
reviewing the overall project, County staff estimated that the project costs may require a public
bidding process preventing County staff from completing the work (at a more affordable price
point). Accordingly, the joint project has not moved forward, as the cost to perform the work
through standard bidding procedures also exceeds the City’s approved budget authority.

773



Agenda ltem: #7a.

To further complicate the project, the first 200 feet of Green Street that is entirely within the
City limits is in much worse condition than the rest of the road and requires complete asphalt
replacement (as opposed to asphalt overlay). This is one of the factors that led to increased
costs when County staff reviewed the project design.

Discussion & Analysis:

Due to the poor condition of the first 200 feet of Green Street east of North Lassen Street and
the high cost of maintaining the existing asphalt, City staff solicited informal bids from three
contractors to repair only this section of Green Street. Bids were received from All-American
Construction, Inc. (who recently completed the North Lassen Street Rehabilitation Project),
Knife River Construction (who is under contract for the Pacific Avenue Rehabilitation Project),
and Central Valley Engineering and Asphalt (a known contractor that provides paving work in
the Central Valley). All three contractors assumed slightly different quantities (they were each
provided a set of the plans but not quantity sheets); however, in equalizing all 3 bids (taking the
unit costs provided by each contractor for the various line items of work and using the same
units), the results show that the bid from All-American is $48,079.32, the bid from Knife River is
$49,608.00 and the bid from Central Valley is $50,841.00. Based on this equalized comparison,
All-American’s bid is the lowest bidder and staff’'s recommended contractor for the project.

Environmentally, the project is Categorically Exempt under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA) because the work is occurring on an existing City Street.

Please note, Construction Management and project inspections will be provided by Coastland
Civil Engineering (the City Engineer) and City staff.

Fiscal Impact:
Based on the low bid for the project, the overall recommended budget for this project is as

follows:

= Construction: S 48,079
= Contingency (10%): S 4,808
=  CM/Inspection: S 4,000 (estimated)
=  Estimated total S 56,887

The overall project budget is less than what is shown for Project ST-006 in the CIP (CIP shows
$109,655), because only a portion of Green Street will be rehabilitated. The Gas Tax Fund will
be the primary funding source for this project.

Attachment:
=  Resolution XX-2023

774



Attachment 1

City of Willows
Resolution xx-2023

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER, OR HER
DESIGNEE, TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH ALL-AMERICAN CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR THE
GREEN STREET URGENT REPAIR PROJECT FOR A NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $57,000

WHEREAS, in accordance with California Public Contract Code Sections 22032 (a) and
other applicable law, the City of Willows informally solicited bids for the rehabilitation of a
portion of Green Street ("Project"); and

WHEREAS, three bids for the Project were received ranging from a low bid of
$48,079.32 to a high of $50,841.00, with the low bid being from All-American Construction, Inc;
and

WHEREAS, staff has determined that All-American Construction bid satisfies the bidding
requirements for the Project; and

WHEREAS, staff has verified that All American Construction possesses valid California
Contractor’s Licenses under the requested Class A, number 948762 (expires 6/30/2024) as
required to qualify to perform the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) in accordance with Section 15301(c) of Title 14 of the
California Code of Regulations; and

WHEREAS, City staff does not have the manpower or expertise to provide the
construction management, inspection and testing for this project and is requesting that the City
Engineer (Coastland Civil Engineering) provide these services for this project; and

WHEREAS, Coastland Civil Engineering has the expertise and manpower to provide the
requested services.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS
AS FOLLOWS:

775



Attachment 1

1. The above recitals are true and correct and are hereby incorporated into this
Resolution as findings of the City Council of the City of Willows.

2. The Project is categorically exempt from CEQA in accordance with CCR Title 14,
Section 15301(c).

3. The City hereby finds the bid of All-American Construction, Inc. for the
rehabilitation of a portion of Green Street to be the lowest, responsive bid and waives any
irregularities in such bid in accordance with applicable law.

4, The contract for the rehabilitation of a portion of Green Street is hereby
awarded to All-American Construction, Inc., in the amount of $48,079.32, conditioned on All-
American Construction’s timely executing the Project contract and submitting all required
documents, including, but not limited to, executed bonds/surety, certificates of insurance, and
endorsements, in accordance with the contract regulations.

5. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute with All-
American Construction, Inc. for performance of the project in accordance with applicable laws
and City Standards upon submission by All-American Construction of all documents required.

6. That the overall budget for the Project be established at $56,887 which includes
the contract amount of $48,079.32, a 10 percent contingency in the amount of $4,808, and an
estimated cost of $4,000 for construction management and inspections.

7. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute any contract change orders in
accordance with the Project contract documents so long as the total Project cost does not
exceed the total funding for this Project in the adopted budget.

8. City staff is hereby directed to issue a Notice of Award to All-American
Construction.

9. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute a contract
amendment with Coastland Civil Engineering to provide construction management and a
portion of inspection for this project.

10. This Resolution shall become effective immediately.

11. All portions of this resolution are severable. Should any individual component of
this Resolution be adjudged to be invalid and unenforceable by a body of competent
jurisdiction, then the remaining resolution portions shall be and continue in full force and
effect, except as to those resolution portions that have been adjudged invalid. The City Council
of the City of Willows hereby declares that it would have adopted this Resolution and each
section, subsection, clause, sentence, phrase and other portion thereof, irrespective of the fact
that one or more section subsection, clause sentence, phrase or other portion may be held
invalid or unconstitutional.

776



Attachment 1

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council on this
10t day of January 2023, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

APPROVED: ATTESTED:

Richard Thomas, Mayor Louis Osemwegie, City Clerk

777



Agenda ltem #7b.

Date: January 10, 2023

To: Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers

From: Pat Piatt, Community Development & Services Director
Marti Brown, City Manager

Subject: Annual Development Impact Fee Report — FY 2021-22

Recommendation:

Adopt a resolution approving the FY 2021-22 Annual Development Impact Fee Report.

Rationale for Recommendation:

California State Assembly Bill 1600 requires agencies to report annually on impact fees
collected and their uses.

Background:
Pursuant to Government Code 66000 et seq, when a City adopts and implements a

Development Impact Fee program, the Agency implementing the fees shall make available to
the public an annual report stating the following:

A brief description of the type of fee in the account or fund.

The amount of the fee.

The beginning and ending balance of the account or fund for the fiscal year covered by
the report.

The amount of the fees collected, and the interest earned.

An identification of each public improvement on which fees were expended and the
amount of the expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage of the
cost of the public improvement that was funded with fees in the fiscal year covered by
the report.

An identification of an approximate date by which the construction of the public
improvement will commence if the local agency determines that sufficient funds have
been collected to complete financing on an incomplete public improvement.

If applicable, a description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the account or
fund, including the public improvement on which the transferred or loaned fees will be
expended, and, in the case of an interfund loan, the date on which the loan will be
repaid, and the rate of interest that the account or fund will receive on the loan.

The amount of refunds made pursuant to subdivision (e) of Section 66001 and any

allocations pursuant to subdivision (f) of Section 66001.
778



Agenda ltem #7b.

Discussion & Analysis:

The attached report fulfills the above requirements for FY 2021-22. The Government Code
requires that this report be made available to the public within 180 days of the end of the prior
fiscal year. The report was included on the City’s website as of November 10, 2022.

Fiscal Impact:
There are no fiscal impacts associated with adopting the resolution and report.

Attachments:

1. Annual Mitigation Fee Act Report (AB 1600) on Development Impact Fees — FY 2021-22
2. Resolution XX-2023

779



Attachment #: 1

City of Willows
Annual Mitigation Fee Act Report (AB 1600) on Development Impact Fees
for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022

Introduction
LEGAL REQUIREMENTS FOR DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE REPORTING

A. California Government Code Section 66006 (b)

Government Code Section 66006(b) defines the specific annual reporting requirements for local
agencies that impose AB 1600 Development Impact Fees on new development. Annually, for
each separate fund established for the collection and expenditure of Development Impact Fees,
the local agency shall, within 180 days after the last day of each fiscal year, make available to
the public the following information for the most recent fiscal year:

. A brief description of the fee in the account or fund; and

J The amount of the fee; and

] The beginning and ending balance of the account or fund; and

. The amount of the fees collected, and the interest earned; and

] An identification of each public improvement on which fees were expended and

the amount of the expenditures on each improvement; including the total
percentage of the cost of the public improvement that was funded with the fees;
and

J An identification of an approximate date by which the construction of the public
improvement will commence, if the local agency determines that sufficient funds
have been collected to complete financing on an incomplete public
improvement; and

J A description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the account or fund,
including the public improvement on which the transferred or loaned fees will be
expended, and in the case of an interfund loan, the date on which the loan will
be repaid and the rate of interest that the account or fund will receive on the
loan; and

J The amount of refunds made due to sufficient funds being collected to complete
financing on incomplete public improvements when the local agency fails to
identify, within 180 days, an approximate date construction will comment, and
the amount of reallocated funds when the administrative costs of refunding
unexpended revenues exceeding the amount to be refunded.

B. California Government Code Section 66001 (d)
For all funds established for the collection and expenditure of Development Impact Fees,
Governmental Code Section 66001 (d) has additional requirements. For the fifth fiscal year
following the first deposit into the fund and every five years thereafter, the local agency shall
make all of the following findings with respect to that portion of the fund remaining
unexpended, whether committed or uncommitted:

J Identify the purpose to which the fee is to be put; and

1

780



Attachment #: 1

J Demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the fee and the purpose for
which it is charged; and

J Identify all sources and amounts of funding anticipated to complete financing of
incomplete improvements; and

J Designate the approximate dates on which the funding is expected to be

deposited into the appropriated account or fund.

C. Additional Notes

California Government Code Section 66002 states that local agencies that have developed a fee
program may adopt a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) indicating the approximate location, size,
timing of availability, and estimates of cost for all facilities or improvements to be financed by
fees. A formal CIP is recommended, at a minimum, as a five-year plan. The City of Willows has
developed a CIP and at the duly noticed public hearing, the City Council adopted the most
recent CIP at the City Council Meeting of July 26, 2022.

D. Establishing a Reasonable Relationship Between the Fee and the Purpose for Which it is
Charged.

On June 24, 2008, the City Council adopted Resolution 30-2008 establishing Development
Impact Fees as set forth in the Development Impact Mitigation Fee Feasibility Study completed
that year for the City. Subsequently, the City adopted Ordinance 684-09 setting forth the
overall Development Impact Fee Program.

The Development Impact Fees Nexus Study sets forth the relationship between contemplated
future development, facilities needed to serve future development and the estimated costs for
those improvements based on the General Plan. Per Section 19-05.030 of the City’s Municipal
Code, the City can review the fees to determine whether the fee amounts are reasonably
related to the impacts of developments. Additionally, fees can be updated annually to reflect
changes in the Engineering News Record (ENR) Index.

E. Funding of Infrastructure

The FY 2022-2023 adopted budget includes funding for those capital improvements identified
in the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for funding projects identified for the current budget
year. Due to the recent prioritization and adoption of a CIP, the FY 2022-2023 and future
budgets will include providing a framework for programming projects for implementation by
fiscal year for planning purposes.

The City of Willows collects Development Impact Fees to offset and address the impacts of new
development on facilities and infrastructure. Currently there are 8 Development Impact Fee

categories:
J Library
J Parks and Recreation
J Freeway Interchanges
J Street and Traffic
J Public Safety-Police

781



J Fire
. Wastewater
J Storm Drainage

Attachment #: 1

While each fee category has its own methodology for determining fees, two main principles

apply throughout:
. The City of Willows aims to maintain the existing level of service through any
periods of growth; and
] New development should pay its fair share of the City’s infrastructure needs.

The fees in effect as of June 1, 2021, are as follows:

TABLE 1 - Current Impact Fees

Single Family Multi-Family Commercial Industrial
Residence Residence S per 1,000 s.f. S per 1,000
Development S per unit S per unit s.f.
Impact Fees
Library $1,495 $1,434 - -
Parks and $2,995 $2,872 - -
Recreation
Freeway S412/k.s.f. $290/ k.s.f. $892 S276
Interchanges
Street and S768/k.s.f. $539/k.s.f. $1,662 S514
Traffic
Police $790/k.s.f. S758/k.s.f. S344 $162
Fire $1,623/household | $1,556/household S$707 $333
or k. s.f. or k.s.f.
Wastewater $1,261/k.s.f. $1,209/k.s.f. $549 $258
Storm Drainage $1,261/k.s.f. $1,209/k.s.f. $549 $258

A detailed description of FY 2021 activity for each development fee follows. The City
anticipates collecting additional development fee revenue in order to generate sufficient funds
to construct, install and purchase the improvements and equipment described in the
Development Impact Fee Report dated May 2008.

Library Facilities Fee

The Library Facilities Fee is levied to fund the costs related to new development’s impact on
library facilities at the same rate per capita as existing development. A listing of the cost per
square foot for library construction is included in the May 2008 Development Impact Mitigation
Fee Report (referred to herein as the 2008 Report). Additionally, the 2008 Report details that
monies collected shall be used for new facilities needed to accommodate growth that include
an additional 3063 square feet of library, 27,032 new books and 2.5 new computer

workstations. The current fee charge for Library Impact Fees is shown in Table 1.

3

782



Attachment #: 1

The Library Facilities Fee at the end of FY21-22 is $142,214. No capital projects were done in
FY21-22. The funds are committed for the long-term need to expand the library building,
volumes of book and computer facilities. The following table summarizes the activity for the
Library Facilities Fee Fund for fiscal year July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022.

LIBRARY FY 2021-22
FACILITIES FUND
Beginning Balance $141,490

Developer Fees S0
Interest Income S724
Expenditures 0
Ending Balance $142,214

No expenditures were made from this fund during FY21-22. The original impact fee report
stated that the existing population at the time the report was completed was 6,473 which was
the average figure from the General Plan, the State Department of Finance and ESRI Tapestry.
The original report was estimating a 1.5% population growth each year. As of the end of 2021,
per the State Department of Finance, the population of the City of Willows was 6,427. As the
population increases, improvements associated with expansion of the library, additional books
and additional computers will be needed. It is anticipated that when the population reaches
8,000-8,500, expansion of the facilities will be needed. The date when this will occur is
unknown and dependent on when growth occurs within the City. Books and computers will be
needed on a pro-rata basis as the population grows.

No interfund transfers or loans were made from this account.
No refunds were made from this fund pursuant to subdivision (e) of Section 66001 of the
Government Code, as insufficient funds have been collected for the improvements identified in

the 2008 Report.

Parks and Recreation Fee

The Parks and Recreation fee is levied to fund the cost of park amenities as listed in the 2008
Report. These improvements include:

e Solar lights for park around play equipment/pathways and pedestrian walkway lighting

e 2 new softball fields

e Bike paths/BMX course

e Warm-up areas for softball pitchers

e Coin/token operated softball lights

e Pathways in parks

e Trees

e 2 soccer fields

783



Attachment #: 1

e 14 acres of additional parks

The Parks and Recreation Fee Fund at the end of FY21-22 is $334,783. The current fee charge
for Parks and Recreation Impact Fees is shown in Table 1. No capital projects were done in
FY21-22. The funds are committed for the long-term need for the facilities outlined above. The
following table summarizes the activity for the Parks and Recreation Fee Fund for fiscal year
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022.

PARKS AND FY 2021-22
RECREATION FEE

FUND

Beginning Balance $333,153
Developer Fees SO
Interest Income $1,630
Expenditures 0
Ending Balance $334,783

No expenditures were made from this fund during FY21-22. The original impact fee report
stated that the existing population at the time the report was completed was 6,473 which was
the average figure from the General Plan, the State Department of Finance and ESRI Tapestry.
The original report was estimating a 1.5% population growth each year. As of the end of 2021,
per the State Department of Finance, the population of the City of Willows was 6,427. As the
population increases, improvements associated with expansion of the Parks and Recreation
facilities will be needed. It is anticipated that when the Basin Street residential project is
construction, additional new park amenities (both soccer and baseball/softball fields will be
needed, along with the amenities associated with the park(s). The developer has been
conditioned to dedicated parklands and improvement the parks as that development is built. It
is anticipated that the improvements will be built with that development in-lieu of paying their
portion of this impact fee, as well as the developer will contribute additional monies to
complete the needed improvements. The date when this will occur is dependent on when
growth occurs within the City.

No interfund transfers or loans were made from this account.
No refunds were made from this fund pursuant to subdivision (e) of Section 66001 of the
Government Code, as insufficient funds have been collected for the improvements identified in

the 2008 Report.

Freeway Interchange Fee

The Freeway Interchange Fee is levied to fund the construction of improvements to the
southbound off-ramps and signals for the Interstate 5 Interchanges. Improvements associated
with the I-5 interchange at Wood Street were primarily completed with the Walmart

784



Attachment #: 1

development. Improvements associated with the Road 57 Interchange are slated to be
completed as development at the southern portion of the City is built out.

The Freeway Interchange Fee Fund at the end of FY21-22 is $389,759. The current fee charge
for Freeway Interchange Impact Fees is shown in Table 1. No capital projects were done in
FY21-22. The funds are committed for the long-term need for improvements to the Road 57/I-5
Interchange. The following table summarizes the activity for the Freeway Interchange Fee Fund
for fiscal year July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022.

FREEWAY FY 2021-22
INTERCHANGE

FEE FUND

Beginning Balance $387,352
Developer Fees $629
Interest Income $1,778
Expenditures 0
Ending Balance $389,759

No expenditures were made from this fund during FY21-22. The original impact fee report
stated that the existing population at the time the report was completed was 6,473 which was
the average figure from the General Plan, the State Department of Finance and ESRI Tapestry.
The original report was estimating a 1.5% population growth each year. As of the end of 2021,
per the State Department of Finance, the population of the City of Willows was 6,427. As the
population increases and traffic trips increase, improvements associated with the Road 57/I-5
Interchange will be needed. It is anticipated that when the Basin Street residential project and
the Taylor property is improved, interchange improvements will be needed. The exact timing
of the needed improvements will be determined by the project trip volumes from development
that occurs in the southern portion of the City. The date when this will occur is dependent on
when growth occurs within the City.

No interfund transfers or loans were made from this account.

No refunds were made from this fund pursuant to subdivision (e) of Section 66001 of the
Government Code, as insufficient funds have been collected for the improvements identified in
the 2008 Report.

Street and Traffic Impact Fee
Per the 2008 Report, the Street and Traffic Impact Fee is levied to fund the construction of the
following improvements:

e Tehama @ Sycamore rung lane and signal modification

e Tehama - Cedar to Road 53 road widening to 4 lanes

e Tehama @ GCID canal bridge modifications

e Tehama —northbound @ Road 53 right turn lane improvements

6

785



Attachment #: 1

e Tehama @ Road 53 — intersection reconstruction
e Road 53 westbound @ Tehama — construct right turn lane
e Sacramento @ GCID canal bridge modifications

The Street and Traffic Fee Fund at the end of FY21-22 is $182,814. The current fee charge for
Street and Traffic Impact Fees is shown in Table 1. No capital projects were done in FY21-22.
The funds are committed for the long-term need for improvements to the Tehama Road,
various intersections and 2 bridges. The following table summarizes the activity for the Street
and Traffic Impact Fee Fund for fiscal year July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022.

STREET AND FY 2021-22
THOROUGHFARE

IMPACT FEE

Beginning Balance $180,783
Developer Fees $1,172
Interest Income S859
Expenditures 0
Ending Balance $182,814

No expenditures were made from this fund during FY21-22. The original impact fee report
stated that the existing population at the time the report was completed was 6,473 which was
the average figure from the General Plan, the State Department of Finance and ESRI Tapestry.
The original report was estimating a 1.5% population growth each year. As of the end of 2021,
per the State Department of Finance, the population of the City of Willows was 6,427. As the
population increases and traffic trips increase from projected development in the southern
portion of the City, improvements associated with improvements to Tehama, intersections and
bridges will be needed. It is anticipated that when the Basin Street residential project and the
Taylor property is improved, these improvements will be needed. The exact timing of the
needed improvements will be determined by the project trip volumes from development that
occurs in the southern portion of the City. The date when this will occur is dependent on when
growth occurs within the City.

No interfund transfers or loans were made from this account.

No refunds were made from this fund pursuant to subdivision (e) of Section 66001 of the
Government Code, as insufficient funds have been collected for the improvements identified in
the 2008 Report.

Police Impact Fee

The Police Impact Fee is levied to fund the expansion of the police station, as well as 3
additional police cars needed as new development occurs. Details of the needed facilities and
equipment are outlined in the 2008 Report. As of July 1, 2017, the City has outsourced all
police services through a contract with Glenn County Sherriff’s Office (GCSO.) In the agreement

7

786



Attachment #: 1

with GCSO, the agreement states that GCSO “...shall furnish and supply all necessary labor,
supervision, transportation, equipment, communication facilities, and supplies necessary to
provide the Services to be rendered hereunder.” As growth occurs in the City and GCSO
encounters a need to expand their facilities or add vehicles due to population growth in the City
of Willows, the Police Impact Fees can be used to pay GCSO for these costs.

The Police Impact Fee Fund at the end of FY21-22 is $61,068. The current fee charge for the
Police Impact Fee is shown in Table 1. There were no fund expenditures out of this fund in
FY21-22. The funds are committed for the long-term need for expansion of needed facilities
and patrol cars as growth occurs. The following table summarizes the activity for the Police
Impact Fee Fund for fiscal year July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022.

POLICE IMPACT FY 2021-22
FEE

Beginning Balance $60,279
Developer Fees S469
Interest Income $320
Expenditures 0
Ending Balance $61,068

No expenditures were made from this fund during FY21-22. The original impact fee report
stated that the existing population at the time the report was completed was 6,473 which was
the average figure from the General Plan, the State Department of Finance and ESRI Tapestry.
The original report was estimating a 1.5% population growth each year. As of the end of 2021,
per the State Department of Finance, the population of the City of Willows was 6,427. As the
population increases it is anticipated that additional officers and vehicles will be needed. The
exact timing of the needed officers and vehicles is dependent on when growth occurs within
the City.

No interfund transfers or loans were made from this account.
No refunds were made from this fund pursuant to subdivision (e) of Section 66001 of the
Government Code, as insufficient funds have been collected for the improvements identified in

the 2008 Report.

Fire Impact Fee

The Fire Impact Fee is levied to fund the following due to impacts from development:
e One new structure engine
e Outfit new engine
e Purchase 3 new breathing apparatus
e Expansion of the existing fire station

787



Attachment #: 1

Details of the needed facilities and equipment are outlined in the 2008 Report.

The Fire Impact Fee Fund at the end of FY21-22 is $66,144. The current fee charge for the Fire
Impact Fee is shown in Table 1. Expenditures out of this fund in FY21-22 totaled $65,163. The
expenditure was for debt service on a Fire Truck Lease. The funds are committed for the long-
term need for expansion of needed facilities and equipment as development occurs. The
following table summarizes the activity for the Fire Impact Fee Fund for fiscal year July 1, 2021
through June 30, 2022.

FIRE IMPACT FEE FY 2021-22
Beginning Balance $129,989
Developer Fees $966
Interest Income $352
Expenditures $65,163
Ending Balance $66,144

Expenditures in FY2021-22 included the debt service associated with the lease of an HME Fire
Apparatus. The original impact fee report stated that the existing population at the time the
report was completed was 6,473 which was the average figure from the General Plan, the State
Department of Finance and ESRI Tapestry. The original report was estimating a 1.5%
population growth each year. As of the end of 2021, per the State Department of Finance, the
population of the City of Willows was 6,427. As the population increases it is anticipated that
the additional equipment and facility expansion will be needed. The exact timing of the needed
equipment and facility expansion is dependent on when growth occurs within the City.

No interfund transfers or loans were made from this account.
No refunds were made from this fund pursuant to subdivision (e) of Section 66001 of the
Government Code, as insufficient funds have been collected for the improvements identified in

the 2008 Report.

Wastewater Impact Fee

In 2006, the City invested $10.256 million to upgrade the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant to
be able to process 2.0 million gallons per day of wastewater (accommodated both existing and
future growth.) Of the overall amount, $3.367 million was paid by grant and internal funding
and an additional $70,000 in principle was paid by the City, leaving $6,819,00 in costs. Per the
2008 Report, of $6,819,000, 20% ($1,380,871) was the new development share of the cost.

The Wastewater Impact Fee Fund at the end of FY21-22 is $SO. The current fee charge for the

Wastewater Impact Fee is shown in Table 1. There were $387 in fund expenditures out of this

fund in FY21-22. The funds collected are committed to annually pay back the long-term debt

incurred by the City for the expansion of the Wastewater Treatment Plant. The following table
9

788



Attachment #: 1

summarizes the activity for the Wastewater Impact Fee Fund for fiscal year July 1, 2021 through
June 30, 2022.

WASTEWATER FY 2021-22
IMPACT FEE

Beginning Balance SO
Developer Fees $387
Interest Income SO
Expenditures $387
Ending Balance SO

Expenditures in FY2021-22 included payment on the debt service for the long-term debt. The
original impact fee report stated that the existing population at the time the report was
completed was 6,473 which was the average figure from the General Plan, the State
Department of Finance and ESRI Tapestry. The original report was estimating a 1.5%
population growth each year. As of the end of 2021, per the State Department of Finance, the
population of the City of Willows was 6,427. As the population increases it is anticipated that
the additional impact fees will be collected to pay off the remaining debt of the Wastewater
Treatment Plant. The exact timing of collecting the remaining fees is dependent on when
growth occurs within the City.

No interfund transfers or loans were made from this account.

No refunds were made from this fund pursuant to subdivision (e) of Section 66001 of the
Government Code, as funds are used to pay off existing debt on an annual basis.

Storm Drainage Impact Fee

Per the 2008 Report, the Storm Drain Impact Fee is levied to fund the construction of city-wide
storm drain improvements associated with impacts from development.

The Storm Drainage Impact Fee Fund at the end of FY21-22 is $153,328. The current fee charge
for Storm Drainage Impact Fees is shown in Table 1. There were no fund expenditures out of
this fund in FY21-22. The funds are committed for the long-term need for improvements to
city-wide storm drain improvements due to development. The following table summarizes the
activity for the Storm Drainage Impact Fee Fund for fiscal year July 1, 2021 through June 30,
2022.

STREET AND FY 2021-22

THOROUGHFARE

IMPACT FEE

Beginning Balance $151,486

Developer Fees $1,054
10

789



Attachment #: 1

Interest Income S788
Expenditures SO
Ending Balance $153,328

No expenditures were made from this fund during FY21-22. The original impact fee report
stated that the existing population at the time the report was completed was 6,473 which was
the average figure from the General Plan, the State Department of Finance and ESRI Tapestry.
The original report was estimating a 1.5% population growth each year. As of the end of 2021,
per the State Department of Finance, the population of the City of Willows was 6,427. As the
population increases the overall impervious area in the City will increase and cause impacts to
stormwater runoff, which will result in additional improvements to existing storm drain
facilities or new storm drain facilities. The exact timing of the needed improvements will be
determined by new development. Accordingly, the date when this will occur is dependent on
when growth occurs within the City.

No interfund transfers or loans were made from this account.

No refunds were made from this fund pursuant to subdivision (e) of Section 66001 of the
Government Code, as insufficient funds have been collected for the improvements identified in
the 2008 Report.

11

790



Attachment #2

City of Willows
Resolution xx-2023

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF WILLOWS APPROVING THE FY 2021-22
ANNUAL DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE REPORT

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Government Code 66000 et seq, in 2008 the City of Willows adopted
a Development Impact Mitigation Fee Feasibility/Nexus Study and established public facilities
fees to recover the impacts that development will have on the City’s facilities; and

WHEREAS, specific facilities fees were established for Library, Parks and Recreation,
Freeway Interchange, Street and Traffic, Police, Fire, Wastewater, Storm Drainage and
Administrative; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 66013(d), the City is required to make a
report available to the public outlining fees collected in the prior fiscal year and provide certain
information for each of the public facilities fees stating the amount collected, any interest
earned, any expenditures made and other pertinent information; and

WHEREAS, a report has been prepared pursuant to the requirements of Section 66013(d)
has been prepared, made available to the public starting on November 10, 2022, and presented
to the City Council and the public for FY2021-22.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby makes the following
findings:

1. The Mitigation Fee Act (AB 1600) Report on Development Impact Fees for Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, 2022, accurately depicts the revenues collected and expenditures
incurred in FY2021-22 for all established development impact fees.

2. The fees collected for the Library, Parks and Recreation, Interchange, Street and Traffic,
Police, Fire, Wastewater, Storm Drainage have been accurately detailed in the annual
report prepared for FY2021-22.

3. Public Facilities Fees were collected to construct the projects and purchase equipment
as identified in the 2008 Development Impact Mitigation Fee Feasibility/Nexus Study.
The purposes for the collected fees are accurately identified in the attached annual
report.

791



Attachment #2

4. The City Council finds that there exists a reasonable relationship between the City's
established Development Impact Fees and the projects defined in the 2008
Development Impact Mitigation Fee Feasibility/Nexus Study because (a) the property
owners, residents, employees and other persons occupying and using the development
projects that paid the fees will be served by and benefit from the facilities and
equipment funded by the fees, (b) the fees and accumulated funds will assist the City in
expanding its facilities and equipment as necessary to maintain an adequate level of
service to accommodate new development, and (c) the fees offset and mitigate the
impact to the facilities and equipment caused by new development.

5. The City Council finds that the City anticipates collecting additional development fee
revenues to generate enough funds to construct, install and purchase the improvements
and equipment described in the 2008 Development Impact Mitigation Fee
Feasibility/Nexus Study. The amount and timing of the receipt of such additional
revenue depends upon new development, which is uncertain. Because of the recession
beginning in 2008 that resulted in an economic downturn, there has been little
development and construction in the City in recent years. Therefore, the City cannot
determine the approximate date(s) on which additional development fee revenue will
be received or the date(s) when the City will have enough funding to proceed with the
planned construction and purchases.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council on this 10t
day of January 2023, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

APPROVED: ATTESTED:

Richard Thomas, Mayor Louis Osemwegie, City Clerk

792



Agenda Item #7c.

Date: January 10, 2023

To: Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers
From: Marti Brown, City Manager

Subject: 2023 Council Meeting Calendar and Schedule

Recommendation:
Approve and adopt the 2023 City Council Meeting Calendar and Schedule.

Rationale for Recommendation:

It is considered a best practice in municipal clerking to adopt an annual City Council meeting
calendar and schedule for purposes of planning City Council and staff work, as well as public
transparency.

Background:
It is a standard best practice in municipal government to approve the annual City Council

meeting calendar and schedule for the following calendar year. Typically, consideration and
approval of the calendar schedule would occur in December.

Discussion & Analysis:

By adopting an annual city council meeting calendar and schedule, the Council and City staff
may better plan the Council’s workload, special meetings, changes in the meeting schedule and
Council recesses allowing for ample public notification of the Council’s meeting calendar and
transparent communication.

Staff recommends canceling the second meeting in December (as it’s the day after Christmas).
Staff also recommends closing City Hall for the holidays from December 27 through December
29 as City Hall is already closed on December 25 and 26, as well as January 1. In total, City Hall
would be closed from Monday, December 25 through Monday, January 1.

Please note, the County of Glenn also closes non-essential County offices during this same time
frame (as they did in 2022). Also, The Fire Department is exempt from this closure as they
provide essential services, and a rotating Public Works employee would also be on call 24/7
during this time frame. In addition, it’s worth noting that the city is not “giving” this time to City
employees. All employees are required to use vacation, compensation and/or unpaid time

793



during the holiday closure. The City Manager has met and conferred with both the Willows

Agenda Item #7c.

Employee Association (WEA) and United Public Employees of California (UPEC) bargaining units

and both units have agreed to the holiday closure.

Lastly, it is also common for City Councils to take a summer recess and cancel one or two
consecutive City Council meetings in August (as the Council does in the City of Chico). A

proposed recess is not included in the attached calendar; however, should the Council wish to

consider it, the addition could be made during the Council motion.

The proposed 2023 City Council Meeting Dates include:

January 10
January 24
February 14
February 28
March 14
March 28
April 11

April 25

May 9

May 23

June 13

June 27

July 11

July 25
August 8
August 22
September 12
September 26
October 10
October 24
November 14
November 28
December 12

Fiscal Impact:

There is no fiscal impact.

Attachments:

= Attachment 1: Resolution XX-2023
o Exhibit A—2023 Council Meeting and Calendar Schedule

794



Attachment: 1

City of Willows
Resolution xx-2023

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS
ESTABLISHING THE 2023 CITY COUNCIL MEETING CALENDAR AND SCHEDULE

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Willows (City) currently meet on the Second and
Fourth Tuesdays of each month at City Hall in the City of Willows; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Willows also cancels Regular Meetings and holds
Special City Council Meetings from time to time; and

WHEREAS, the Willows Municipal Code Section 2.04.050 (2) requires that the City Council set
their Dates, Times, Places and Frequency of their Regular Meetings; and

WHEREAS, it is common practice in municipal government to adopt a Council Meeting Calendar
and Schedule for the calendar year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The City Council of the City of Willows, California shall adopt the City Council Meeting Calendar
and Schedule for Regular Meetings of the City Council in Calendar Year 2023 as listed in Exhibit A.

2. Nothing herein shall restrict the ability of the City Manager to set the time, and location for
each meeting or exercise discretion otherwise provided for in City Council Resolution No. 44-2021
(November 23, 2021).

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Willows City Council this 10t day of January 2023 by the
following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

APPROVED: ATTESTED:

Rick Thomas, Mayor Louis Osémwegie, City Clerk

Attachment: Exhibit A - 2023 Council Calendar and Meeting Schedule

795



Exhibit A

2023 COUNCIL CALENDAR
& MEETING SCHEDULES

City of Willows

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL
S M T W T F s s M T W T F s S M T W T F s s M T W T F s
12 3 4 5 6 7 12 3 4 12 3 4 1
8 9 10 N 12 13 4 s 6 7 8 9 10 N s 6 7 8 9 10 M 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
5 (8 177 18 19 20 2 12 13 14 15 6 17 18 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 M 12 13 14 15
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 @20 20 22 23 24 25 9 20 21 22 23 24 25 6 17 18 19 20 21 22
29 30 A 26 27 28 26 27 28 29 30 A 23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30
MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST
s M T W T F s S M T W T F s S M T W T F s s M T W T F s
1 2 3 4 5 6 12 3 1 1 2 3 4 5
7 8 9 10 N 122 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 2 3 ®m 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 N 12
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 M 12 13 14 15 16 17 9 10 M 12 13 14 1B 1314 15 16 17 18 19
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 ® 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
28 @29 30 A 25 26 27 28 29 30 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30 3
30 3
SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER
s M T W T F s s M T W T F s S M T W T F s s M T W T F s
12 T2 3 4 5 6 7 12 3 4 12
3 @ 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 M 12 13 14 s 6 7 8 9 1@ n 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 M 12 13 14 15 16 15 1% 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 M 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 9 20 21 22 @23 28 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 3A 26 27 28 29 30 24 @ 26 22 28 @ 30
30

CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS
CITY HALL CLOSURES

796


losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight

losemwegie
Highlight


Agenda ltem #7d.

Date: January 10, 2023
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Member
From: Louis Osémwegie, City Clerk;

Marti Brown, City Manager

Subject: Planning Commission Appointment Council Ad Hoc Committee

Recommendation:

Appoint two Council Members to serve on the Planning Commission Appointment Selection Ad Hoc
Committee to propose a schedule, process and recommend Planning Commissioner appointment to
the full Council.

Rationale for Recommendation:

Based on past practice, the City Council appoints the Planning Commission Selection Ad Hoc
Committee. The Planning Commissioners are appointed by the Mayor and approved by the City
Council.

Background:
The City of Willows received Planning Commissioner Candis Wood'’s resignation effective December 15,
2022.

In order to fill the vacancy on the Planning Commission by the February 15 Planning Commission
Meeting, staff recommends the following appointment process schedule:

. January 10, 2023 - Council appoints two Councilmembers to serve on the Selection Ad Hoc
Committee to review forthcoming applications and conduct interviews.

. January 11, 2023 - Staff notifies local news media of upcoming Planning Commission
vacancy and posts announcement on City Website.

= January 16, 2023, to February 06, 2023 — The City accepts applications.

= February 07, 2023, to February 09, 2023 — Ad Hoc Committee reviews applications and
interviews candidates.

. February 14, 2023 — Council appoints new Planning Commissioner.

= February 15, 2023 - Newly appointed Planning Commissioner is sworn in.

Fiscal Impact:

There is no fiscal impact.

797



	CITY COUNCIL MEETING PAGE INSERT-DISCUSSION & ACTION CALENDAR
	FINAL - Reso-Authorizing the City Manager to implement a Contract
	Green St. Urgency Rehabilitation Project - Award of Construction
	Annual Development Impact Fee Expenditure Report for 2022 20221213
	FY 2021-22 AB 1600 Report final
	Reso-Annual Development Impact Fee Report – FY21-22
	Staff Report 2022 Council Meeting Calendar and Schedule
	Reso XX-2023 City Council Meeting Calendar & Schedule
	2023-Calendar Updated.png
	Staff Report-Planning Commission Appointment Council Ad Hoc Committee
	SR & Reso 7a.pdf
	Green St. Urgency Rehabilitation Project - Award of Construction
	FINAL - Reso-Authorizing the City Manager to implement a Contract

	SR & Reso 7a.pdf
	Green St. Urgency Rehabilitation Project - Award of Construction
	FINAL - Reso-Authorizing the City Manager to implement a Contract




